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Ref: ERL/SECRETARIAL/2023-24/674 7t September, 2023
To,

The General Manager The Secretary The Secretary

Department of Corporate The National Stock Exchange of The Calcutta Stock Exchange

Services India Limited Limited

BSE Limited Exchange Plaza, 7, Lyons Range

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Bandra Kurla Complex Kolkata-700 001

Dalal Street, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051

Mumbai — 400 001

Respected Sir/ Madam,

Sub: Submission of the Notice of the 15 Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the
Financial Year 2022-23

In continuation to our Letter dated 5™ September, 2023 wherein we have intimated regarding 15t
AGM of the Company which is scheduled to be held on Friday, 29t September, 2023 and pursuant
to Regulation 30, 34 & other applicable Regulation, if any, of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), we are submitting herewith a
copy of the Notice dated 7™ August, 2023, of the 15" AGM and the Annual Report of the Company
for the financial year 2022-23.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read Rules made thereunder and
Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide its Members the facility
to cast their vote by electronic means on all the resolutions mentioned in the Notice. The Company
has fixed 22" September, 2023 as the Cut-off date for the purpose of determining eligibility of
shareholders to cast their votes by remote e-voting /e-voting during the AGM. The businesses as set
out in the Notice shall be transacted through voting by electronic means only.

In compliance with the relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI, the
Notice of 15" AGM and Annual Report 2022-23 are being sent through electronic mode only, to those
shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners as received
from National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) / Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(“CDSL”) as at the close of business hours on Friday, 15t September, 2023 and who have registered
their email address(es) with the Company/ RTA/ Depositories. The said documents are also available
on the website of the Company at www.emamirealty.com.

PAYEL
AGARWAL

regd. office : acropolis, 13th floor, 1858/1, rajdanga main road. kasba. kolkata 700107, west bengal. india
phone: 91 33 6625 1200, e-mail: info @ emamirealty.com, website: www.emamirealty.com
: CIN: L45400WB2008PLC121426
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Further, notice is also hereby given that pursuant to Regulation 42 of the Listing Regulations and
Section 91 of the Act, that the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will
remain closed from Friday, 22" September, 2023 to Friday, 29t September, 2023 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of the AGM of the Company.

Kindly take the above information on your record.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For Emami Realty Limited
PAYEL
AGARWAL

Payel Agarwal

Company Secretary
ACS 22418

Encl.: As above

regd. office : acropolis, 13th floor, 1858/1, rajdanga main road. kasba. kolkata 700107, west bengal. india
phone: 91 33 6625 1200, e-mail: info@emamirealty.com, website: www.emamirealty.com
CIN: L45400WB2008PLC121426
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Emami Realty Limited

CIN: L45400WB2008PLC121426
Regd. Off: Acropoilis, 13th Floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba, Kolkata-700 107,
Tel : 033 6625 1200; E-mail: infra@emamirealty.com Welbsite: www.emamirealty.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 15th Annual General
Meeting of the Members of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED
will be held on Friday, 29th September, 2023, at
11.30 AM. through Video Conferencing (“VC") /
Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to fransact the
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Standalone Financial Statements and the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2023 together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. Toappoint a Directorin place of Mr. Rajesh Bansal
(DIN: 00645035), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), applicable provisions of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), and
pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approval of the
Board of Directors, Mr. Amit Kiran Deb (DIN: 02107792),
who was appointed as an Additional Director under
the category of Independent Director pursuant to
the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the
Articles of Association of the Company and who
meets the criteria for independence under Section
149(6) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and in respect of whom the Company has received
a nofice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from
a shareholder proposing his candidature for the
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation
and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive
years with effect from 7th August, 2023 to 6th August,
2028.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the members
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
continuation of office of Mr. Amit Kirab Deb as an
Independent Director of the Company, on his
aftaining the age of 75 years during his term of 5
years commencing from 7th August, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and
things and take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper or expedient 1o give effect to this resolution.”

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in furtherance of the Resolution
passed by the Shareholders of the Company at
the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 30th September, 2020, for the appointment
of Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08756907) as the
Managing Director, designated as  “Managing
Director & CEQO”, for a period of 5 (Five) years
w.e.f. 30th June, 2020 on the terms and conditions
including remuneration mentioned therein and
pursuant to the provisions of the Sections 196, 197,
198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with relevant Rules
and Schedule V made thereunder ("Act”) (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof), the Articles of Association of the Company
and the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval of the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors, the consent
of the members be and is hereby accorded for
payment of remuneration to Dr. Nitesh Kumar
Gupta, Managing Director & CEO of the Company,
w.e.f. 30th June, 2023 for the unexpired period of
his tenure, as set out in the explanatory statement
forming part of this Nofice convening the meeting
and as enumerated in the Agreement dated 29th
May, 2023, a copy whereof, has been submitted
fo this meeting, which Agreement is also hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial
year during the currency of the tenure of Dr. Nitesh
Kumar Gupta, the Company has no profits or its
profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay
the remuneration as set out in the explanatory
statement and agreement dated 29th May, 2023 as
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minimum remuneration notwithstanding that such
remuneration is in excess of the limits specified in the
Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term
shall be deemed to include Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board) be and
is hereby authorized to alter and vary the terms
and conditions of the said appointment and / or
remuneration of Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta as it may
deem fit and as may be acceptable to him and to
do all acts, deeds and things as it may in its absolute
discretion deem necessary, as may be deemed
proper and expedient to give effect to this aforesaid
Resolution and to seftle any question or doubt that
may arise in the said regard.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulatfions, 2015, the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act), if any, read with relevant Rules, if any, as
amended from time to time, and the Company’s
Policy on Related Party Transactions and the consent
of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors,
consent of the members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded to the Material Related
Party Transaction(s) / Contfract(s)/ Arangement(s)
/ Agreement(s) hitherto entered or to be entered
into (whether by way of an individual fransaction or
fransactions taken together or a series of fransactions
or otherwise) between the Company and Premier
Ferro Alloys & Securities Limited, being related party
as detailed in the Explanatory Statement annexed to
this Notice, including any other transfer of resources,
services or obligations with the said related party, for
an aggregate value not exceeding ¥ 100 Crores
during any financial year.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the Company, to do all

such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
necessary, expedient or desirable including any
negotiation/ modification/ rafification/ amendments
to or termination thereof, of the above arrangement/
fransactions/ contracts and to perform all other
obligations in terms of such arangements/
fransactions/ contracts with the related party(ies)
and to settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that
may arise with regard to any of the transactions with
the related party.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the
Board, in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and
are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactments thereof for the time being in force),
the remuneration payable to M/s. V. K. Jain & Co.,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No 00049),
appointed as Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors
of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2023-
24 amounting to ¥ 30,000/- (Rupees Thirty Thousand
only), exclusive of tax and out of pocket expenses,
bbe and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorised to do all such
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
For Emami Realty Limited

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A22418

Kolkata
7™ August, 2023



Notes:

1.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide General
Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December,
2022 read with General Circulars No. 14/2020
dated 8th April, 2020, No. 17/2020 dated 13th
April, 2020, No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020,
No. 39/2020 dated 31st December, 2020, No.
02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, No. 19/2021
dated 8th December, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated
14th December, 2021 and No. 2/2022 dated
5th May, 2022 (collectively referred to as *“MCA
Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual
General Meeting ("AGM") through VC/OAVM,
without the physical presence of the Members at
a common venue. The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its Circular No. SEBI/
HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January
2023 (referred to as “SEBI Circular”) has provided
certain relaxations from compliance with
certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended ('SEBI Listing Regulations’).
Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), SEBI Listing
Regulations and the MCA Circulars, the 15th
AGM of the Company is being held through VC
/ OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, @ Member
entitled to aftend and vote at the AGM is also
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be
a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is
being conducted through VC/OAVM, physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip including Route map are not
annexed to this Nofice.

The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/
OAVM from its Registered Office, i.e, Acropolis,
13th Floor, 1858/1, Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba,
Kolkata — 700107, which shall be deemed to be
the venue of the meeting.

Corporate members (i.e. other than individual /
HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned
certifiedtrue copy (PDF/ JPEG Format) of the Board
or Governing body Resolution/ Authorization etc.
authorizing their representative to attend the
AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to
vote through remote e-voting. A scanned copy
of the Board Resolution and Power of Aftorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format on the CDSL e-voting platform for the
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scrutinizer to verify the same. Alternatively Non
Individual shareholders are required to send the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority lefter etc.
together with affested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatories who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer at scrutinizermko@
gmail.com and to the Company at infra@
emamirealty.com or to Maheshwari Datamatics
Pvt. Ltd., Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the
Company ("RTA") at mdpldc@yahoo.com with
a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com if they have voted from individual tab &
not uploaded the same in the CDSL e-voting
system for the scrutinizer to verify.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose
name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the
Company will be entitled to vote electronically
during the AGM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 21 of the
Act, the Register of Members and Share Transfer
Book of the Company shall remain closed from
Friday, 22nd September, 2023 to Friday, 29th
September, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of this AGM,

The related Explanatory Statement pursuant to
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of the businesses under item nos. 3, 4, 5
and 6 as set out above is annexed hereto.

The details of Directors seeking appointment / re-
appointment and/ or fixation of remuneration,
in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and the Act (including Secretarial
Standard-2 on General Meetings), are annexed
hereto and forms part of this Nofice.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors
are inferested maintained under Section 189
of the Act, would be available electronically
for inspection by the Members during the AGM.
All documents referred to in the Notice shall be
made available for inspection electronically,
from the date of circulation of this Nofice, unfil
the date of AGM, on receipt of a request by the
Company at infra@emamirealty.com.

. In accordance with the aforesaid MCA and

SEBI Circulars, Notice of the 15th AGM along
with the Annual Report 2022-23 are being sent
only through electronic mode to the memlbers
whose email addresses are registered with the
Company or relevant Depositories. In case
any member is desirous of obtaining physical

3
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11,

12.

13.

copy of the Annual Report for the financial year
2022-23, he/she may send a request to the
Company by writing at infra@emamirealty.com
mentioning their Folio No./DP ID and Client ID.

Those shareholders who have not yet registered
their email address are requested to get their
email addresses registered by following the
procedure given below:

a. In light of the MCA Circulars, shareholders
who have not registered their email address
and in conseguence could not receive
the Notice may temporarily get their email
registered by contacting or writing a mail to
Mr. S. K. Chaubey, Maheshwari Datamatics
Pvt. Ltd., Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
(‘RTA), atthe emailid - mdpldc@yahoo.com
or Mrs. Payel Agarwal, Company Secretary
at the email id - infra@emamirealty.com.
Post successful registration of the email,
the shareholder would get soft copy of
the Notice and the procedure for e-voting.
In case of any queries, shareholder may
write 10 mdpldc@yahoo.com or infra@
emamirealty.com

b. It is clarified that for permanent registration
of email address, the shareholders are
however requested to register their email
address, in respect of electronic holdings
with the Depository through the concerned
Depository Participants and in respect of
physical holdings with the Company’s RTA,
by following due procedure.

c. Those shareholders who have dlready
registered their email address are
requested to keep their email addresses
validated with their Depository Participants
/ the Company’s RTA 10 enable servicing
of nofices / documents / Annual Reports
electronically to their email address.

Members may also note that the Notice of 15th
AGM and the Annual Report forthe Financial Year
2022-23 including therein the Audited Financial
Statements will be available on the Company’s
website at www.emamirealty.com, websites of
BSE and NSE at www.bseindia.com and www.
nseindia.com, respectively and website of CDSL
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting
facility and e-Voting system during the AGM) at
www.evotingindia.com for their view/download.

The holders of Physical shares are being
infimated that SEBI vide its Circular dated 16th
March, 2023 has prescribed common and
simplified norms for processing investor’s service

14.

requests relating to updating of PAN, KYC details,
Nomination, etc. and has prescribed Form ISR 1
for this purpose.

Furthermore, SEBI has made it mandatory to
provide PAN of all the holders, contact details,
viz., complete postal address with pin code,
mobile number, and e-mail address, and Bank
account details viz.,, bank name & branch,
account number and IFSC Code. These would
be validated by the RTA through the mobile and
email address furnished.

On or after 1st October 2023, in case any of
the above cited documents/ details are not
available in the Folio(s), RTA shall be constrained
to freeze such Folio(s). Folios remaining frozen Hill
31st December 2025 will be referred by the RTA/
Company to the administering authority under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988
and/ or Prevention of Money Laundering Act,
2002.

No service requests would be processed in
respect of such frozen folios unless and until the
specified information has been furnished. Also,
payment of dividends would be only through
electronic mode for which intimation would be
furnished.

Frozen folios would be reverted to normal status
by RTA only upon the prescribed information has
been furnished or the entire shares under the
folio dematerialized.

In case PAN has not been linked to Aadhaar the
related folios shall also be frozen.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its
Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _ RTAMB/P/
CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022 has
mandated the listed companies fo issue
securities in dematerialized form only while
processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate
securities certificate; claim from unclaimed
suspense account; renewal / exchange of
securities certificate; endorsement; subdivision
/ splitting of securities certificate; consolidation
of securities cerfificates / folios; transmission
and transposition.  Accordingly, Members
are requested to make service requests by
submitting a duly filed and signed Form ISR — 4.
It may be noted that any service request can be
processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

. SEBI vide its nofification dated 24th January,

2022 has mandated that all requests for
fransfer of securities including fransmission and
fransposition requests shall be processed only in
dematerialized form. In view of the same and to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares



16.

17.

and avail various benefits of dematerialisation,
Members are advised to dematerialise the
shares held by them in physical form. Members
can contact the Company or RTA, for assistance
in this regard.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act,
and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding
shares in physical form may file nomination
in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the RTA. In
respect of shares held in dematerialized form,
the nomination may be filed with the respective
Depository Participants.

SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every paricipant
in securities market. Members holding shares
in electronic form are, therefore requested to
submit the PAN to the Depository Participant with
whom they are maintaining the DEMAT account.
Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their copy of PAN o the Company.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING
DURING THE AGM:

18.

19.

20.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of
the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
and other relevant rules made thereunder, as
amended, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December,
2020, in relation to e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Entities, the Company is providing e-voting
facility to the members, through the e-voting
services provided by Central Depository Services
(India) Limited ("CDSL"), on all the resolutions set
forth in this Notice.

Memibers may cast their votes on electronic
voting system from any place (remote e-voting).
The remote e-voting period commences on
Sunday, 24th September, 2023 (10:00 a.m. IST)
and ends on Thursday, 28th September, 2023
(5:00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members
holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on Friday, 22nd
September, 2023 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. The
voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion
to their share in the paid-up equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Manoj
Kumar Banthia, Practicing Company Secretary,
failing him, Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Practicing
Company Secretary, both being Partners of M/s.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.
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MKB & Associates, Company Secretaries, Kolkata
to act as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote
e-voting process in afairand fransparent manner
and he has communicated his willingness to
be appointed and will be available for the said
purpose.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the
AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
below for Remote e-voting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-Voting system available during the AGM.

If any vote is cast by the shareholders through
the e-voting available during the AGM and if
the same shareholders have not participated
in the meeting through VC/ OAVM facility, then
the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting
during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

The Members who have cast their vote by
remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
aftend/ participate in the AGM through VC /
OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
again.

The voting rights of Members shall be in
proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off
date. A person who is not a Memiber as on the
cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for
information purpose only.

All grievances connected with the facility for
voting by electronic means may be addressed
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central
Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
25th  Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal  Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on
022-23058542/43.

Any person, holding shares in physical form and
non-individual shareholders, who acquire shares
of the Company and become a Member of
the Company after sending of the Notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date, may
obtain the login ID and password by sending
a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
However, if he/she is already registered with
CDSL for remote e-voting then he/she can use
his/her existing User ID and password for casting
the vote.
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28.

In case of Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and who acquire
shares of the Company and become a
Member of the Company after sending of the
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date
may follow steps mentioned below under “Login
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting
for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode.”

The details of the process and manner for
remote e-voting are explained herein below:

CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 on
“e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”,
e-Voting process has been enabled to all the
individual demat account holders, by way of
single login credential, through their demat
accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order
to increase the efficiency of the voting process.
Individual demat account holders would be able
fo cast their vote without having to register again
with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby
not only facilitating seamless authentication but
also ease and convenience of participating in

A. Login method for e-voting and joining virtual Voi
meeting for individual shareholders holding e-Voling process.
securities in demat mode: Shareholders are advised to update their mobile
In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD/ number and email Id in their demat accounts in
order to access e-Voting facility.
Type of Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
Shareholders user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
holding without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
securities in https.//web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on
Demat mode Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
with CDSL 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there are also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, optfion to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiReqistration
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.
Individual 1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website
Shareholders of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com
holding either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services
securities in is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available
demat mode under 'IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
with NSDL Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on "Access fo e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available af
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www. evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be redirected to e-Voting service provider welbsite for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login,
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can
see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider welbsite for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual  Shareholders  holding | Members facing any fechnical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

or confact at foll free numiber 1800 22 5533

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll

free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

B. Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for physical shareholders and shareholders
other than individual holding in demat mode:

()  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
(i) Click on “Shareholders” tab.

(i) Now Enter your User ID:
a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Numlber registered with the
Company.

(iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on 1o www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vi) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
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For Members holding shares in Demat Form and

in Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric
*PAN  issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as

physical shareholders)

o Shareholders who have not
updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository  Participant
are requested to use the sequence
number sent by the Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA.

DOB Enter the Date of Bith as recorded

in your demat account or in the
company records for the said demat
account or folio in  dd/mm/yyyy
format.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as
Bank recorded in your demat account or
Details in the Company records for the said

demat account or folio.

Please enter the DOB or Dividend
Bank Details in order to login. If the
details are not recorded with the
depository or Company please enter
the member id/ folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field.

(vii) After entering these details appropriately,
click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Members holding shares in physical form will
then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares
in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation” menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the demat
holders for voting for resolutions of any
other company on which they are eligible
to vote, provided that company opfts for
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care
1o keep your password confidential.

(ix) For Members holding shares in physical
form, the details can be used only for
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notfice.

(x) Click on the EVSN for “EMAMI
LIMITED”.

(x) On the vofing page, you wil see
"RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the

REALTY

same the option "YES/NO” for voting. Select
the option YES or NO as desired. The option
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to
the Resolution.

(xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you
wish 1o view the entire Resolution details.

(xiii) After selecting the resolution you have
decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you
wish to confirm your vote, click on *OK”, else
to change your vote, click on *CANCEL
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the
resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote,

(xv) You can also take out print of the voting
done by you by clicking on *CLICK HERE TO
PRINT” option on the Voting page.

(xvi) If Demat account holder has forgotten the
login password then enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on
"FORGQOT PASSWORD" & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

(xvii) There is also an optional provision to upload
BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

(xviii)Additional Facility for Institutional
Shareholders & Custodians- for Remote
Voting only.

e Insfitutional Shareholders (i.e. other
than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register
themselves as Corporates and
Custodians respectively.

e A scanned copy of the Registration
Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com.

* Affer receiving the login details a
Compliance User should be created
using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to
link the account(s) which they wish to
vote on.

* The list of accounts should be mailed
to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they
would be able to cast their vote.



e |t is mandatory that, a scanned copy
of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify
the same.

e Alternatively Non-Individual
shareholders are required o
mandatorily send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. fogether
with  aftested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory
who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer at  scrutinizermkb@gmail.
com and to the Company at infro@
emamirealty com or to M/s Maheshwari
Datamatics Pvt. Ltd., Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent of the Company at
mdpldc@yahoo.com with a copy
marked fo helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same
in the CDSL e-voting system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues
regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQS”)
and e-vofing manual available at
www.evotingindia.co.in under help section
or write an email fo helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com

PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC/
OAVM:

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

The procedure for aftending meeting & e-Voting
on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC will be available in shareholder/
members login where the EVSN of the Company
is displayed.

Members are encouraged fo join the Meeting
through Laptops / iPads for better experience.

Further, Members will be required to allow
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturoance during the Meeting.

Please note that participants connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended

34.

35.

36.
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to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

For convenience of the Members and proper
conduct of AGM, Members can login and join
at least 15 (fifteen) minutes before the time
scheduled for the AGM and shall be kept open
throughout the proceedings of AGM.

Members aftending the AGM through VC / OAVM
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

If you have any queries or issues regarding
attending AGM, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (“FAQs”) or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdsl.com or contact Mr.
Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi
(022-23058542) fromn CDSL.

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS DURING THE AGM:

37.

Members who would like to express their views
or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending email from
their registered email address mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID/ folio number, PAN,
mobile number to infra@emamirealty.com
upto Safurday, 23rd September, 2023. Those
members who have registered themselves
as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ ask questions during the AGM.
The Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of questions and number of speakers,
as appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM.

OTHER INFORMATION

38.

39.

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of AGM,
first count the votes cast at the AGM and then
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting.
The scrutinizer shall submit the consolidated
scrutinizer’s report, not later than 48 (forty-
eight) hours of conclusion of the Meeting, o
the Managing Director or any other person
authorized by the Board.

The results declared along with the consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the
Company’s  website  www.emamirealty.com
and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.
com immediately after the results are declared
and simultaneously communicated to the Stock
Exchanges where the Company’s shares are
listed. Subject to receipt of requisite number of
votes, the resolutions set out in the Nofice shalll
be deemed to be passed on the date of the
AGM i.e. September 29, 2023.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ltem No. 3

Appointment of Mr. Amit Kiran Deb (DIN: 02107792)
as an Independent Director of the Company

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, appointed Mr. Amit Kiran Deb (DIN:
02107792) as an Additional Director under the
category of Non-Executive Independent Director for
a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from 7™ August,
2023 to 6™ August, 2028, not liable to retire by
rofation, subject to the approval of shareholders to
be obtained in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(FAGM").

The Company has also received from Mr. Amit Kiran
Deb (i) consent to act as Director, in Form DIR-2
pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qudlification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii)
disclosure in Form DIR-8 pursuant o Rule 14(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not
disqualified under sub section (2) of Section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (i) declaratfion to the
effect that he meets the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act, Rules
thereunder and under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has received notice under Section
160 of the Act from a shareholder proposing the
candidature of Mr. Amit Kiran Deb for the office
of Independent Director of the Company. In the
opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Amit Kiran
Deb fulfills the conditions specified in the Act, Rules,
and SEBI Listing Regulations, for appointment as
an Independent Director of the Company. He is
independent of management and possesses the
appropriate  skills, experience, and knowledge
required for the discharge of his duties as an
Independent Director. His vast knowledge and
varied experience will be of immense value to the
Company. Accordingly, the Board considers that
the appointment of Mr. Amit Kiran Deb would be of
immense benefit to the Company. Mr. Amit Kiran
Deb during his tenure as Independent Director of the
Company will be attaining the age of 75 years. This
approval of shareholders by special resolution must
also be taken as approval under Regulation 17(1A)
of the SEBI Listing Reqgulations for his continuance as
independent director after attaining the age of 75
years.

Copy of the lefter of appointment of Mr. Amit
Kiran Deb setting out the terms and conditions
of appointment shall be available for inspection
by the Members electronically. Members seeking
to inspect the same are requested to follow the
procedure mentioned in the Notes 1o AGM Notice.
Mr. Amit Kiran Deb shall be paid remuneration by
way of sitting fees for aftending meetings of the
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Board or Committees thereof, as applicable, and
reimbursement of expenses for participating in such
meetings.

Pursuant to Regulation 25(2A) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the appointment of Mr. Amit Kiran
Deb is subject to the approval of shareholders by
way of Special Resolution. The Board of Directors
recommends the Special Resolution as set out
at item no. 3 for approval of shareholders of the
Company.

Except Mr. Amit Kiran Deb, being the appointee
and his relatives, none of the other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives are concerned or interested financially or
otherwise, in the resolution set out.

Additional information in respect of Mr. Amit Kiran
Deb, pursuant to the provisions of (i) SEBI Listing
Regulations and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings ("5S-2"), issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India is annexed 1o this Notice.

Item No. 4

Approval for payment of remuneration to Dr. Nitesh
Kumar Gupta, Managing Director & CEO

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta was appointed as the
Managing Director & CEO of the Company w.e.f.
30™ June, 2020 for a period of 5 years which has
been approved by the shareholders in their 12
Annual General Meeting held on 30" September,
2020. Further, the payment of remuneration to
Dr. Nitesh Kumar was approved for a period of 3
years in terms of Schedule V to the Act. Based on
the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee
and subject to the approval of members, the Board
in its meeting held on 29" May, 2023 has approved
payment of following remuneration to Dr. Nitesh
Kumar, w.e.f. 30th June, 2023 for the unexpired
period of his tenure upto 29" June, 2025:

a. Basic Salary in the range of ¥ 6,00,000/- to
% 15,00,000/- per month, with such annual
increment within the above range, as may
be recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time
and approved by the Board of Directors, subject
to compliance with the conditions specified in
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Perquisites and other benefits;

Besides the above salary, Dr. Nitesh Kumar
will be entitled to the perquisites and other
benefits including House Rent Allowance, Meal
Allowance, Children Allowance and/or any
other allowance/perquisite as may be decided
by the Board.



c. Gratuity will be payable as per Rules of the
Company.

d. Leave as per Rules of the Company, including
encashment of un-availed leave at the end of
tenure.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
contained, wherein the financial year during the
currency of the tenure of Dr. Nitesh Kumar, the
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate,
the Company will pay to Dr. Nitesh Kumar,
remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites
and allowances, and incentive as specified above
as minimum remuneration.,

This resolution is being proposed as a special
resolution in view of the relevant provisions of
Schedule V fo the Act requiring a special resolution
for payment of remuneration in the event of loss or
inadequacy of profits.

The necessary information/disclosure in compliance
with Secretarial Standard (SS-2) issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India and Schedule V to
the Act, relating to Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta has been
provided in a separate section of this Notice.

Your Directors seek your approval to the said
resolution. Except Dr. Nitesh Kumar and his relatives,
none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of
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the Company and their relatives, are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.

Copy of the agreement dated 29th May, 2023
referred above shall be open for inspection by the
Members in electronic mode. Members seeking
to inspect the same are requested to follow the
procedure mentioned in the Notes to AGM Notice

Item No. 5
Approval to Related Party Transaction

Your Company has availed inter-corporate loan
from Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Limited, being a
Promoter Group Company, for its general corporate
purposes, at a rafe being in line with prevailing
market rate. The Promoters and Promoter Group of
Emami Realty collectively hold 19.16% shareholding
in the said Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Limited
and accordingly, the Company has decided to
obtain approval of the members for entering into /
continuing with the transactions with the said Premier
Ferro Alloys & Securities Limited including ratification
of past fransactions with the said entity.

The other related information as envisaged under
the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, are furnished
hereunder:

SI. | Particulars

No.
1. Name of the Related Party and its relationship with the | Name: Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities
listed entity or its subsidiary, including nature of its concern | Limited
or interest (financial or otherwise) Relationship: Promoter Group Company
2. | Type, material terms and particulars of the proposed | Loan taken
fransactions Interest on Loan
3. Tenure of the proposed transaction (particular tenure | Recurring transaction
shall be specified)
4. | Value of the proposed fransaction The aggregate value shall not exceed
% 100 Crores during any financial year
5. | The percentage of the Company’s annual consolidated | 104 percent (approx.)
tfumover, for the immediately preceding financial
year, that is represented by the value of the proposed
fransaction
6. If the fransaction relates 1o any loans, inter-corporate | Not Applicable

deposits, advances or investments made or given by the

listed entity or its subsidiary:

i) details of the source of funds in connection with the
proposed fransaction;

i) where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make
or give loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments: nature of indebtedness, cost of funds
and tenure;

i) applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest
rate and repayment schedule, whether secured or
unsecured; if secured, the nature of security; and

iv) the purpose for which the funds will be utilized by the
ultimate beneficiary of such funds pursuant to the RPT.
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Justification as to why the RPTs are in the interest of the
listed entity

The funds borowed through Inter
corporate loan is being utilized for meeting
the business requirements, repayment
of existing loans and general corporate
purposes which is in the interest of the
Company.

A copy of the valuation or other external party repor, if
any such report has been relied upon;

The transactions do not contemplate any
Valuation

A statement that the valuation or other external report,
if any, relied upon by the listed entity in relation o the
proposed transactions will be made available through
the registered e-mail address of the shareholders;

The transactions do not contemplate any
Valuation

10.

Percentage of the counter-pary’s annual consolidated
turnover that is represented by the value of the proposed

458 percent (approx.)

RPT on a voluntary basis

11. | Any other information that may be relevant

None

The Audit Committee has approved the abovesaid
related party fransactions and has noted that these
fransactions are in the ordinary course of business
and are at arm’s length.

Accordingly, approval of the members is sought
under Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
for entering into/ ratification of related pary
fransaction as mentioned above, by way of an
ordinary resolution.

Your Directors recommend the resolution for
members’ approval by way of an Ordinary Resolution.,

None of the Directors, KMPs or their relatives,
are concemed or inferested or deemed to be
concerned or inferested, financially or otherwise, in
the aforesaid resolution.

Item No. 6
Approval of payment to Cost Auditors

Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on 7" August,
2023, has re-appointed M/s. V. K. Jain & Co., Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No 00049), as Cost
Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the
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cost records of the Company for the financial year
2023-24 at a remuneration of ¥ 30,000/- (Rupees
Thirty Thousand only), exclusive of applicable taxes
and out of pocket expenses. As per the provisions
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder, the remuneration to be
paid to the cost auditors is subject to ratification by
the members of the Company.

Accordingly, your Directors seek your approval to
the resolution at item no. 6 by way of an ordinary
resolution, for ratification of payment of remuneration
to the Cost Auditors for Financial years 2023-24.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives, are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in this Resolution.

By Order of the Board
For Emami Realty Limited

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A22418

Kolkata
7™ August, 2023
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment /
fixation of remuneration at the Annual General Meeting

Name of the Mr. Amit Kiran Deb Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Mr. Rajesh Bansal
Director
DIN 02107792 08756907 00645035
Date of Birth 26.12.1948 23.05.1971 03.09.1962
Age (in years) 74 years 52 years 61 years
Qualification M.A. in Political Science | PhD aswell as a Double Post | B.Com (Hons)
from Allahabad University | Graduate in Management
in 1969, Joined Indian
Administrative Service (IAS)
in 1971
Experience Mr.  Amit  Kiran Deb, |He has a ftrailblazing |He has rich experience in
(including Retired I.A.S'Officer, is the | experience of over 30|the Real Estate Industry
expertise in former  Chief Secretary | years and has served over [and is a member  of

specific functional

areas)/ Brief
resume

of Government of West
Bengal. He also served as
the Commissioner Cum
Secretary (Education and
Social Welfare Department,
Government of Tripura),
and Joint Secretary
(Cabinet Secretariat),
and Joint Secretary
(Department Of Electronics,
Government Of India).

He possesses more than
40 vyears of experience
in Administration,
strategy formulation, and
Management.

15 years as Senior level
Management.

His fields of expertise
pans through real estate
development, strategic
planning, marketing,
mergers & acquisitions
and branding. He is a keen
planner and strategist with
expertise in new product
launching, new business
& market development,
product positioning and
achieving sales and
profitability targets for the
company.

He has served in various
capacities in many top
corporates including
Indiabulls Real Estate Ltd.
He is a wizard in tumkey
management to actualize
a real estate development
vision into a reality, From
feasibility  studies, land
acquisitions,  architectural
planning in coordination
with — architects, business
development, marketing
strategies, advertising &
PR to Post-Sales Appraisals
and CRM, is his forte. He
possess wide exposure in
HR, General Administration
and Operations too.

Bundelkhand Chamber of
Commerce. He has been
instfrumental in acquisition
of approximately around
1200-1300 Acres of land in
Jhansi of Uttar Pradesh and
Indore/ Khajuraha/ Oreha/
Guna of Madhya Pradesh
for Emmami Group.

Date of
appointment
the Board

first
on

7 August, 2023

30™ June, 2020

227 July, 2016
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Terms and | Appointed as an | Fixation of remuneration of | Retirement by rotation and
Conditions of | Independent Director for a | Managing Director & CEQO | re-appointment
Appointment/ Re- | term of 5 (five) consecutive | w,e,f, 30th June, 2023 for
appointment years, not liable to retire by | the unexpired period of
rofation, from 7™ August, | his tenure upto 29th June,
2023 to 6™ August, 2028 2025
Last drawn | Not Applicable Refer Corporate | Refer Corporate
remuneration Governance Report | Governance Report
section of the Annual|section of the Annual
Report 2022-23 Report 2022-23
Details of No approval sought for | Refer Explanatory | No  approval  sought  for
Remuneration remuneration Statement remuneration
sought to be paid
Shareholding in | NIL NIL NIL
the Company
Number of | 1 (one) out of 1(one) Board | Refer Corporate | Refer Corporate
meetings of the | Meefing held since his| Governance Report | Governance Report
Board attended | appointment. section of the Annual|section of the Annual
during the Report 2022-23 Report 2022-23

financial year

Directorships in
other companies

+ Bengal Ambuja Housing
Development Ltd.

« Skipper Limited

« India Power Corporation
Limited

+ B &A Limited

« Century Plyboards
(Indiq) Ltd.

« Star Cement Limited

+ Meghalaya Power
Limited

« Emami Paper  Mills
Limited

. South City
(Kolkata) Limited

» Delta PV Pvt. Ltd.

Projects

 Prime Constructions
Private Limited
* Vriddhi Commercial

Private Limited

» Roseview Developers (P)
Ltd

« Sneha Ashiana Private
Limited

+ New Age Realty Private
Limited

« A A Infraproperties
Private Limited

«  Namo Edu Infrastructure
Private Limited

*  Aluminium
Limited

Industries

» Philipose Resorts Private
Limited

*  Muskan
Private Limited

Infrabuild

« S N Industries Private
Limited

 Dev Infracity Private
Limited

* RQgj Infraproperties
Private Limited

+ Vibu Infraproperties

Private Limited
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Membership/
Chairmanship

of Committees
of the Boards of
other Companies
(includes

only Audit &
Stakeholders’
Relationship
Committee)

» Bengal Ambuja Housing
Development Ltd.

- Audit Committee:
Member

« Skipper Limited

- Audit Committee:
Chairman

- Stakeholders’
Relationship
Committee:
Chairman

« India Power Corporation
Limited
- Audit Committee:
Chairman

- Stakeholders’
Relationship
Committee:
Chairman

» Star Cement Limited

- Audit Committee:
Chairman
*  Meghalaya Power
Limited
- Audit Committee:
Member
e Emami Paper Mills
Limited
- Audit Committee:
Member

None

None

Relationship with
other directors or
KMP

None

None

None
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Disclosures as required under Section Il, Part Il of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of ltem No. 4 is stated herein below:

I. General information:
Nature of Industry: Real Estate Development

2 Date orexpected date of commmencement of commercial production: The Company was incorporated
on January 04, 2008 as a private limited company. The Company had since commenced the business

3 In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved
by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable

4 The financial performance of the Company during the preceding three financial years is as under:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
Total Income 10,250 21,709 33,230
Total Expenses 16,088 20,030 32,359
Profit/(Loss) Before tax (5.838) 1,679 871
Profit/(Loss) After tax (4,389) 1,325 288

5 Foreign investments or collaborators, if any

Il. Information about the appointee: Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
1 | Background details:

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta is a PhD as well as a Double Post Graduate in Management. With a trailblazing
experience of over 30 years, he has served over 15 years as Senior level Management.

2 | Past remuneration:
During the Financial Year 2022-23, Dr. Kumar received remuneration of ¥ 196.89 Lakhs

3 | Recognition or awards: Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta was honored with the prestigious title “Sustainable-
Business Leader of the Year” at 15™ Realty+ Conclave & Excellence Awards
2023 (East) and as the “"Realty Personality of the Year” at Real Estate Conclave
& Awards’ 2022 (East).

4 | Job profile and his suitability:

Dr. Kumar plays a pivotal role in the Company’s projects having pan India presence. His fields of
expertise pans through real estate development, strategic planning, marketing, mergers & acquisitions
and branding. He is a keen planner and strategist with expertise in new product launching, new
business & market development, product positioning and achieving sales and profitability targets
for the company. Having qudlities of an inspirational leader coupled with entrepreneurial skills, strong
business acumen and analytical skills, he believes in ground zero hands-on management 1o improvise
proven management tools. Leading from the front, Kumar evolves a team culture that emphasizes the
importance of members and recognizes the value they bring to the organization. He has amassed
extensive industry experience in identifying growth opportunities and undertaking negotiations for
strategic partnerships in new markets. His across-the-board experience and strategic decision making
has facilitated writing several commmercial success stories.

5 | Remuneration proposed: As set out in the Explanatory Statement

6 | Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and
person: The remuneration o e paid to Dr. Kumar is in line with remuneration paid by other companies,
keeping in view his job profile, the size of operations and complexity of business of the Company.

7 | Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the managerial

personnel, if any: Apart from receiving remuneration as stated above, he has no pecuniary relationship
with the Company. Dr. Kumar is not related to any Director of the Company.
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Other Information:

1 |Reasons of loss or|The Projects launched by the Company are either in progress or in advanced
inadequate profits stage of compiletion. Although we have been able to generate booking of
2 | Steps taken or | sales, yet the revenue from the said Projects will be recognized in the accounts
proposed to be taken |iN subsequent years in accordance with the guiding principles of Indian
for improvement Accounting Standards. Total bookings during the year across all launches was
. —1 451 units representing 9.85 Lakhs sq.ft., having sales value of ¥ 303 Crores.
3 | Expected increase in
productivity and profits | Normal product cycle of a project in the real estate company is at least 4-6
in measurable terms | yeqrs, Hence looking at the response which these projects have witnessed,
the Company is very positive that in the coming years, we will be able to show
stronger results than before.
Your Company is well positioned to capitalize the opportunities and plans to
launch new projects in the next eight quarters, having total saleable area of 11
mn sq.ft. and revenue potential of ¥ 6,000 Crores. These projects are at various
stages of design and development.
IV. Disclosures:
1 | Remuneration package of the managerial personnel: As set out in the Explanatory Statement
2 | Disclosures to be mentioned in the Board of Director’s Report under the head “Corporate Governance”,

if any, attached to the Annual Report: Attached with the Director’s Report.
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Key Projects
Modern and aesthetic designs with innovation and technology

at the core gaining phenomenal response from the market

MD & CEO’s Message [2¥e]
Focus & Innovation - Hallmark of our growth strategy 'I 6

 DELIVERING

FOCUS. INNOVATION. EXCELLENCE.

For a digital copy of the
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FORWARD
LOOKING STATEMENT

In this Annual Report, we have

disclosed forward-looking information

to enable investors to comprehend our
prospects and take investment decisions. This
report and other statements - written and oral
- that we periodically make, contain forward-
looking statements that set out anficipated
results based on the management’s plans
and assumptions. We have tried wherever
possible to identify such statements by

using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’,
‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘infends’, ‘plans’,
‘believes’ and words of similar substance

in connection with any discussion of future
performance. We cannot guarantee that
these forward-looking statements will be
realised, although we believe we have been
prudent in assumptions. The achievements
of results are subject 1o risks, uncertainties
and even inaccurate assumptions. Should
known or unknown risks or uncertainties
materialise, or should underlying assumptions
prove inaccurate, actual results could vary
materially from those anticipated, estimated,
or projected, readers should keep this in mind.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update
any forward-looking statements, whether
because of new information, future events or
otherwise.
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PROJECTS DEVELOPED

EMAMI REALTY LTD

has always believed in the philosophy
of delivering MORE.

P
-\‘../'

FOCUS
INNOVATION
EXCELLENCE

Our focused approach has consistently served as a
comerstone of our success throughout the years. We have
diligently explored opportunities within the industry, capitalizing
on favourable market conditions to our advantage.

Our commitment to innovation is evident through the adoption
of cufting-edge processes and technologies. It reflects our
commitment to customers which goes beyond just delivering
high-quality projects and services.

Our pursuit of excellence is prominently showcased in our
projects. These projects not only generate value for all
stakeholders, but also elevate the standards and benchmarks
of quality within the Indian real estate sector.

Through a synthesis of visionary strategies and unparalleled
execution, Emami Realty Ltd has solidified its position as a true
pioneer, committed to surpassing expectations.

34 LakHs sa. Fr. 2629

PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPEMENT UNITS DELIVERED




Emami Realty Limited

OUR FOUNDERS

Mr. R. S. GOENKA (Standing) & Mr. R. S. AGARWAL (Sitting)
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EMAMI REALTY LTD

AN ORGANIZATION THAT CONSISTENTLY ADDS MORE VALUE ADDITION

With each project we construct, we create an everlasting
foundation of trust.

Emami Realty Ltd (also referred to as ERL or ‘the Company’ or ‘we’, heredafter) is the real estate
arm of the prestigious Emnami Group. We have substantially evolved from our humble beginnings
in 2008 and have consistently set benchmarks in the real estate projects in the residential,
commercial and retail space. Serving over several families and several reputed corporates, we
have consistently grown our business through relentless client focus, operational excellence and
exceptional project execution. This commitment has enriched the lives of our stakeholders while
consistently elevating industry standards.

Key Partnerships

We are committed fo excellence in design and
constfruction, by partnering with internationally L LE
acclaimed names like Moshe Safdie, L&T, Meinhardt

Singapore, SRSS Singapore, Green Architects

Thailand, Sanjay Puri & Associates and Kapadia
Associates, among others. 2 00 8

Vision Year of Inception
e Building a realty brand that is inherently

reassuring to investors and inspires confidence I'h_
in home buyers.

Delivering superior value with eco-friendly

materials, amenities and lifestyle.
6 CITIES

Blending technology and sustainability for a
more conscious and discerning era Presence

Mission
@ To build for a sustainable tomorrow with the highest

quality standards. Imbibe excellence and ethical

practices in everything that we do, fo maximise
value for our customers and become employers of .I 2 6
first choice.

Employees
Values IOy

Credibility & Sustainability

Innovation & Superior Value Proposition
Customer Orientation

Attention fo Detail 'I 6 8 6

T k & Work Envi t ACRES
eamworl ‘ork Environmen

Social Responsibility Lond Bonk
Care for Environment
Safety o o
Integrity

Simple Living High Thinking

Annual Report 2022-23 | 3
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ENCOURAGING INDUSTRY STATISTICS IN THE RESIDENTIAL SPACE

t Emnami Realty, our consistent focus on the industry frends No.of Uty e e
allowed us to anticipate the industry shiffs and aligned us to o
respond fo the evolving needs of the industry. ) EEFRE
In the past year, India stood out as the world’s fastest-growing major economy, providing a glimmer 160000 = B § 2 3 2 . . & o § - d E
of hope in a challenging global economic situation. As we entered 2023, although the global 1,40,000 % 88 8~ E g 2 = 3823 s B 2
economy didn't see significant improvement, people worldwide showed more confidence in 20000 = 8 2 - sg CCgms : 3

91,739
94,997

89,509
89,139

India. The Government’s sustained focus on urbanisation, RBI's constant support and increasing
aspirational and educated population are driving the demand. Big cities in India have seen more
people wanting homes, mainly because many people aspire to live in these areas. As such,
residential real estate demand in India scaled a nine-year high. The commercial and retail space
also posted a robust recovery compared to markets in the developed world, indicating a clear shift
of demand to pre-pandemic levels.

1,00,000

68,702
62,738

80,000

40,832

60,000
40,000

20,000

H2 2021

H1 2022

0
On the back of these positive initiatives, during the year "Emami Aastha” one of our key residential

projects has won laurels as “Themed Project of the Year”, *Design Project of the Year” *Consumer

Connect Initiative of the Year”, "Residential Project —Theme Based (Metro: Ongoing)” and “Residential Source: Knight Frank Research
Project — Villa (Metro: Ongoing)” and “Emami City” has been recognized as “Architectural Project —
Residential (Metro)”.

H1 2015
H2 2015
H12016
H2 2016
H1 2017
H2 2017
H1 2018
H2 2018
H1 2019
H2 2019
H2 2020
H1 2021
H2 2022
H1 2023

India ticket size split comparison of India ticket size split comparison of sales during H1 2022 and H1 2023
KEY DRIVE R s sales during H1 2022 and H1 2023 Mid segment sales [ Prernium Segment Sales © 2 2
— = =}
M <5mn  [lI5-10mn B <10mn o = - © -
I 3 - 2 8
= LE 100% 8 S & . S 8 S %
Residential Commercial and Retail o0% = 8 - 3 o 2 o & |7
I — \ , 80% 25% & i o 2
*  Rising per capita income + Favourable economic environment - 2 o M . =
0, jary N w0 =
» Evolving aspiration and awareness » Strong demand traction by the Indio- 8 7o 3 3 2 S 3 @ &
H H @ 0/ O ~ N
Rapid urbanization facing businesses 5 :Ej 8 i - °8 2 &
Srowing workforce +  Improving volume offtake in the key service 5 So 8
o nuclear families sectors like BFSI, healthcare, education § o
and e-commerce o %0%
ncreasing demand for flex space 20%
10% «© @ o o (=) o — — N N @
= S = = S S S S S S S
N N N N N N N N N N N
0% - o - o~ - N - N - o
H1 2022 H1 2023 * * * + + + * + * + *
Source: Knight Frank Research
Emami Realty, expanding its footprints in ]

new geographies

Today we successfully enjoy a pan India presence with
development at different stages of planning, constfruction and
delivery across West Bengal, Uttar Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, Odisha
and Maharashtra. These projects are being executed under
various Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) and Joint Ventures (JVs).

R °
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KEY PROJECTS
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Emami Realty Limited

MORE INNOVATION

At Emnami Realty, innovation is
A business practice. More we
iINnNnovate, better we become

Over the years, our innovation team has constantly identified the
evolving architectural technology and modern methodologies
to deliver future-ready properies. Better material selection and
improving consfruction techniques has further allowed us to
optimise our operational efficiencies and also allow us to conserve
water and energy. Our digital innovations further aims at offering our
clients a seamless experience from the first point of contact to the
culmination of projects.

®

. . .

B

®
Hallmark of Innovation —

Urban Forest Theme Based
Experience Center Inside
Emami Aastha

Traditionally, the real estate companies have been showcasing
their products through model apartments. During the year, we
uncovered one-of-its-kind experience center inside Emami
Aastha, the biggest bungalow township in Kolkata.

Technology has played a maijor role in the designing of the
experience center. It demonstrated the feel of exclusive royalty,
premium quality and provided a readl life ambience for the
customer that he would experience atf the property. It gave a
realistic feel of the entire township, its urban forest, its layout and its
features through virtual reality. A uniguely designed wall mounted
model made on a realistic scale which functions with the help of
touch panels for the easy navigation of the customers.

]
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Emami Realty Limited

MORE EXCELLENCE

At Emami Realty, we are commiftted to continually enhancing our ability fo generate
meaningful value for our stakeholders.

Over the years, our perception of excellence has been characterised by innovative design,
superior quality construction and excellent customer satisfaction. Our portfolio mirrors our
commitment fo creating contemporary living and working spaces with an emphasis on
improving the quality of life of our customers.

Excellence Drivers

e Strong values and ethics

e Transparency

*  Quality

e Customer centricity

* Experienced team

Excellence in Green Building

Our commitment to sustainability and responsible business practices not only
adds to our ethical standing but also enhances our value proposition. The
integration of environmental, social and governance considerations and our
initiatives towards green building practices, ensure that we contribute positively

to society while safeguarding our long-term success.

r

Site planning criteria for land use, ecology and vehicular
management

* Urban forest concept has more than 30% green cover, exclusively for tree
plantation and over 4% for waterbody

* Plantation of those trees that boost oxygen production and facilitate
habitation of varieties of native birds’ species

* The project further aspires to encourage biodiversity by changing environment
and ecological potential vegetation strategy

* |t also provides micro-cooling subsequently reducing heat island effect and
to create a natural habitat for native birds

Design application for energy, water and materials sufficiency and
indoor environment quality

Electrical Energy Efficiency

* Use of energy efficient LED lights

* Use of low ‘U’ value bricks

*  Generation of solar power and injection o grid
Building design with maximum daylight entry

<’

O,

Water Efficiency

e Dual plumbing system (Use of STP treated water for flushing)
*  Dual flushing cistern

e Water saving faucets

*  Water saving flow regulator

* Rain water harvesting

14 | Annual Report 2022-23
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Building Material Efficiency ‘2

* Use of curing component to reduce water wastage during construction

* Use of Building material from local sources

* Use of low ‘U’ value fly ash bricks

* Use of low ‘U’ value glass (window glazing)

* Use of admixture for reducing water cement ratio in RMC and other concretes

* Use of fly ash and reusing the old dismantled building residual material for
filing of road and other areas ]

| ——
k] =

Design and Construction

* Building design with maximum daylighting grace
* Designed from cross flow ventilation to improve indoor air quality

* Vaastu compliant

LY

goooo
oooo
oooo
oooo
oooo

r

As we continue tfo grow, we strive to redefine the
landscape of our developments and set industry-
leading benchmarks of excellence.
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Emami Realty Limited

| am pleased to share with you the key
developments and achievements
at Emami Realty Ltd for FY 2022-
23. It has been a remarkable year
as we confinued to build on the
momenfum,  despite  prevailing
challenges.

Key Developments in the External World

India has exhibited remarkable resilience, despite
the challenging landscape that affected major
property markets. The Indian real estate sector has
not only weathered the storm but also maintained
its growth frajectory, a journey that commenced
immediately after the initial wave of the Covid-19
pandemic. Several factors have coalesced to drive
this growth. Escalating GDP per capita, a collective
aspiration for an elevated quality of life, increased
spending prowess, a burgeoning population
of forward-looking consumers, advantageous
government initiatives, and a budget geared

16 | Annual Report 2022-23

From the Desk of
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar analyses how the sectoral
optimism is creating a pool of opportunities for
Emami Realty Limited

towards expansion have collectively propelled this
segment forward.

Even in the face of increasing repo rates from
April 2022 to February 2023, the demand and
sales within the residential sector have retained
a steady momentum. The holistic perspective
remains optimistic, driven by a surge in credit
growth, amplified institutional investments, and a
heightened sense of stakeholder assurance that all
underpin a robust foundation for the propery market.
Anticipated demand is notably poised to surge in
both the affordable and premium housing segments.
Furthermore, as India’s economic dynamism persists
and larger corporate entities continue o embrace
the ‘work from office’ paradigm, the demand for
office and commercial spaces is projected to
gather substantial momentum.

Our Positioning

The pandemic has provided borrowers with valuable
insights info navigating interest rate fluctuations.
There has been a fundamental change in buyers’
expectations and attitude towards homeownership
which will largely withstand marginal fluctuations in

i 01-17
. ‘ Corporate Overview

ee In the immediate horizon, we
stand on the brink of introducing
seven new residential projects,
collectively spanning eleven
million square feet, over the
upcoming six to eight quarters. 1)

lending rates. Furthermore, rapid strides in critical
infrastructure, encompassing road networks and
more, are poised to propel the trajectory of growth
and subsequently enhance purchasing power,
thereby stimulating demand for elevated living
standards. Our this year’s theme defines our hunger
for delivering more through focus, innovation
and excellence. Given the exceptional quality of
our architectural and construction endeavours,
combined with our steadfast commitment to
offering an all-encompassing ecosystem and
superior amenities, we are positioned to leverage this
paradigm shift and aptly respond to the incremental
surge in demand.

Year Under Review

| take great pride in affiming that we have
emerged with resilience, harnessing our momentum
to strateqically position ourselves for a future
characterized by even greater accomplishments.
Here are some of the key highlights of the year:

Booked about 451 units equivalent to 9.9 lakhs sq.ft
across all our ongoing projects and new launches,
which shall franslate to revenues of Rs 303 crores
over the next few years.

Achieved booking of 176 units (81%) in Emami
Business Bay and 253 units (67%) in Emami Aastha

Achieved booking of 433 units (96%) in Emami
Natfure

Achieved completion of Emami Aerocity, we are
now seling the balance inventory and booking
revenues

In a striking display of innovation, we proudly
introduced a pioneering forest-themed
experience center at Emami Aastha — the largest
bungalow fownship in Kolkata. It is a testament
fo our commitment to redefining real estate
experiences. This exceptional creation has been
meticulously shaped by the mariage of cutting-
edge technology and visionary design. Harnessing
the power of advanced technology, the center
brilliantly encapsulates the essence of the entire
tfownship. Through the marvels of virtual reality, it
grants an immersive and authentic preview of the

urban forest, the layout, and the distinctive features
that set Emami Aastha apart. Incorporating these
remarkable elements, the experience centre
stands as a testament to our pioneering spirit, our
commitment to excellence, and our pursuit of
crafting unparalleled experience in the real estate
space.

With the launch of Aastha, Emami Realty Brand gets
re-established in Kolkata Real Estate market

Our Future Readiness

In the immediate horizon, we stand on the brink
of infroducing seven new residential projects,
collectively spanning eleven million square feet,
over the upcoming six to eight quarters. These
ventures are spread across key locations, including
two in Kolkata, one in Odisha, two in Chennai, and
one in Jhansi. Each of these projects is meticulously
progressing through various stages of approval,
sefting the stage for a future of exceptional
potential. The cumulative turnover envisaged from
these ventures is expected to touch T 6,000 crores.
Anticipated to be launched by the fiscal year 2025,
these projects are poised to redlize substantial
revenues by the year 2029-30. Moreover, we are
actively exploring multiple joint venture proposals,
strategically aligning with the esteemed Emami
brand. These collaborations, focused on residential
projects, are expected to not only enrich our
offerings but also contribute significantly to our
revenue streams.

Concluding Remarks

As we navigate this exciting phase, we remain
dedicated 1o shaping the landscape of real estate
while elevating the Emami Realty legacy to new
heights. As we stand on this juncture, | want to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to each one of you - our valued
stakeholders. Your trust, support and partnership
have been instrumental in our jourmney towards
greater strength and success. Looking ahead, we
remain commiffed to navigatfing challenges with
the same defermination and to capitalizihg on
opportunities with the same vigor. Together, we will
continue fo script a story of resilience, growth and
shared accomplishments.

Best Wishes,
Dr Nitesh Kumar

Annual Report 2022-23 | 17
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 15™ Annual Report of Emami Realty Limited along with the
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

1. OPERATING RESULTS:

Certain key aspects of the Company’s performance (on a standalone basis) during the financial year ended
March 31, 2023, as compared to the previous financial year are summarized below:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 6742 17,098
Other Income 3508 4,611
Total Revenue 10250 21,709
Total Expenses 16088 20,030
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (5.838) 1,679
Tax Expense e
-Current Tax " 19
-Deferred Tax (1.4%83) 281
-Income Tax for Earlier years - 54
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (4,38 1,325
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 3 (7)
Total Comprehensive Gain/(Loss) for the year (4,382) 1,318

Your Company reported a total revenue of 210,250
Lakhs in 2022-23 against 21,709 Lakhs in 2021-22
and EBITDA of %55 Lakhs against 8,507 Lakhs in the
previous year. The Company incurred Loss after tax
of %4,385 Lakhs in the current year as compared to
profit of 1,325 Lakhs in the previous year.

Your Company’s consolidated revenues stood af
13,129 Lakhs for the year under review against
24,169 Lakhs in the previous year, and EBITDA of
%495 Lakhs in 2022-23 as compared to %8,636
Lakhs reported in the previous year. The Company
incurred a consolidated Loss of 3,863 Lakhs in
2022-23 as compared to profit of 1,504 Lakhs in
the previous year.

Like the last fiscal, your Company continued to
witness good response to its newly launched
projects - “Emami Business Bay’, an [T/ITES &
commercial development in Sector V of Kolkata
and “Emami Aastha” in Joka, Kolkata, premium
Bungalow township nestled in an urban forest. In our
Project, Emami Business Bay, the Company secured
additional sanction of 2 floors, leading to increase
in saleable area from 2.56 lakhs sq.ft fo 2.9 lakhs

sq.ft. The Company achieved booking of 176 units
(81%) in Emami Business Bay and 253 units (67%)
in Emami Aastha. Total bookings during the year
across all launches was 451 units representing 9.85
lakhs sq.ft., having sales value of *303 Crores. The
construction of both the projects are in full swing.

In the given market scenario, your Company is well
positioned to capitalize the opportunities and plans
to launch new projects in the next eight quarters,
having fotal saleable area of 11 mn sq.ft and
revenue potential of T 6000 Crores. These projects
are at various stages of design and development.

Cash flow from operations continues to remain
strong and the operating debt has reduced by 30%
to only %83 Crores.

In our other ongoing Projects - Emami Nature,
Jhansi, the Company has achieved sales of more
than 94% and in Emami Aerocity, Coimbatore, the
Company has achieved sales of more than 82%.
In our Projects- Emami City, Kolkata and Emami
Tejomaya, Tamil Nadu, more than 99% of the Units
have already been sold.
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Emami Realty Limited

2. DIVIDEND:

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your Directors do not propose to tfransfer any amount
o the Reserves for the year under review.

4. SHARE CAPITAL:

As on March 31, 2023, the issued, subscribed and
paid-up equity share capital of the Company
stands at ¥756.88 Lakhs. The Company has neither
issued shares with differential rights as fo dividend,
voting or otherwise nor issued shares (including
sweat equity shares) to the employees or Directors
of the Company under any Scheme.

5. CREDIT RATING

India Ratings and Research Private Limited (Ind-
Ra) has assigned and upgraded Credit Rating of
Emami Realty Limited’s Long-Term Bank Facilities at
"IND A-/Stable (‘IND A-’; Outlook Stable)”.

6. AWARDS & ACCOLADES

We received several recognitions during the year,
notable among them are as under:

e At the 15™ Realty+ Conclave & Excellence
Awards 2023 (East), our Project - Emami Aastha,
Joka was awarded under various categories -
"Themed Project of the Year”, "Design Project
of the Year” and “"Consumer Connect Initiative
of the Year”. Our Projects, Emami Aastha was
recognized as the “Residential Project — Theme
Based (Metro: Ongoing)” and “Residential
Project — Villa (Metro: Ongoing)” and Emami
City was recognized under the category
"Architectural Project — Residential (Metro)” at the
Real Estate Conclave & Awards' 2022 (East) by
The Economic Times.

e Our Managing Director & CEO, Dr. Nitesh Kumar
Gupta was honored with the prestigious fifle
“Sustainable- Business Leader of the Year” af 15™
Realty+ Conclave & Excellence Awards 2023
(East) and as the “"Realty Personality of the Year”
at Real Estate Conclave & Awards’ 2022 (East).

e  Our Company was presented with "Real Estate
Company of the Year East” at Construction
Week India Awards 2022.
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7. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there has been no
change in the nature of business of your Company.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER
THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no material changes and
commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between March
31, 2023 and the date of this Report, other than
those disclosed in this Report.

9. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

As af March 31, 2023, the Company had 3
subsidiaries, namely, Sneha Ashiana Private
Limited, Delta PV Private Limited and New Age
Realty Private Limited and 4 associates, namely,
Roseview Developers Private Limited, Bengal Emami
Housing Limited, Projay Urban Private Limited and
Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited. The Company
is a 10% partner in Lohitka Properties LLP, as on
March 31, 2023.

In compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Section 129 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), your Company
has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards, which forms part of this Annual Report.
A statement containing the salient features of
the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries &
associates in Form AOC-1 as required under Rule 5
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 form part
of this Annual Report. The highlights of performance
of subsidiaries & associate companies and their
contribution to the overall performance of the
Company is given in Annexure A in Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company does not have
any joint venture.

The audited financial statements of the Company
along with separate audited financial statements
of the subsidiaries are available on the Company’s
website  www.emamirealty.com. The Company
will make these documents available to Members
upon request made by them.

As at March 31, 2022, Sneha Ashiana Private Limited
is considered as material unlisted Indian subsidiary
under Regulation 24 of SEBI Listing Regulations. A

Policy has been formulated for determining the
Material Subsidiaries of the Company in compliance
with the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended. The
said Policy is available at the Company’s welbsite
at  the weblink: https://www.emamirealty.com/
investors/.

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act in relation
to loans or guarantees or securities or investments
are not applicable to the Company, being an
infrastructure company as defined under Schedule
VI to the Act. The details of loans given, investments
made, guarantees given and securities provided
have been disclosed in the Notes to the Audited
Financial Statements.

11. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year, the Company has not
entered into fransaction with Related Parties referred
fo in Section 188(1) of the Act, which could be
considered material. Accordingly, the disclosure of
Related Party Transactions as required under Section
134(3) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.
All fransactions entered into during the financial year
2022-23 with Related Parties as defined under the
Act and SEBI Listing Reqgulations were in the ordinary
course of business and at arm'’s length basis.

The attention of Members is drawn to the disclosures
of tfransactions with related parties set out in Notes
to Accounts (Note No. 42) forming part of the
standalone financial statements. The transactions
with persons or entities belonging to the promoter/
promoter group which holds 10% or more
shareholding in the Company as required under
Schedule V, Part A (2A) of SEBI Listing Regulations are
given as Note No. 42 (on Related Party Transaction)
forming part of the standalone financial statements.

A policy on ‘Materiality of and Dealing with Related
Party Transactions’ has been devised by the Board
of Directors and the same may be referred to, at
the Company’s website at the weblink: hitps://www.
emamirealty.com/investors/.

12. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited or accepted deposits
from the public covered under Section 73 of the
Act and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014, as amended.
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13. AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the Annual General Meeting held on September
19, 2019, M/S Agarwal Tondon & Co., Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 329088E) has
been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office till the conclusion of the
16™ Annual General Meeting of the Company. The
Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are
not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the
Company.

The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders for the year
under review does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

14. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board of Directors have appointed M/S MKB
& Associates, Practising Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct
Secretarial Audit and their Report is annexed
as Annexure 1. The Secretarial Auditor, in their
Report, has remarked that the Company has not
obtained in-principle approval of stock exchanges
before issuing unlisted Zero Coupon Unsecured
Optionally Convertible Debentures, resulting in non-
compliance with provisions of Regulation 28(1)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The shareholders
may kindly note that the Company has converted
the unlisted Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally
Convertible Debentures info  7.5% Unsecured
Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures since cerain
concems were raised by NSE.

The Company’s unlisted material subsidiary
company — Sneha Ashiana Private Limited has also
undergone Secretarial Audit as per Section 204
of the Act and Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. A copy of the Secretarial Audit Report
of Sneha Ashiana Private Limited is also annexed
as Annexure 1. The said report does not contain
any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or
disclaimers.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report as
required under Regulation 24A of SEBI LODR
Regulations has been submitted to the stock
exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial
year,

15. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS

As required under Rule 8(5)(ix) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms
that it has prepared and maintained cost records
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as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023.

In terms of Section 148 of the Act read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
the Board of Directors of the Company has,
on recommendation of the Audit Committee,
appointed M/s V.K. Jain & Co., as Cost Auditors forthe
financial year 2023-24, and fixed their remuneration
subject to ratification by the members in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received written consent that their appointment is
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Act and rules framed thereunder. The Cost Auditors
have confirmed that they are not disqualified 1o be
appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2023- 24.

As required, a resolution seeking members’
ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors is included in the Notice convening the
Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends
the same for approval by members.

M/s VK. Jain & Co. have confirmed that the cost
records for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 are free from any disqualification.

16. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the Aricles of Association of
the Company and the provisions of Section 152(6)
(c) of the Act, Mr. Rajesh Bansal (DIN: 00645035)
will retire by rotation atf the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of your
Company has recommended his re-appointment
at the ensuing AGM.

The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
appointed Mr. Amit Kiran Deb (DIN: 02107792) as
an Additional Independent Director on the Board
of the Company with effect from August 07, 2023.
The Board recommends for the approval of the
Members, the appointment of Mr. Amit Kiran Deb
as a Director and also as an Independent Director
of your Company for a period of five years with
effect from August 07, 2023. Mr. Amit Kiran Deb has
the required integrity, expertise and experience for
appointment as an Independent Director of your
Company.

Appropriate resolutions seeking your approval to the
above are appearing in the Nofice convening the
15" Annual General Meeting of your Company.
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Key Managerial Personnel

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08756907) - Managing
Director & CEO, Mr. Rajesh Bansal (DIN: 00645035)
— Whole-time Director, Mr. Rajendra Agarwal - CFO
and Mrs. Payel Agarwal — Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer are the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company as at the date of this
Report.

17. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from all the
Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended. In
the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations
and are independent of the management.
There has been no change in the circumstances
affecting their status as Independent Directors of
the Company.

The Board is also of the opinion that the Independent
Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise in relevant
fields and they hold the highest standards of integrity.

In compliance with rule 6(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, all the Independent Directors have registered
themselves with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs. Since all the Independent Directors of
the Company have served as directors in listed
companies for a period not less than three years,
they are not required to undertake the proficiency
test as per rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

18. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNELS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Your Company’s Remuneration Policy enumerates
the criteria for appointment and remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel on the basis of their
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director and other matters as required under
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Policy was amended during the year, primarily to
give effect to the amendments made in the SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015. The amended policy
is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.emamirealty.com/investors/. The salient
features of the policy are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of the Annual
Report.

19. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuantto the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with Guidance Note issued by
SEBI, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
evaluated the performance of all Directors on
criteria such as qualification, level of governance
in  meetings, preparedness for the meeting,
experience, knowledge and competence, fulfilment
of functions, ability o function as a team, initiative,
availability and affendance, integrity, adherence
to the code of conduct, etc. Independent
Directors were additionally evaluated on criteria like
independence of views and judgement and the
Chairman of the Board was additionally evaluated
on criteria like effectiveness of leadership and ability
tfo steer the meefing, impartiality, commitment
and ability to keep shareholders’ interest in mind.
The Independent Directors of the Company in their
separate meeting, reviewed the performance of
Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole
and of the Chairperson of the Company.

The Board, after taking into consideration the
evaluation exercise carried ouf by the Nomination
and Remunerafion Committee and by the
Independent Directors, carried out an evaluation
of its own performance and that of its Committees.
The evaluation of individual performance of all
Directors (including the Independent Directors) was
also carried out by the entire Board (excluding the
director being evaluated).

The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the
evaluation process and results thereof.

20. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
the Board met 6 (Six) times, on May 24, 2022, August
09, 2022, November 14, 2022, January 12, 2023,
February 14, 2023 and March 31, 2023. The details
of the meetings of the Board of Directors held and
attended by the Directors during the financial year
2022-23 are given in the Corporate Governance
Report.

21. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, a meeting of
Independent Directors was held on February
14, 2023 wherein the performance of the non-
independent directors and the Board as a whole
was reviewed. The Independent Directors at their
meeting also assessed the quality, quantity and
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fimeliness of flow of information between the
Company management and the Board of Directors
of the Company.

22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other
details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 are attached as Annexure 2.

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the
names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out
in the said rules is provided in the Annual Report,
which forms part of this Report. As per the second
proviso fo Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual
Report (excluding the aforesaid information) is
being sent to the members of the Company. If any
member interested in obtaining a copy thereof,
such member may write to the Company Secretary,
whereupon a copy would be sent 1o such memiber.

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of
your Company comprises of Mrs. Karabi Sengupta
as the Chairperson and Mr. Debasish Bhaumik and
Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta, as members. The details
required under the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, are
given in Annual Report on CSR activities appended
as Annexure 3 to this Report. The CSR Policy is
available on the website of the Company atf the
weblink: https://www.emamirealty.com/investors/

24. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors hereby confirm that:-

(i) In the preparation of the annual financial
statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2023, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper
explanation relating 1o material departures, if
any;

(i) They have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at the
end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period;
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(i) They have taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act and rules made thereunder, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
iregularities;

(v) They have prepared the annual financial
statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2023 on a ‘going concem’ basis;

(v) They have laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and
have been operating effectively;

(vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
lows and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

25. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for
the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation
34(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations, is appended to this
Report.

26. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed fo maintaining highest
standards of Corporate Governance and adhering
to the Corporate Governance requirements as set
outbythe SEBI. The Report on Corporate Governance
as stipulated under SEBI Listing Regulations forms
part of this Report. A certificate from M/s. Agrawal
Tondon & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming
compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Schedule V to SEBI
Listing Regulations and applicable provisions of the
Act forms part of the Corporate Governance Report,

27. CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the CEO & CFO certification has been
submitted fo the Board and a copy thereof is
contained elsewhere in this Annual Report.

28. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an internal financial control
system, commensurate with its size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Company’s system
of internal control has been designed to provide a
reasonable assurance with regard to maintenance
of proper accounting controls, monitoring of
operations, protecting assets from unauthorized
use or losses, compliance with regulations and
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for ensuring reliability of financial reporting. The
internal controls over financial reporting have been
identified by the management and are checked
for effectiveness across all locations and functions
by the management and tested by the Auditors
on sample basis. The controls are reviewed by the
management periodically and deviations, if any,
are reported to the Audit Committee periodically.

29. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been furnished in the Corporate
Govermnance Report forming a part of this Annual
Report. During the Financial Year under review, the
recommendations made by the Audit Committee
were accepted by the Board.

30. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
been fumished in the Corporate Governance
Report forming a part of this Annual Report.

31. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been
fumnished in the Corporate Governance Report
forming a part of this Annual Report.

32. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism
as required under Section 177 of the Act and
Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, to report
fo the management, concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of
the Codes of Conduct or policy. The mechanism
provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and Directors who avail
of the mechanism and also provide for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases. The said policy may be referred
o, at the Company’s website at the weblink: https://
www.emamirealty.com/investors/

33. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a defined Risk Management
framework to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate
various risks to key business objectives. Maijor risks
identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions
on a continuing basis. It provides for identification
of risk, its assessment and procedures to minimize
risk and is being periodically reviewed to ensure that
the executive management controls the risk as per
decided policy.

34. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the Financial Year, your Company has
complied with applicable Secretarial Standards i.e.
SS-1 and SS-2, relating to "Meetings of the Board of
Directors” and “General Meetings”, respectively.

35. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

Your Company is committed to provide a work
environment which ensures that every woman
employee is freated with dignity, respect and
equality. There is zero-tolerance towards sexual
harassment and any act of sexual harassment
invites serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against
Sexual Harassment for its employees. The policy
adllows every employee to freely report any such
act and prompt action will be taken thereon. The
Policy lays down severe punishment for any such
act. The Company has complied with provisions
relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee. Further, your Directors state that during
the year under review, there was no case of sexual
harassment reported to the Company pursuant 1o
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

36. ANNUAL RETURN

As required under Section 92(3) of the Act read with
Section 134(3)(a), the Annual Return for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023 is available on the
Company’s website at the weblink: https://www.
emamirealty.com/investors/

37. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNALS

There are no significant material orders passed
by the Regulators / Courts/ Tribunals which would
impact the going concem status of the Company
and its future operations.

38. PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND  FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO

A. The operations of the Company are not energy
infensive as the Company is not engaged in
any manufacturing activity and hence reporting
under this Section does not arise.

Kolkata
August 07, 2023

Hari Mohan Marda
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B. No technology has been developed and / or
imported by way of foreign collaboration.

C. Foreign exchange inflow and outflow is NIL
during the year under review (PY.: Inflows: Nil;
Outflows: Nil).

39. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the financial year under review, the Statutory
Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have
not reported any instances of fraud committed in
the Company by its officers or employees to the
Audit Committee or to the Central Government
under section 143(12) of the Act, details of which
needs to be mentioned in this Report.

40. STATEMENT ON INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

There is no amount lying unpaid/ unclaimed with
the Company.

41. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY
PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There are no applications made or any proceeding
pending against the Company under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the
financial year.

42. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF
THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

There are no instances of one-tfime sefflement
during the financial year.

43. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to extend their thanks and
appreciation for the valuable and continued
support received from the Customers, Shareholders,
Company’s Bankers, financialinstitutions, Centraland
State Government Authorities, Stock Exchange(s).
Depositories and all other business associates
for the growth of the organization. The Directors
also acknowledge the hard work, dedication and
commitment of the employees for the growth of
the Company and look forward to their continued
involvement and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Director Managing Direcfor & CEO
(DIN: 00855466) (DIN: 08756907)
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Annexures to the Directors’ Report

Annexure 1

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315 MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of aqpplicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices
by EMAMI REALTY LIMITED (hereinafter called “the
Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company’s Management is responsible for
preparation and maintenance of secretarial and
other records and for devising proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable
loaws and regulations.

Based on our verification of the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of the secretarial audit and considering the
relaxations granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2023, generally complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on 31 March, 2023, to the extent
applicable, according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the
Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and Rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act,
1999 and the Rules and Regqulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct investment and
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vi)

External Commercial Borrowings;

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) or by SEBI, to the
extent applicable:

a) The Securties and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015;

b) The Securties and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeover) Regulations, 2011;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

d) The Securties and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

e) The Securties and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

f) The Securties and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars fo an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

Otfher than fiscal, labour and environmental
laws which are generally applicable to all real
estate companies, the following laws/acts are
also, inter alia, applicable to the Company:

a) The Transfer of Property Act, 1882
b) The Land Acquisition Act, 1894;

c) The Real Estate Regulafion and
Development Act, 2016

d) The Indian Easement Act, 1882
e) The Indian Trust Act, 1882
f)  The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

9) The Indian Registration Act, 1908

h) The Power of Attorney Act

i)  The Code of Civil Procedure

i) The Limited Liability Partnership Act

k)  The India Partnership Act

)  The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996
m) The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

n) The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016

0) The Consumer Protection Act, 1986
p) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1894;

g) The Buiding and Other Construction
Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Condition of Services) Act, 1996;

) The Building and Other Construction
Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Condition of Service) Central Rules, 1998;

s) The Buiding and Other Construction
Workers Welfare Cess Rules, 1998

f)  The West Bengal Building and Other
Construction Workers Rules, 2004

u) The West Bengal Trees (Protection and
Conservation in Non-Forest Areas) Act,
2006

v)  The West Bengal Land Reforms Act, 1955:

w) The West Bengal Apartment Ownership Act,
1972;

X)  The West Bengal Real Estate Development
and Regulation Rules, 2021

y) The West Bengal Urban Land (Ceiling and
Regulation) Act, 1976:

z) The West Bengal Town and Country
(Planning and Development Act), 1979

aa) The West Bengal Estate Acquisition Act,
1953

bb) The West Bengal Panchayat Act, 1973

cc) The West Bengal Gram Panchayat
Administration Rules, 2004

dd) The West Bengal Municipal Act, 1993

ee) The Kolkata Municipal Corporatfion Act,
1980

ff)  The West Bengal Zilla Parishad Bye Laws
09) The West Bengal Stamp Rules, 1994
hh) The West Bengal Registration Rules, 1962

i)  Maharashtra Real Estate (Regulation
and Development) (Registration of Real
Estate Projects, Registration of Real Estate
Agents, Rates of Interest and Disclosures on
Welbsite) Rules, 2017
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i)  Maharashtra Ownership Flats (Regulation
of the Promotion of Construction,
Management and Transfer) Act, 1963:

kk) The Development Control Regulations for
Greater Bombay, 1991;

Il)  Uttar Pradesh Real Estate (Regulation and
Development) Rules, 2016

mm)Uttar ~ Pradesh  Urban  Planning &
Development Act, 1973

nn) Tamil Nadu Real Estate (Regulation and
Development) Rules, 2017

00) Tamil Nadu Town & Country Planning Act,
1971

pp) Tamil Nadu Municipal (Amended) Act,
2020

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

During the period under review, the Company
has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regqulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above except that the Company
has not obtained in-principle qpproval of stock
exchanges before issuing unlisted Zero Coupon
Unsecured Opfionally Convertible Debentures
resuling in non-compliance with provisions of
Regulatfion 28(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligatfions
And Disclosure Requirements) Reguilations, 2015.
Fine was paid by the Company to National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and the Company has
converted the unlisted Zero Coupon Unsecured
Optionally Convertible Debentures into  7.5%
Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures.

We further report that:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is
duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. There have been
no changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the period under review.

b) Adeqguate nofice is given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

c) None of the directors in any meeting dissented
on any resolution and hence there was no
instance of recording any dissenting member’s
view in the minutes.
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We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the
Company has passed special resolution for:

i)  Approval for issue/ offer/ invite for subscription
to Secured / Unsecured Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures;

Date: May 29, 2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: AO11470E000408196

i) Approval for conversion of existing unsecured
loan into Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally
Convertible Debentures, convertible into Equity
Share af the option of the Company;

i)  Approval for conversion of Zero Coupon
Unsecured Optionally Converible Debentures
to 7.5% Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible
Debentures.

This report is 1o be read with our letter of even date
which is annexed as Annexure — | which forms an
integral part of this report.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secrefaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Manoj Kumar Banthia
Partner

Membership no. 11470
COP no. 7596

Annexure - |

To
The Members,
EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Our report of even date is fo be read along with this
letter.

1. It is management’s responsibility o identify
the Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and
Directions which are applicable to the Company
depending upon the industry in which it operates
and to comply and maintain those records with
same in lefter and in spirit. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on those records based on
our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and
process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis 1o ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.

Date: May 29, 2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: AO11470E000408196
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We believe that the process and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the corectness and
appropriateness of the financial records and
the Books of Accounts of the Company.

4, Wherever required, we have obtained the
Management’s  Representation about the
compliance of Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines and Directions and happening
events, efc.

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Manoj Kumar Banthia
Partner

Membership no. 11470
COP no. 7596
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
SNEHA ASHIANA PRIVATE LIMITED

We have conducted the secretfarial audit of the i) The Securties Contfracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and and Rules made thereunder; (Not applicable
the adherence to good corporate practices by to the Company during the Audit Period).
SNEHA ASHIANA PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. the Rules and Regulations made thereunder
fo the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period).

iy The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

In terms of the criteria mentioned under Regulation
16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (*SEBI Listing
Regulations”), the Company is a material subsidiary
Company of M/s, Emami Realty Limited, which v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
is a Listed Entity. As per Regulation 24A of the SEBI under the Securities & Exchange Board of India
Listing Regulations applicable to the Holding entity, Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act”) or by SEBI: (Not applicable
its material subsidiary company has to undergo the to the Company during the Audit Period).
Secretarial Audit, hence, the Secretarial Audit Report
has 1o be annexed with the Annual Report for the
reporting period.

vi) As identified by the Management, the following
specific laws/acts are also applicable to the
Company:

The Company’s Management is responsible for (1) The Transfer of Property Act, 1882

preparation and mainfenance of secretarial and o

other records and for devising proper systems to (2) The Land Acquisition Act, 1894;

ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable (3) The Real Estate Regulation and

laws and Regulations. Development Act, 2016

>

The Indian Easement Act, 1882

The Indian Trust Act, 1882

The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

The Indian Registration Act, 1908

The Power of Aftorney Act

9) The Code of Civil Procedure

10) The Limited Liability Partnership Act

(11) The India Partnership Act

(12) The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996
(13) The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881
(14) The Consumer Protection Act, 1986
(15) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1894;

(16) The Building and Other Construction
Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Condition of Services) Act, 1996;

(17) The Building and Other Construction
Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Condition of Service) Central Rules, 1998;

Based on our verification of the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31 March, 2023 generally complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

N e o

—_ = =~ o~ = - o~
(0e]

We have examined the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on 31 March, 2023, to the extent
applicable, according to the provisions of:

i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
rules made thereunder;
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(18) The Building and Other Construction
Workers Welfare Cess Rules, 1998

(19) Tamil Nadu Real Estate (Regulation and
Development) Rules, 2017

(20) Tamil Nadu Town & Country Planning Act,
1971

(21) Tamil Nadu Municipal (Amended) Act,
2020

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

During the period under review the Company has
generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, efc.
mentioned above.

We further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Date: May 26, 2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: A044522E000320890
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During the year under review, Regulation 24(1)
of SEBI Listing Regulations was not applicable to
the company.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

c) None of the directors in any meeting dissented
on any resolution and hence there was no
instance of recording any dissenting member’s
view in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

This report is 1o be read with our letter of even date
which is annexed as Annexure - | which forms an
integral part of this report.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Neha Somani

Partner

Membership no. 44522

COP no. 17322

Peer Review Cetificate No.: 1663/2022
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Annexure- |

To
The Members,
SNEHA ASHIANA PRIVATE LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this
letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and
processes as were qappropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Date: May 26, 2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: A044522E0003908%0

We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the
Management  representation  about  the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited o the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Neha Somani

Partner

Membership no. 44522

COPno. 17322

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1663/2022
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Annexure 2

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

i) Ratio of remuneration of each Director* to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
and percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer and Company Secretary in the Financial Year 2022-23:

Name of Directors & KMP Ratio to median % increase in Remuneration in
remuneration the FY 2022-23
_Executive Directors
Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta, 26.77:1 -
‘Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Rajesh Bansal, 4:1 9%

Whole-time Director

Mr. Rajendra Agarwal, CFO NA 13%

Mrs. Payel Agarwal, NA 10%
Company Secretary

* Since Non-Executive Directors received no remuneratfion except sitting fees for attending Board/
Committee meetings, the required details are not applicable.

i) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2022-23: In the
financial year, there was an increase of 10% in the median remuneration of employees.

i) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2023: There were 126
permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2023.

iv) Q) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
for the financial year 2022-23 was 8.60 % whereas average percentile increase in managerial
remuneration was 8%.

b) Justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances forincrease in managerial
remuneration: Increase in remuneration granted is based, interalia, on an overall appraisal of talent
brought to the table and Company’s business interests.

v) It is hereby affimed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees.
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Annexure 3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23
1. Brief outline on the CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company’s CSR Policy encompasses the Company’s philosophy for delivering its responsibility as a
corporate citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programmes
for welfare & sustainable development of the community at large. The Company classifies those activities as
CSR, which are over and above our normal course of business. The CSR Policy has been prepared keeping in
mind the Company’s business ethics and to comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation/ Nature of Directorship
..... 1. Mrs. Karabi Sengupfa  Independent Chairman
..... 2. Mr Debasish Bhaumik  Independent Director

3. Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Managing Director & CEO

During the year, the meeting of CSR Committee was held on 11 November, 2022, wherein all the members
of the Committee were present.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the welbsite of the Company:

Composition of the CSR committee - https://emamirealty.com/investors/

CSR policy - https://femamirealty.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/ERL_corporate-social-responsibility-policy.
pdf

CSR projects — Not Applicable

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (aftach the report): Not
Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not
Applicable

6. Average Net Profits of the Company as per section 135(5): X (4,745.91) Lakhs.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): NIL
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): NIL

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: No amount was required to be spent in the Financial
Year 2022-23

) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable
(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NIL
(@) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: There was no unspent CSR amount
in FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
NIL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5): Not Applicable

(o)

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Karabi Sengupta
Kolkata Managing Director & CEO Chairman, CSR Committee
August 07, 2023 (DIN: 08756907) (DIN: 02534951)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

At Emami Realty, corporate governance has always
been a focal point of atftention with emphasis
on the complete well-being of all constituents.
Good corporate  governance  encompasses
law, procedures, practices and implicit rules that
determine the management’s ability to take
sound and informed business decisions vis-G-vis
all its stakeholders. The Company’s philosophy on
corporate governance envisages attainment of
the highest level of fransparency, accountability,
integrity and equity in all facets of its operations and
in its interaction with stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of your Company s responsible
for and committed to sound principles of Corporate
Governance inthe Company. It ensures compliance
with the legal framework, integrity of financial
accounting and reporting systems and credibility
in the eyes of the stakeholders through proper and
fimely disclosures. The Board plays a pivotal role in
overseeing how the management serves the short
and long term interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Composition

The Company has an optimal balance of skill,

expetrience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
onits Board, suitedto the requirements of the business
of the Company. The Composition of the Board of
Directors as on March 31, 2023 is in conformity with
the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 17(1) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”).

AsonMarch 31, 2023 the Board consists of 8 Directors
which includes the Managing Director & CEO, 1
(one) Executive Director and 6 (Six) Non-Executive
Directors out of which 5 Directors are Independent
Directors including one Woman Director, bringing in
a wide range of expertise and experience to the
Board functioning.

Directorships, Committee Memberships/
Chairmanships and Attendance at Meetings

The names, DIN, category and designation of the
Directors on the Board, their aftendance atf the
Board Meetings (either in person or through video
conference) held during the year 2022-23 and af
the last Annual General Meeting held through audio-
visual means along with the number of directorships
in other Companies (Listed entities as well as
other entities) and Committee membership(s)/
chairmanship(s) as on March 31, 2023 are as
detailed below:

Name of Directors DIN Category No. of Board Attendance
Meetings at the last
attended AGM (held on

.................................................................................................. .. 29:09.2022)
Mr AbhijtDatta 00790029  Non-ExecufivelIndependent 5 No
Mr. Hari Mohan Marda 00855466 Non-Execufive Independent 6 LYes .
Mr. Rom Gobind Ganeriwala 00863042 Non-Executive Independent 6 o Yes
Mrs. Karabi Sengupta 02534951 Non-Executive Independent 6 LYes .
Mr. Debasish Bhaumik 06933306 Non-Execufive Independent 6 LYes
Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh 00103176 Non-Executive Non- 6 Yes

e ..Independent e
Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta 08756907  Managing Director & CEOQ 6~~~ Yes
Mr. Rajesh Bansal 00645035 Whole-time Director 1 No
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Name of Director No. of other Name of other Category of No. of Committee
Director- Listed Entity Directorship positions held
ships (including Emami
............... Realty Limited)
Chairperson Member
MEARNIT DA e e
Mr. Hari Mohan Marda 6 Emami Paper Mills Non-Executive 2 2
e TR INCERENDCNT
Mr. Ram Gobind 1 M. Lal and Non-Executive 2 1
Ganetwala o Company Limited | Independent
Mrs. Karabi Sengupta 2 - - 1
Mr. Debasish Bhaumik 3 T : L2
1

'Mr. Rajesh Bansal -

1. Other direcforships exclude directorships in
Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and
Private Limited Companies (including deemed
public company)

2. Commiftee  memberships/  chairmanships
include Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee of Public Limited
Companies only

None of the Directors hold directorship in more
than 7 listed companies. None of the Independent
Directors are acting as an Independent Director in
more than 7 listed companies as required pursuant
to Regulatfion 17A of the Listing Regulations. None
of the Directors held directorship in more than 20
Indian companies, with not more than 10 public
limited companies.

None of the Directors on the Board is a memlber of
more than 10 Board Level Committees or Chairman
of more than 5 such Committees as specified in
Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations, across all
the public limited companies in which he/ she is a
Director.

Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-
se

No Director of the Company is related to any other
Director on the Board.

Directors’ shareholding

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold any
shares/convertible instrument in the Company.

Board Meetings & Procedure

The Board meets atf regular intervals to discuss
and decide on Company/ business policy and
strategy apart fromm normal business. The Agenda
of the meeting is circulated well in advance to
all the Directors for facilitating effective discussion

and decision making. All material information is
circulated to the Directors before the meeting,
including minimum information required to be made
available to the Board as prescribed under Part A
of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations. As required
under Regulation 17(3) of Listing Regulations, the
Board periodically reviews compliance reports of
all laws applicable to the Company and ensures
compliance thereof. The Board is free to take up
any item not included in the Agenda with the
permission of the Chairman and with the consent
of maijority of Directors present in the meeting. The
Board is apprised of all major events/items and
decisions together with the overall performance of
the Company.

The Company Secretary aftends all meetings of
the Board and its Committees, tracks and monitors
proceedings of such meetings to ensure that
decisions taken in such meetings are properly
recorded in the minutes. All the discussions and
decisions taken at meetings of the Board are
entered in the Minute Book. As prescribed under
SS-1, draft minutes are circulated to the Directors
within fiffeen days from the date of the meeting
and suggestions or comments, if any, received
from them are suitably incorporated therein, in
consultation with the Chairman. The minutes are
entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days from the
conclusion of the meeting and are usually signed
by the Chairman of the succeeding meeting. The
process specified for the Board meeting above
are followed for the meetings of all the mandatory
Committees constituted by the Board, to the
extent possible. The minutes of the meetings of
the Committees of the Board are placed before
the Board for noting. The minutes of the subsidiary
Companies are also placed before the Board on a
quarterly basis.
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Board Meetings held during the year

The Board meets at least once in every quarter to
review the Company’s operations and to consider,
among other business, the quarerly performance
and financial results of the Company.

6 (Six) Board Meetings were held during the financial
year on May 24, 2022, August 9, 2022, November
14, 2022, January 12, 2023, February 14, 2023 and
March 31, 2023.

Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors of the Company have
been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and
Listing Regulations. Formal letters of appointment
have been issued to the Independent Directors.
The terms and conditions of their appointment are
posted on the Company’s website and can be
accessed at https://emamirealty.com/wp-content/
uploads/2023/01/ERL_Appointment-letter-for-
Independent-Directors.pdf. Basis the declarations
received from the Independent Directors, the Board
of Directors has confimed that the Independent
Directors of the Company meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and read with
Section 149(6) of the Act, that they are independent
of the management.

Separate meeting of Independent Directors

During the period under review, Independent
Directors met on February 14, 2023, inter-alia, to
discuss, review and assess:

a) Performance of the Non-Independent Directors
and Board of Directors as a whole;

b) Performance of the chairperson of the
Company, taking infto account the views of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors;

C) Quality, content and fimelines of flow of
information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to perform
its duties effectively and reasonably.

All the Independent Directors were present in the
said meeting.

Familiarization program of Independent Directors

The Company has conducted the familiarization
programmes for Independent Directors during
the year. The details of same has been disclosed
on Company’'s website at the weblink: https.//
emamirealty.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/
ERL Details-of-Familiarisation-Programme.pdf

Board Membership criteria and list of core skills/
expertise/ competencies identified in the context
of the business:

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible
for selection of a Member on the Board. In terms
of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board
has identified the following core skills/ expertise/
competencies required in the context of Company’s
business for it to function effectively and the Directors
possessing such skills, as given below:

Name of Directors/ Skills Strategy &
""""""""""""" Business
Mr. Abhijit Datta v

Mr. Rajesh Bansal
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Industry Knowledge Market
..& Experience

Governance
_Expertise  Finance & Risk

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees are set up under the formall
approval of Board to carry out the specific activities
as specified in its terms of reference which exhibit
the scope, composition, tenure, functioning and
reporting parameters. The Board Committees
play a crucial role in the govermnance structure of
the Company and have been constituted to deal
with specific areas/ activities which concern the
Company and need a closer review. The minutes
of the meetings of all the Committees are placed
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before the Board for noting. The constitution, terms
of reference and the functioning of the existing
committees of the Board is explained hereunder.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfiling
its responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting
processes, reviewing the Company’s systems
and processes for internal financial contfrols and
governance, and reviews the Company's statutory
and internal audit processes. As on March 31,

2023, the Committee consists of 3 Directors, who
bring with them vast experience in the field of
operations, finance and accounts. The Committee’s
composition and its terms of reference meet the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.
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During the financial year, the Committee met 6
(six) times, i.e., on May 24, 2022, August 9, 2022,
November 14, 2022, January 12, 2023, February
14, 2023 and March 31, 2023. The table below
gives composition and the attendance record for
the aforesaid meetings of the Audit Committee:

Sl. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
No. held during the attended
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, year .
1. Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Non-Executive Independent 6 6
O e )
2. M HariMohan Marda Non-Executive Independent 6 6
3. Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Executive 6 6

The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended
the previous Annual General Meeting held on
September 29, 2022 to answer Member’'s quetries.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.

Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted
with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s
internal controls and financial reporting process and
inter-alia performs the following functions:

i. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii. Recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;

ii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for
any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's  report
thereon before submission to the board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the
Director’'s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s Report in terms of
Clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgement by
management

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings

e. Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements

f.  Disclosure of any related party tfransactions
g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

V. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

vi. Reviewing, with the management, the
statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue, etfc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document / prospectus / notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public
or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified
institutions placement, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps
in this matter;

vii. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s
independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

vii. Reviewing the ufilization of loans and/ or
advances from/investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding X100
crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans /
advances / investments existing as on the date
of coming into force of this provision.

ix. Reviewing compliance with the provisions of the
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 atf least once in a financial year and
verifying that the systems for internal control are
adequate and are operating effectively.

X. Approval or any subsequent modification
of fransactions of the company with related
parties;
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xi. Scrutiny of inter-corporate  loans and
investments;

Xii. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary;

xii. Evaluation of intfernal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Xiv. Reviewing, with the management, performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

xv. Reviewing the adequacy of intemnal audit
function, if any, including the structure of
the internal audit department, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of
internal audit;

xvi. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on;

xvii. Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
iregularity or a failure of infernal control systems
of a material nature and reporting the matter to
the Board;

xviii.Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit, audit observations as well as
post-audit discussion 10 ascertain any area of
concem;

xix. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors;

xx. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
mechanism;

xxi. Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing
the qualifications, experience and background,
etc. of the candidate.

xxii. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving

merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the
listed entity and its shareholders.

xxiii. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned
in the terms of reference of the audit committee,

xxiv.The Committee shall mandatorily review the
following:

(@) Management discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations;

(b) Management letters/ letfters of internal
control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

() Internal audit reports relating fo internal
control weaknesses; and

(d) the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor
shall be subject to review by the audit
commiftee.

(e) Statement of deviations:

. Quarterly statement of deviation(s)
including report of monitoring agency,
if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation
32(1).

II.  Annual statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/ prospectus/ notice in
ferms of Regulation 32(7).

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Committee has been constituted to monitor
and review investors’ grievance, overseeing the
functioning of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
of the Company and specifically look into various
aspects of interests of shareholders, debenture
holders and other security holders.

During the period under review, only 1 (one) meeting
of the Committee was held on November 11,
2022. The table below gives composition and the
aftendance record for the aforesaid meeting of the
Committee:

Sl. Name of Director

1. Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
(Chairman)

Category No. of Meetings No. of
held during the Meetings
B year oo attended
Non-Executive 1 1

3. Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta

Executive

Independent
Non-Executive 1

38 | Annual Report 2022-23

The Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee attended the previous Annual General
Meeting held on September 29, 2022 for answering
shareholders queries. The Company Secretary acts
as Secretary to the Committee,

The terms of reference of the Committee are as
under:

i. Resolving the grievances of the security holders
of the Company including complaints related
to transfer/ transmission of shares, non-receipt
of annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividends, issue of new/ duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.

ii. Review of measures taken for effective exercise
of voting rights by shareholders.

ii. Review of adherence to the service standards
adopted by the Company in respect of various
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services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

iv. Review of the various measures and initiatives
taken by the Company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring
fimely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/ statutory notices by the shareholders of
the company.

Compliance Officer

Mrs.  Payel Agarwal, Company Secretary is
designated as the “Compliance Officer” who
oversees the redressal of the investors’ grievances.

Status of investor complaints [including investor’s
complaint through SEBI Complaints Redress
System (SCORES)] for the financial year 2022-23
are as follows:

Complaints pending as on April 01, 2022 O
'Complaints received during the financial year ended March 31,2023 -
_Complaints resolved during the financial year ended March 31,2023 ]
Complaints pending as on March 31, 2023 0

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
looks at all matters pertaining to the appointment
and remuneration of the Managing Director & CEQ,
the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and senior management.

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises

of 3 Independent Directors. The Committee’s
composition and its terms of reference meet
the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. During
the year under review, the Committee met only
once on May 24, 2022. The table below gives
composition and the aftendance record for the
aforesaid meeting of the Committee:

Sl. Name of Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings

NO. during theyear attended
1. Mr. Hari Mohan Marda (Chairman) L A
2. .M. Aohijit Daffa B C S

3. Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala

1 1

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee attended the previous Annual General
Meeting held on September 29, 2022. The Company
Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Terms of Reference of the Committee, inter alia,
includes the following:

i. Formulafion of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive affributes and
independence of a director and recommend
to the board of directors a policy relating to the
remuneration of the Executives;

i. For every agppointment of an independent
director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of

skills, knowledge and experience on the Board
and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare
a description of the role and capabilities
required of an independent director. The person
recommended to the Board for appointment
as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified in such description. For
the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may:

a. use the services of external agencies, if
required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds, having due regard to diversity;

c. consider the fime commitments of the
candidates.
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ii. Formulafion of criteriac for evaluation of
performance of independent directors and the
board of directors;

iv. Devising a policy on diversity of board of
directors;

v. ldentifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend to the board of
directors their appointment and removal.

vi. Whether to extend or contfinue the term of
appointment of the independent director, onthe
basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors.

vii. Torecommend to the Board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management.

viii. To carry out any other function as is mandated
by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced
by any statutory notification or modification as
may be applicable.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent
Directors

During the year under review, the performance
of the Independent Directors was evaluated
on parameters such as, qualification, level of
governance in meetings, preparedness for the
meeting, experience, knowledge and competence,
fulfilment of functions, ability to function as a team,
initiative, availability and attendance, integrity,
adherence to the code of conduct, commitment,
contribution, independence of views and
judgement, safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers
under vigil mechanism, etc.

REMUNERATION POLICY AND ITS SALIENT FEATURES

The Board has formulated the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMPs) and Senior Management in terms
of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and
SEBI Listing Regulations. The said Policy outlines
the appointment criteria and qudlifications, the
term / tenure of the Directors on the Board of the
Company and the matters related to remuneration
of the Directors, KMPs & Senior Management.

The remuneration policy of the Company aims to
attract, retain and motivate qualified people at
the executive and Board levels. The remuneration
policy seeks to employ people who not only fulfil the
eligibility criteria but also have the attributes needed
fo fit info the corporate culture of the Company.
The remuneration policy seeks to provide well-
balanced and performance-related compensation

40 | Annual Report 2022-23

packages, taking into account industry standards
and relevant regulations. The remuneration policy
ensures that the remuneration to the directors, key
managerial personnel and the senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the
Company and its goals. The remuneration policy is
consistent with the ‘pay-for-performance’ principle.

Executive Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee takes
into account experience, qualification, contributions
and prevailing industry practices before giving its
recommendations to the Board. The Board, based
on the recommendations, decides the quantum
of remuneration to be paid to Executive Directors,
subject to approval by the shareholders in terms of
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Schedule V thereof. The Company has entered
into agreement with each of the Executive Directors
which may be terminated by either party by giving
to the other party three months' notice of such
termination.

Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive
Directors

The Independent Directors play a crucial role
in the independent functioning of the Board.
The responsibilities and obligations of the Non-
Executive Directors have increased manifold in the
recent years. The Non- Executive Directors bring
in a wider perspective to the deliberations and
decision making of the Board which adds value to
the Company. Contribution of the Non-Executive
Directors in Board and Committee Meetings, time
devoted by them, participation in strategic decision
making, timely guidance to the Board on important
policy matters of the Company, performance
of the Company and industry practices and
benchmarks forms the main criteria for determining
payments to Non-Executive Directors. In terms of
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules made thereunder and Regulation 17 of the
Listing Regulations, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company are paid such Sitting Fees
for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors
and of the Committee thereof, as determined by
the Board of Directors from time to time.

Ciriteria for selection of the Directors

The selection process of Board members is
dependent on several parameters and the policies
framed by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Board has identified skill, expertise and
competency required in context to its business for

it to function effectively and these are Leadership,
governance & regulafory laws, finance & risk
management, entfrepreneurship and marketing
which are available with the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that it will enhance the
quality of the decisions of the Board by ufilising their
varied skills, qualifications, professional experience,
gender and knowledge, among others, of the
members of the Board, which is necessary for
achieving sustainable and balanced growth of the
Company.

Terms and conditions for appointment of
Independent Directors
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The terms and conditions of appointment of the
Independent Directors are subject 1o the provisions
of the applicable laws, including the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 along with
the Articles of Association of the Company. Each
Independent Director is issued a lefter specifying
the details of appointment at the time of joining.
Every Independent Director signs a declaration to
confirm that he/she fulffills all the conditions for being
an Independent Director as laid down under the
law.

The details of remuneration paid to the Directors for
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 are given
in Table below:

(X in Lakhs)
Name of Director Sitting Fees Salary Contribution Total

.................................................................... foPF
Mr Abhijit Datta 0.50 ...0:50
Mr. Hari Mohan Maraa 120 o120
Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala 120 120
Mrs, Karabi sengupta 0.68 0,68,
Mr. Debasish Bhaumik 0.68 o 068
Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta 19689 19689
Mr. Rajesh Bansall 27.65 1.58 29.23

No commission was paid to Directors during the
year ended March 31, 2023.

No Director is related to any other Director on the
Board. Except for drawing remuneration, none of
the Directors have any other materially significant
related party transactions, pecuniary relationship or
fransaction with the Company.

Service Contracts, Severance Fee, Notice Period
and Stock Options

The appointment of the Executive Directors is on
contractual basis with notice period of three months
from either side and there is no provision of payment
of severance fees.

The Company has no stock option plans and
hence such instruments do not form a part of the
remuneration package payable to any Executive
and/or Non-Executive Director. During the year
under review, none of the Directors was paid any
performance-linked incentive.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises
of Mrs. Karabi Sengupta as the Chairman, and Mr.
Debasish Bhaumik and Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
as Members. During the year under review, the
Committee met only once on November 11,
2022. The table below gives composition and the
attendance record for the aforesaid meeting of the
Committee:

Sl. Name of Director
No.

No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the year attended

1. Mrs. Karabi Sengupta (Chairman)

2. Mr. Debasish Bhaumik

3. Dr Nitesh Kumar Gupta

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of
the Committee.

The terms of Reference of the Committee, includes
the following:

i. To formulate and recommend to the Board,
a Corporate Social Responsibility  (*CSR”)
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in
Schedule-Vll of the Act;
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Vi.

Vii.

Vi,

To recommend the amount of expenditure to
be incurred on the specified CSR activities in a
financial year;

To monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from
fime to time;

To recommend the Board on the guiding
principles for selection, implementation and
monitoring of CSR activities;

To formulate and recommend to the Board, an
Annual CSR Action Plan in pursuance of its CSR
policy, which shall include the following:

a. the list of CSR projects or programmes that
are approved to be undertaken in areas or
subjects specified in the Company’s CSR
Policy;

b. the manner of execution of such projects or
programmes;

c. the modalities of utilisation of funds and
implementation schedules for the projects
or programmes;

d. monitoring and reporting mechanism for
the projects or programmes; and

e. details of need and impact assessment,
if any, for the projects undertaken by the
Company:

To recommend the Board to alter the Annual
CSR Action Plan at any fime during the financial
year based on the reasonable justification to
that effect.

Any other matter/thing as may be considered
expedient by the members in furtherance
of and to comply with the CSR Policy of the
Company.

To carry any other function as is mandated
by Board from time to time and/or enforced
by any statutory nofification, amendment
or modification as may be necessary or
appropriate for performance of its duties.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
Company can be accessed at the Company’s
website through the web link: https://emamirealty.
com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/ERL_corporate-
social-responsibility-policy.pdf

Finance Committee

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises
of Mr. Hari Mohan Marda as the Chairman, and Dr.
Nitesh Kumar Gupta as Member. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

The terms of Reference of the Committee, includes
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the following:

Vi,

Vil

Opening, modification and closure in operation
of Bank Accounts;

Reviewing and considering periodical budgets
of the Company and approval of capital
expenditures;

Opening, modification and closure of trading
and demat accounts required for securities,
derivatives, foreign currency and all other
options;

Toborrowmoney by way ofloan (including foreign
currency loans) for the purpose of Company’s
business, including but not limited fo refinancing
the existing debt, capital expenditure, general
corporate purposes and take necessary actions
connected therewith, pursuant o Section 179(3)
(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) subject to
the limits as sanctioned by the Members under
Section 180(1)(c) of the Act from time 1o time;

To approve creation of security inferest/ charge
on the movable and immovable assets of
the Company, wherever situated, present and
future, in such form and manner and with such
ranking as to priority and for such time and on
such terms as the Committee may determine,
in favour of any person including, but not limited
fo, financial/ investment institution(s), bbank(s).
corporate body(ies), efc. to secure the loans,
borrowings, debentures, and/ or working capital
facilities and other credit facilities availed / to be
availed by the Company, subject to the limits
as sanctioned by the Members under Section
180(1)(a) of the Act from time 1o time;

To acquire, invest and/ or deploy the funds of the
Company in inter-corporate investments, debt/
equity/ quasi-equity securities or instruments,
derivatives, bonds/ debentures (whether fully,
partially or opftionally convertible or non-
convertible) and/ or in other financial/money
market instruments of one or more bodies
corporate, banks and other financial institutions,
units of mutual funds or by contribution to the
capital of LLPs in one or more tranches, pursuant
to Section 179(3)(e) and Section 186 of the Act,
subject fo the limits sanctioned by the Members
pursuant to Section 186 of the Act from time to
fime;

Provide corporate guarantee of the Company
for credit facilities availed by the Company/
its subsidiaries or by any other entity, pursuant
to Section 179(3)(f) and Section 186 of the
Act, subject to the limits as sanctioned by the
Members pursuant 1o Section 186 of the Act

viii.

from fime to time;

To approve loans and advances pursuant to
Section 179(3)(f) and Section 186 of the Act,
subject to the limits sanctioned by the Members
pursuant to Section 186 of the Act from time 1o
fime;

To apply for and obtain any registration/
enrolment/ cerificates from any statutory
authority(ies) including but not limited to import-
export code, trade license, GST, VAT, efc. from
fime to fime and also to authorise updation/
modifications/ alterations, etc. in any of the
existing registrations of the Company;

Any other financial issues or other matters,
whether out of and incidental to these functions
or not, as may be assigned by the Board;

xi. Delegate authorities from time to time 1o the
executives, officers and other authorised persons
to implement the Committee’s decisions;

xii. Authorise Directors, Officers and other Authorised

Persons for execution of necessary documents
and affixing Common Seal of the Company, as
may be required for implementing decisions
taken by the Board or any Committee thereof;
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Demerger Committee

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises
of Mr. Hari Mohan Marda as the Chairman and
Mr. Debasish Bhaumik and Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
as Members, The Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Committee.,

The terms of Reference of the Committee, includes
the following:

To carry out all functions, exercise all powers
and do all acts, deeds and things and take
all decisions in connection with the Scheme
of Amangement for Demerger between
Emami Art Private Limited [formerly Oriental
Sales Agencies (India) Private Limited] and the
Company and their respective shareholders,
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (Scheme),

Tofix/ take note of the record date for determining
the names of the eligible shareholders of the
Demerged Company who will be entitled to
receive Equity shares of the Company pursuant
to the Scheme;

To decide all matters relating to the issue and
allotment of equity shares of X 2/- each,

Xiii. To authorize any directors/ Company Secretary iv. To credit the equity shares so allotted through
and/ or other officials of the Company/ any NSDL/ CDSL/ other depository 1o the concemed
other person for signing/ filing necessary reply/ beneficiary account and tfo issue the equity
rejoinder affidavits etc. and/ or appear before share certificates 1o the shareholders holding
the Tribunal/ Courts/ Arbitrators as applicable the shares in physical form;

xiv. To take all decisions in connection with any v. To carry out any other function in this connection,

arrangement, document or matter necessary,
ancillary, incidental or desirable to give effect to
all its powers and authority.

During the year under review, the Committee met
only once on July 27, 2022, Both the members were
present in the meeting.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

as is mandated by the Board from time to time
and / or enforced by any statutory notification or
moaodification as may be applicable;

During the year under review, the Committee held
no meeting.

A. Particulars of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as under:

2021-22 September 29, 2022 at 11.30 A M.

Year Date & Time

Venue

Through VC/ OAVM' from its Registered Office at Acropolis,

13" floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba, Kolkata

-700107

2020-21 September 30, 2021 at 11.30 AM,

Through VC/ OAVM' from ifs Registered Office at Acropolis,
13" floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba, Kolkata
-700107

1 2019-20 September 30, 2020 at 11.30 AM,

Through VC/ OAVM' from its Registered Office at Acropolis,
13" floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba, Kolkata
-700107
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B. Details of special resolutions passed in the last three Annual General Meetings are as under:

Date of AGM

Subject Matter

September 29, 2022 .

Approval for issue/ offer/ invite for subscription to Secured / Unsecured

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

September 30, 2021 .

Re-appointment of Mr. Rajesh Bansal (DIN: 00645035) as the Whole-time

Director of the Company for further period of 3 years w.e.f. 10th August, 2021
Approval for issue/ offer/ invite for subscription to Secured / Unsecured
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures;

September 30, 2020 .

Appointment of Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08756907) as the Monoging'

Director & CEO of the Company for five years w.e.f. June 30, 2020;
Re-appointment of Mr. Debasish Bhaumik (DIN: 06933306) as an Independent
Director for second term of 5 years w.e.f. July 22, 2021;

Approval for payment of remuneration 1o Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary (DIN:

5. The voting details are as under:
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Sl

No.

Description

Votes in favour of the  Votes against the

..................... resolution ~ resolution
No. of % of total No. of % of total
votes votes votes votes

A Approval for conversion of existing Unsecured Loan of 13,02,058 92.2997 1,08,627 7.7003

T 700 Crores into Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally

of Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally Convertible
Debentures to 7.5% Unsecured Unlisted Non-
Convertible Debentures

00821762) w.e.f. April 01, 2020;
iv. Approval for issue/ offer/ invite for subscription to Secured/ Unsecured
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures;

C. Postal Ballot including e-voting:

During the year under review, a Postal Ballot (through e-voting only) was conducted by the Company for
seeking approval of the Members for the following resolution:

Type of Resolution

Subject Matter

Special Approval for conversion of existing Unsecured Loan of X 700 Crores of Promoter
Group Companies into 8,53,65,854 Nos. of Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally
Convertible Debentures of ¥ 82/- each, convertible into 1 equity share at the

option of the Company

As on date of this Report during the financial year 2023-24, the Company has sought the approval of the
shareholders by way of Special Resolution through Notice of Postal Ballot (through e-voting only) for the

following resolution:

Type of Resolution

Subject Matter

Special Approval for change in terms of 8,53,65,854 Nos. of Zero Coupon Unsecured
Optionally Convertible Debentures of face value of ¥ 82/- each aggregating 1o X
700 Crores to 7.5% Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures

Procedure followed by Company for conducting
Postal Ballots:

1. The Company appointed Mr. Manoj Kumar
Banthia, and faiing him, Mr. Raj Kumar
Banthia, Partners, MKB & Associates, Company
Secretaries, to act as Scrutiniser for conducting
the Postal Ballot process in a fair and transparent
manner

2. The Company had engaged the services of
Central Depository Services Limited as the
agency for the purpose of providing e-voting
facility.

3. In conformity with the present regulatory
requirement, the Postal Ballot Notice along
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with  Explanatory Statement was sent only
through electronic mode to those Members
whose names were recorded in the Register of
Members or List of Beneficial Owners as on the
Cut-off Date, as received from the Depositories
and whose e-mail address is registered with the
Company / Depositories/ RTA.

Relevant details regarding the Postal Ballot were
advertised in one English newspaper having
nation-wide circulation and in one vernacular
language newspaper in the principal vernacular
language of the district in which the registered
office of the Company is situated.

Proposed Postal Ballot:

None of the business proposed to be transacted
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires
passing of resolution through postal ballot. As on the
date of this report, the Company does not have any
plans 1o pass any resolution through postal ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. Publication of financial results; The Company
publishes its quarterly and annual financial results
in newspapers such as “Business Standard” and
"Aajkal”. The same are also submitted to the
Stock Exchanges.

b. Company Website: The Company’s welbsite

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

(www.emamirealty.com) contains a separate
dedicated section ‘Investors’ where information
for the shareholders is available.

C. News, Releases etc.: All vital information relating
to the Company and its performance including
financial results are regularly posted on the
Company’s website.

Designated exclusive Email-ID: The Company has
designated the following Email- ID exclusively for
investor servicing: infra@emamirealty.com

During the year under review, the Company did not
make any presentation to institutional investors or to
analysts.

i. AGMDetails
Date September 29, 2023
Time 11.30 AM
Venue Through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)

For details please refer to the Nofice of this AGM.

ii. Financial Calendar

Financial year — April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024

September 22, 2023 to September 29, 2023 (Both days inclusive)

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial yeor'

ended March 31, 2023

v. Listing information
BSE Limited (BSE)

Name & Address of Stock Exchanges

P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumibai 400 001

Stock Code - 533218

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051
Stock Code - EMAMIREAL

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)

7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001

Stock Code - 15214

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, been paid.

Annual Listing Fees for financial year 2023-24 to BSE, NSE and CSE has

vii. ISIN INE778K01012

viii. Corporate Identity No.

L45400WB2008PLC121426
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ix. Stock Market Price Data

High and Low prices during each month in the last financial year at BSE and NSE:

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, BSE ...NSE
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Month L High®)  low®)  Close (%) High®) _ lowR®) _ Close (%)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Apr-22 ...7980 60.00 80.50 95900 6840
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, May-22 ...6830  53.05 69.00 ..02.45 0 64.95
""""""""""" Jun22 7030  56.00 7045 5570  63.60
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 22 e 72:80 5995 7300 .....01.80 . .©62.00
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ AUQ-22 1800 05:00 7740 ..0%.70 6980
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, sep-22 ...8690 67.85 86.30 ....68.00  80.45
Oct-22 8700 7410 8755 7415 76.35
Nov-22 8595 6355 8640 6345 71.75
Dec-22 8870 6825 8900 6500  80.10
""""""""""" Jan-23 9200  79.00 9245 7850  83.40
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ Feb-23 ........BASS  ..06:08 8450 ......06:80 .. .07.45
Mar-23 70.00 52.00 70.75 53.55 61.40

[Source: This information is compiled from the date available from the websites of BSE and NSE]

x. Performance in comparison to broad based indices:
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xi. The Equity Shares of the Company have not
been suspended from trading by the SEBI and/or
Stock Exchanges.

xii. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The Company’s share transfers are handled by
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Lid., Registrar and
Transfer Agents (RTA).

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Lid.

23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5™ Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
Tel No.: 033 2248 2248 / 5029

Email Id: mdpldc@yahoo.com

xiii. Share Transfer System

As per Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015,
as amended, Physical tfransfer of shares has been
dispensed with and securities of listed companies
can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f.
150 April, 2019. Effective from 24" January, 2022,
SEBI has mandated for Listed Companies to issue
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shares in demat form only, after processing the
requests in prescribed Form ISR-4 received for issue
of duplicate certificate, transmission, transposition,
renewal/ exchange of share  certificate,
endorsement, sub-division/ splitting of certificate,
consolidation of certificates, claim from Unclaimed
Suspense Account, etc. The RTA will after processing
such requests issue a Letter of Confimation to
the concemed shareholder for submission to DP
within 120 days from the date of issue of Letter
of Confimation for dematerialistion of shares. In
case shareholder fails to submit the demat request
within the aforesaid period, the RTA shall credit the
shares to Suspense Escrow Demat Account of the
Company. Form ISR-4 is available on the welbsite of
the Company.

The Board has delegated the authority for approving
fransfer, transmission, etc. ofthe Company’ssecurities
fo its Stakeholder’'s Relationship Committee. The
Committee meets as and when required to, inter
alia, consider the issue of duplicate share certificates
(letter of confirmation with effect from 24th January,

2022) and aftend to Shareholders’ grievances,
etc. A summary of the transfer, transmissions,
demaiterialization rematerialisation, etc. is placed
before the Committee at every meeting.

All communications regarding share certificates,
change of address, dividends, etfc. should be
addressed to the RTA. Transfer of shares in electronic
form were processed and approved by NSDL and
CDSL through their Depository Parficipant without the
involverment of the Company. The shares lodged for
fransfer, transmission, etc. are processed and share

xiv. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023
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certificates duly endorsed (lefter of confirmation
with effect from 24th January, 2022) are sent within
the stipulated time, subject to documents being
valid and complete in all respects.

In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated
with  physical shares and for ease of portfolio
management, members holding shares in physical
form are requested to consider converting their
holdings to dematerialized form. However, investors
are not barred from holding shares in physical form.

Category (Amount) No. of % to Total Shares % of Total
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ Holders Holder = held ...
URt0 800 28,436 91.46  .2299.774 .. 608
D01 101000 1,275 410 ...1003516 265
1001102000 636 2,05 947,181 ..

2001103000 244 078 _....614671 . . 163
3001104000 94 031 .. ...333722 088
4001105000 .98 032 . ..45369 120
50011010000 138 044 ...995131 .. .263
10001 and above 169 054 31196204 8243

31,090 100.00  3,78,43,889 100.00

xv. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2023

Sl. No. Description

No. of shares Percentage

of capital
l.  Promoter and Promoter group 2,40,14,150  63.46
Il.  Public Shareholding
Foreign Portfolio Investors 35000  0.09
___Financial Instifufions /Banks 5271 001
2. Central Government/ State Government(s)/ President of India 1,000 000
3',4 NOﬂ-mSTiTUﬂOﬂS ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, . P
a.  Bodies Corporate 33,95064 897 .
o . Indvidudls 1,00,35,257 2652
C. . NBFCregistered withRBI 31,500 ..008
d.  NonResident Individual 1,99,729 053
e CleaingMember . 126928 034
f. Trusts - -
Sub-total 1,38,29,739 36.54

Total (1) + (II)

3,78,43,889 100.00

xvi. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

The shares of the Company are in compulsory
dematerialized segment and are available for
frading in the depository systems of both the
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
As on March 31, 2023, 3,76,77,489 shares of the
Company, aggregating to 99.56% of the paid

up share capital of the Company was held in
dematerialized mode with the NSDL and CDSL.

xvii. Outstanding convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs in the
past.

The Board of Directors of the Company had, on
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February 14, 2023 dallotted 8,53,65,854 nos. of
Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally Convertible
Debentures (OCDs) of ¥ 82/- each af par to Promoter
Group Companies which were convertible ot
the option of the Company into 8,53,65,854 no.
of equity shares of the Company. The said OCD
were converted info 7.5% Unsecured Unlisted Non-
Convertible Debentures, w.e.f. 8" May, 2023,

xviii.Commodity price risk or foreign exchange
risk and hedging activities

Not applicable

xiX. Plant Locations

Not Applicable

xx. Address for Correspondence

Registered Office:

Acropolis, 13™MFloor,

1858/1 Raojdanga Main Road, Kasba,
Kolkata 700 107

Tel No. 033 — 6625 1200

E-mail: infra@emamirealty.com

xxi. List of all credit ratings obtained by the
Company along with any revisions thereto during
the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments

Credit Rating (of Bank’s Long-ferm Facilities) by India
Ratings and Research Private Limited (Ind-Ra):

"IND A-/Stable (‘IND A-’; Outlook Stable)”
OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. Materially significant related party
transactions:

There were no materially significant related
pary transactions, i.e. transactions of material
nature, with its Promoters, the Directors or the
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives,
etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large. Suitable
disclosures as prescribed under the applicable
Accounting Standards have been made in the
notes to the Financial Statements.

The policy on dealing with related party
fransactions may be referred to, at the
Company’s website at the weblink: https://www.
emamirealty.com/investors/

2. Details of non-compliance by the Company:

During the year under review, pursuant to the
approval granted by the Shareholders of the
Company by postal ballot on February 12, 2023,
the Board of Directors of the Company had, on
February 14, 2023 allotted 8,53,65,854 nos. of
Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally Convertible
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Debentures (OCDs) of ¥ 82/- each af par to
Promoter Group Companies and convertible
at the option of the Company into 8,53,65,854
equity shares. Subsequent thereto, the
Company received certain observations from
NSE regarding the requirement of compliance
with Regulation 28 of the Listing Regulations
and Chapter V of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.
The Company received Notice No. NSE/LIST/-
SOP/COMB/FINES/0275 dated 14™ March 2023
from NSE for non-compliance with Regulation
28 of the Listing Regulations, following which the
Company paid SOP Fine of ¥59,000/- (including
GST) to NSE.

. Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has formed a Whistle Blower
Policy/ Vigil Mechanism as required under
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations. A
Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a
channel to the employees and Directors to
report to the management, concems about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Codes of conduct or
policy. The said mechanism also provides for
adequate safeguards against victimisation of
persons who use such mechanism and makes
provision for direct access to the chairperson
of the Audit Committee in appropriate or
exceptional cases. The said policy may be
referred to, at the Company’s website at the
weblink:  https://emamirealty.com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/07/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

None of the officials/ personnel of the
Company has been denied access to the Audit
Committee. The Vigilance Officer/ Chairman
of Audit Committee has not received any
complaint during the financial year ended
March 31, 2023.

Non-mandatory Compliance:

The stafus of complionce with discretionary
requirements specified in Part E of Schedule Il of
the Listing Regulations is provided below:

i. Shareholders’ Rights: As the quarterly and
half yearly financial results are published in
the newspapers and are also posted on
the Company’s website, the same are not
being sent separately to the shareholders

ii. Modified opinion in Audit Report: The
Company’s Financial Statement for the year
ended 31 March, 2023 does not contain
any modified audit opinion. The Company

always endeavours to present unmodified
Financial Statements.

iii. Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: The
positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (CEQO) are separate.

iv. Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal

18-55
|
‘ Statutory Reports

Auditors directly report to the Audit
Committee,

Fees to Statutory Auditors

The fees paid by the Company and ifs
subsidiaries (on a consolidated basis) to the
statutory auditors during the financial year 2022-
23 is as under:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
SO Ty AUG F S e 17
Tox AuditFegs 2
O RO oW e 4
OfherMatfters 5
Total 28

6. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013

‘Number of complaints fled during the Financial Year 2022-23 NIL
‘Number of complaints disposed of during the Financial Year 2022-23 NIL
Number of complaints pending as on the end of the Financial Year 2022-23 NIL

7. Policy for determining Material Subsidiary

The Company has formed a policy on material
subsidiary as required under Regulation 24 of
the Listing Regulations. The said policy may
be referred to, at the Company’s website at
weblink:  https://emamirealty.com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/07/ERL_Policy-on-Material-
Subsidiary.pdf

8. The Company is not dealing in commodity and
hence disclosure relafing to commodity price

risks and commodity hedging activities are not
applicable.

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to firms/ companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount:

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company
and/or its subsidiaries have not provided any
loans and/or advances in the nature of loans,
to firms/ companies in which Directors are
interested.

10. Details of material subsidiary of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and
the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary

Name of Material subsidiary

Sneha Ashiana Private Limited

17th September, 1996

Kolkata, West Bengall

M/S S K Agrawal And Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Date of Appointment of Auditors

31st August, 2019
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Declaration Affirming Compliance with the Code of Conduct
(Regulation 34(3), read with Schedule V(D) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015)

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, |, Nitesh Kumar Gupta, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of
Emami Realty Limited, hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board
and Senior Management, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and
Senior Management in respect of financial year 2022-23.

For Emami Realty Limited

Kolkata Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
May 29, 2023 Managing Director & CEO
CFO & CEO CERTIFICATION

To

Board of Directors
Emami Realty Limited

1. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of Emami Realty Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(@) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct;

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and necessary steps have been taken
1o rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated fo the Auditors and Audit Committee:
(@) Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(b) Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s infernal control system
over financial reporting.

For Emami Realty Limited

Kolkata Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Mr. Rajendra Agarwal
May 29, 2023 Managing Director &« CEO  CFO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To

The Members of

Emami Realty Limited

Emami Realty Limited (‘the Company’) requires Independent Auditor’'s Certificate on Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(‘Listing Regulations’) for the period April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

Management’s Responsibility

The preparation of the Corporate Governance report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company
along with the maintenance of all its relevant supporting records and documents. The Management is responsible
for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) fo (i)
of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations for the period 1st April 2022
to 31st March 2023. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the report and applying an appropriate basis of preparation.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to state whether the Company has
complied with the above said compliances of the conditions of Corporate Governance for the period April 0T,
2022 to March 31, 2023.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company for the period April
01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 as per Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C,
D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes, Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAI") and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note on Reports or Cerificates
for Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI
We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) fo (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2023.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation
46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations for the period April 01, 2022 to March 31,
2023 and may not be suitable for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any
duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it
may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 329088E
Chartered Accountants

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: August 07, 2023 Membership No. : 060534
UDIN: 23060534BGWXXX4412
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[pursuant o Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
To
The Members,
Emami Realty Limited
Acropolis, 13th Floor,
1858/1, Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba
Kolkata - 700 107
West Bengal

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, retumns and disclosures received from the Directors
of Emami Realty Limited (CIN: L45400WB2008PLC121426) having its Registered office at Acropolis, 13™
Floor, 1858/1, Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba, Kolkata-700 107, West Bengal (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and fo the best of our information and according to the verifications [including Directors
Identification Number (DIN)] status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we certify that following are the Directors on the Board of the
Company as on 31 March, 2023:

Sl. DIN Name Designation Date of
No. appointment
00790029 | M. Aohijit Datta Independent Director (Chairman)  06.02,2013
2. 00855466 M. Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director 25.01.2010
3. 00863042  Mr. Rom Gobind Ganeriwala Independent Director 25.01.2010
402534951 Mrs, Karabi sengupta Independent Director 31.03.2015
.5, 06933306  Mr. Debasish Bhaumik Independent Director 22,07.2016
6. 00103176 Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh Non-Executive Non-Independent 14.11.2011
S S e R o DIECIOT
..7.....08756907  Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Managing Director & CEO 30.06.2020
8. 00645035 Mr. Rajesh Bansall Whole-time Director 22.07.2016

We further certify that none of the aforesaid Directors on the Board of the Company for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any
such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secrefaries
Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Manoj Kumar Banthia

Partner
Date: May 29, 2023 Membership no. 11470
Place: Kolkata COP no. 7596

UDIN: AO11470E000408229
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Macroeconomic Overview

The financial Year 2022-23 was marked by aggressive
increase in interest rate by global central banks to
rein in record high inflation caused by Russia-Ukraine
war and conseguent supply chain disruptions and
a decade high loose monetary policies. Current
interest rates are at decade high and expected to
remain at this level for some fime. Global growth
has slowed sharply, and the risk of financial stress
in emerging markets and developing economies
intfensified with fear of recession creeping in.
According to The World Economic Outlook (WEO)
update, the world economic output growth slowed
down to 3.4% in CY2022, after growing by 6.0%
in CY2021, mainly due to the rise in central bank
rates to fight inflation and continued Russia’s war in
Ukraine, impact of which is to be felt in CY2023 as
well. The IMF expects growth to further fall to 2.8% in
CY 2023 before accelerating to 3.0% in 2024. The
economic activity is expected to remain sluggish
mainly due 1o slow down in advanced economies.

Despite the challenges faced by the global
economies, Indian economy was resilient and
managed o grow by 7.2 percent in FY 2022-23,
given the prudent policies adopted by the Indian
Government. RBI expects GDP growth for FY24 1o be
6.5%, supported by resilient domestic demand. In
India also central bank had to increase the interest
rate aggressively to cool down the inflation. This has
led to increase in lending rates including home loan
rate which directly affects the Real Estate sector.
However overall the real estate market remarkably
withstand the challenges and achieved strong
growth.

Indian real estate sector overview

The Financial Year 2022-23 was a milestone year
for the sector with record sales. The recovery in the
sector which started in Fiscal 2022 took momentum
and the demand pick-up seen in the second half of
fiscal 2022 continued into fiscal 2023, with increase
in number of launches across the country and sharp
decline in inventory levels.

Opportunities

The Real Estate sector in India is estimated at USD
265.18 bilion in 2023, and is expected to reach
USD 828.75 billion by 2028, growing af a CAGR of
25.60% during the forecast period (2023-2028).
Real estate sector in India is expected to reach USD
1 frillion in market size by 2030 and contribute 13%
to the country’s GDP by 2025.

The residential market in India had astounding
progressin 2022, setting new salesrecords of 68% Yo,
further demonstrating the industry’s prominence as

one of India’s fastest-growing industries. It continued
with the momentum that started in the latter half of
fiscal 2022. Demand for residential properties was
driven by increased urbanization, healthy economic
recovery post-pandemic, rising household income
and other favorable macroeconomic factors. The
industry though faced headwinds of steep rise in
raw material costs, consumer inflation and a sharp
increase in borrowing costs.

The government’'s move to extend rebate on
stamp duty and circle rate continues 1o boost
registration, thus generatfing significant revenue to
the Government, besides stimulating the entire real
estate sector.

In West Bengal, RERA has again become functional
since December 2022, and it has boosted the state’s
real estate sector by increasing the confidence of
homebuyers and investors in the sector, thereby
providing them with a level playing field.

Digitalization also has significant impact on the ways
properties are being marketed and sold. Covid-19
has accelerated the need to adopt technology
in Indian real estate. This has not only helped the
industry to reduce its overall operational costs but
also to deliver projects much faster. Most of the
developments have been seen in the customer-
facing segments such as search optimisation,
virtual tours, smarter chatbots, 10T enabled homes
and automation.

Budget 2023 - a welcome step by the Government
of India

The Budget 2023 is a pro-growth budget and has
set a positive roadmap with a promising growth
outlook for the real estate market in India, focusing
on urban planning and sustainable growth. In terms
of affordable housing, the strategic decision fo
increase outlay for PMAY by 66% to over Rs. 79,000
crores, gave the much-needed impetus towards
the vision “Housing for All”.

The Budget 2023 has allocated additional funds
for infrastructure development in India, which is
expected to boost the real estate industry. Better
roads, airports, and railways will improve connectivity
and affract investment in the Indian real estate
secftor.

The budget also proposed property tax governance
reforms and ring-fencing user charges on urban
infrastructure, cities will be incentivized to improve
their credit worthiness for municipal bonds.

An Urban Infrastructure Development Fund (UIDF) will
be established through use of priority sector lending
shortfall. This will be managed by the National
Housing Bank, and will be used by public agencies
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to create urban infrastructure in Tier 2 and Tier 3
cities.

Threats, Risk and Concerns:

Real estate market is inherently a cyclical market
and is affected by macroeconomic conditions,
changes in applicable governmental schemes,
changes in supply and demand for projects,
availability of consumer financing and liquidity.

Major challenges being faced by the real estate
players are:

* Input cost increase

¢ |ncrease in home loan rates

Financial performance overview

+ Procedural delays with regards to land
acquisition, land use, project launches and
construction approvals

+  Heavy dependence on manual labour

Company’s Segment-wise or product-wise
performance

The Company has only one reportable segment,
namely development of Real Estate property and
one geographical segment, namely within India.

For performance of the Company, also refer to the
Directors’ report.

A comparative table showing the synopsis of the Profit and Loss statement for 2022-23 v/s 2021-22 is provided

hereafter:
P & L Snapshot* 2022-23 2021-22
Total revenues (% Lakhs) 13,129 24,169
Wf&)’rol exbéhses (%'Lokhs] ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 18600 .................................... 22435 ‘‘‘‘‘
LD (?H'L‘okhs] oo ARSI ........ . . 958636 ‘‘‘‘‘
EBlT 2 Ldkhs] ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 374 SR 8528 ‘‘‘‘‘
Wﬁr‘ofi’r /(|o§§j beforé“’r R Lakhs) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, [547” ........................................ ]734 ‘‘‘‘‘
Wﬁr‘ofi’r/[loséy]‘ﬂoﬁer ’rdﬁ( 2 Lokr"w'é‘) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, [3863) ........................................ ]504 ‘‘‘‘‘
Wédsic EPSW Tt AT ......... .. [102” ........................................... 397 ‘‘‘‘‘
*Consolidated
Key Financial Ratios
The key ratios arising out of Company’s performance are as follows:
Ratio / Measure* 31 March 31 March  Explanation for change of 25% or more
2023 2022 as compared to previous FY
Interest Coverage Ratio 0.03 0.56 Because of lower income
Current ratio 182 115 Because of decrease in short-ferm
e i} i} borowings e
Debt equity ratio 18.21 11.98 Because of decrease in short-term
e i} i} oM OWINGS
Return on equity % -35.99% 12.53% Because of lower income
Inventory turnover ratio 008 [0 14) H Because of lower income
Trade payable turnover ratio 2"0.1 2 "4.46 H Becouéé of Iowermi‘hcome """""""""
Net capital turnover ratio 019 0.80 Because of lower income
Net profit % 20.42% 6.22% Because of lower income
EBITDA % 4% 35.74% Because of lower income
EBIT % 3% 35.30%  Because of lowerincome
Return on capital employed % 0.54% 22.37% Because of lower income

*consolidated
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Human resources

The Company believes that the quality of its
employees is the key to its success. It is therefore
committed to equip them with appropriate skills,
enabling them to seamlessly evolve with ongoing
technological advancements. The Company’s
employee strength stood at 126 as of March 31,
2023.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company’s internal control system has been
continuously monitored and updated fo ensure that
assets are safeguarded, established regulations are
complied with and pending issues are addressed

0
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promptly. Further, the Audit Committee reviews
reports presented by the internal auditors on a
routine basis. The Committee takes note of the
audit observations and, initiates corrective actions,
wherever necessary. It maintains a constant
dialogue with statutory and internal auditors to
ensure that internal control systems are operating
effectively.

Cautionary statement

This statement made in this section describes the
Company’s objectives, projections, expectation
and estimations which may be ‘forward-looking
statements’ within the meaning of applicable
securities laws and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone Statement of Changes
in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind
AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in Indiq, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 315 March, 2023 the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant fo our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance of our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

1) Accuracy of Recognition, measurement, | Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included
presentation and disclosures of revenues and |the following:

other related balances in view of Ind AS 115|¢ Evaluating the design and implementation and
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. tested operating effectiveness of key intermnal

The Company’s most significant revenue streams confrols over revenue recognifion.

the Company for revenue recognition to check
those are in line with the applicable accounting
standards and their consistent application to the
significant sales contracts.

» Scrutinizihg the revenue journal entries raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which met

Revenue is recognized post fransfer of control of
residential and commercial units to customers for
the amount/ consideration which the company
expects to receive in exchange for those units.
The trigger for revenue recognition is normally
completion of the project or receipt of approvals on
completion from relevant authorities or intimation o o X .
fo the customer of completion, post which the certain nsk—bgsed criteria, with relevant underlying
contract becomes non-cancellable. The company documentation.

records revenue, over time till the actual possession | *  Testing  timeliness  of revenue  recognition by
to the customers, or on actual possession to the comparing individual sample sales transactions to
customers, as determined by the terms of contract underlying contracts.

with customers.
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The risk for revenue being recognized presents akey | « Conducting site visits during the year for selected
audit matfter due to the financial significance and projects to understand the scope, nature and
geographical spread of the company’s projects progress of the projects.

across different regions in India. + Considering the adequacy of the disclosures in
Revenue recognition involves significant estimates the standalone financial statements in respect
related to measurement of costs to complete for of the judgments taken in recognizing revenue
the projects. Revenue from projects is recorded for residential and commercial property units in
based on the company’s assessment of the work accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
completed, costs incurred and accrued and the AS) 115.

estimate of the balance costs to complete.

2) Related Party Transactions In view of the significance of the matter we applied the

The Company has entered info several fransactions | following audit procedures in this area, among others
with related parties during the year 2022-23. to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

We identified related pary transactions as a|l. We carried out an assessment of the key controls
key audit matter because of risks with respect to to identify and disclose related party relationships
completeness of disclosures made in the financial and transactions in accordance with the relevant
statements  including recoverability  thereof; accounting standard.

compliance with statutory regulations goveming |2, we carried out an assessment of compliance with
related party relationships such as the Companies|  the fisting regulations and the regulations under the
Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations and the judgement | Act, including checking of approvals/ scrutiny as
involved in assessing whether fransactions with specified in Sections 177 and 188 of the Act with
related parties are undertaken at ams’ length. respect to the related party fransactions. In cases
where the matter was subject to interpretation, we
exercised judgement to rely on opinions provided
by legal practitioners.

3. We considered the adequacy and appropriateness
of the disclosures in the financial statements,
including recoverability thereof, relating to the
related party fransactions.

4., For transactions with related parties, we inspected
relevant ledgers, agreements and other information
that may indicate the existence of related party
relationships or transactions. We also tested
completeness of related parties with reference to
the various registers maintained by the Company
statutorily.

5. We have tested on a sample basis, Company’s

assessment of related party transactions for arm'’s
length pricing.

Emphasis Matters

A) The Company is 10% partner in Lohitka Properties LLE Mumbai which is developing a real estate project,
presently under construction. The accounts for the albove entity are not yet finalized as mentioned in Note 45
of the financial statements and thus not made available to the Company for incorporation in its accounts.

Accordingly, no effect of the profitability, if any, relating to the above entity has been considered in the
accounts, Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Management Discussion
and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder Information but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect 1o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, net profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concermn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, infentional omissions, Mmisrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concermn basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor’s report
1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters commmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of standalone financial statements of current period and are therefore
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, fo the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
comprehensive income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the accompanying standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 315 March, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the infernal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(Q) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in -Refer
Note 53 of standalone financial statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

ii. There is no such sum which needs to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, in the
standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced orloaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the “Ultimate Beneficiaries”.

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, in the
standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable
to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

(h) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accounfants
Firm Registration No.: 329088k

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29" May, 2023 Membership No.: 060534
UDIN:23060534BGWXXI9062
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(URe)

(i) a)

o)

(i) a)

62 |

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment including Right of use assets and Investment
property.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has aregular programme of physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment by which
Property, Plant & Equipment are verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this programme,
certain Property, Plant & Equipment including Right of use assets and Investment property were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were notficed on such verification. In our opinion, the
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard o the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the fitle deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

The company has not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988).

The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the Management at regular intervals.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and
procedure of physical verification by the management is appropriate.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

During the year the company has made investments, provide guarantee or security, granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans, unsecured, to companies, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties.

(A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding amount atf the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries and
associates.

Guarantees | Security Loan Advances in

nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year

-Subsidiaries - -
-Associates - -

13 lakhs -
2,550 lakhs -

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above
cases

- Subsidiaries - - 2,232 lakhs -
- Associates - - - -
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(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding amount at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than
subsidiaries, and associates

Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year
-Others - - 2,689 lakhs -
Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above cases
- Others 1,282 lakhs - 29,369 lakhs -

The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the
grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to
the company’s interest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular.

There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies or other parties.
No further loans has been given to settle old dues.

The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand.

All Parties Promoters Related Parties
Aggregate amount of loans/
advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on Demand 31,601 lakhs - 12,754 lakhs
Percentage of loans/ advances
in nature of loans to the total
loans 100% - 40.36%

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 of the Act with respect to the loans, guarantees and securities made.
Further the provisions of section 186 of the Act with respect to the loans, guarantees, securities and
investments are not applicable to the Company, being an Infrastructure Company as defined under
Schedule VI to the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 1o 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 as amended.

vi) As explained to us, the Company has maintained cost records prescribed by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

vii) (a) According to information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of the

books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Goods
& Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above
were in arrears as at 31, March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date on which
they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except given below

Name of the Statue | Nature of Dues Amount under Financial Year to Forum where
dispute not yet which the amount dispute is
deposited relates pending
(% in lacs)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 11,143 2020-2021 Calcutta High
Court

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fransactions were surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which
have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

ix) ) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

b) The company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
d) Funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or fo meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates.

f)  The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
or associate companies.

x) ) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, The Company did not raise any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company had issued optionally convertible debentures during the year, such optionally convertible
debentures have been converted into 7.5% Non-convertible Delbentures on 08™ May, 2023.

xi) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under Section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the period
covered by our audit.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xiii) In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us by the management, all
fransactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Xiv) () The company has an infemal audit systerm commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records
of the Company, the Company has not entered any non-cash tfransactions with Directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable.
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xvi) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required 1o be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
reporting under Clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the
year.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Accordingly, reporting under Clause
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
has two CIC as part of the Group

xvii) The company has incurred cash losses amounting ¥ 5,717 lakhs in the financial year and did not incurred
any cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

xix) On the basis of the financial ratfios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

xx)  Sub-section (5) of section 135 regarding corporate social responsibility is not applicable to the company.
S0, such clause of the order is not applicable.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 329088k

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29" May, 2023 Membership No.: 060534
UDIN:23060534BGWXXI9062
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub- section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED as of 31¢

March, 2023 to the extent of records available with us, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the intfemnal
financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentials
components of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of infernal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express an opinion on the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable, to an audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
conftrols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and festing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s interal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) perain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Infernal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 329088k

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29" May, 2023 Membership No.: 060534
UDIN:23060534BGWXXI9062
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Standalone Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023

R in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 133 146
Investment Property 2 2,249 2,303
Intfangible Assets 2 8 18
Financial Assets
Investments 3 9,454 9,114
Other Financial Assets 4 825 630
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 3,327 1,875
Other Non Current Assets 6 123 160
Total Non-Current Assets 16,119 14,246
Current Assets
Inventories 7 89,206 79,168
Financial Assets
Investments 8 826 1,247
Trade Receivables 9 1,262 1,378
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 1,508 919
Bank Balance other than above 11 273 208
Loans 12 31,601 30,308
Other Financial Assets 13 43,297 45,626
Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 952 766
Other Current Assets 15 11,645 12,302
Total Current Assets 1,80,570 1,71,922
TOTAL ASSETS 1,96,689 1,86,168
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 16 757 757
Other Equity 17 8,531 12,913
Total Equity 9,288 13,670
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18 85,573 20,512
Lease Liabilities 19 - 100
Other Non-Current Liabilities 20 3,710 3,710
Provisions 21 178 142
Total Non-Current Liabilities 89,461 24,464
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 22 71,849 1,30,675
Lease Liabilities 23 51 15
Trade Payables 24
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 32 1
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 362 450
Smalll Enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 25 3,340 3,396
Other Current Liabilities 26 22,213 11,957
Provisions 27 93 1,540
Total Current Liabilities 97,940 1,48,034
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,96,689 1,86,168
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 110 64

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXI9062
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Hari Mohan Marda

Director

DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary

ACS 22418
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R in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 28 6,742 17,098
Other Income 29 3,508 4,611
Total Income (1) 10,250 21,709
EXPENSES
Purchases 30 2,717 740
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and 31 (10,038) (2,184)
Work-in-Progress
Employee Benefits Expense 32 1,812 1,482
Finance Costs 33 5,772 6,720
Project Expenses 34 14,523 12,125
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 2 121 108
Other Expenses 35 1,181 1,039
Total Expenses (ll) 16,088 20,030
Profit/(Loss) before tax (I-1I) (5,838) 1,679
Tax Expenses 55
Current Tax - 19
Deferred Tax (1,453) 281
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 54
Profit/(Loss) for the year (4,385) 1,325
Other Comprehensive Income
[tems that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of
Profit or Loss
Remeasurements gains/(loss) on the defined benefit plan 4 9
Changes in fair valuation of equity instruments - -
Income Tax on above (1) 2
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 3 (7)
Total Comprehensive Gain/(Loss) for the year (4,382) 1,318
Eamings per Equity Share of face value of X 2/- each
Basic & Diluted 36 (11.59) 3.50
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 110 64

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXI9062

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Mohan Marda
Director
DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
ACS 22418
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

R in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March, 2023

Year ended
31 March, 2022

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax (5.838) 1,679
Add: Adjusted for

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 121 108
Finance Costs 5,772 6,720
Share of Loss in LLP 70 74
Loss on Sale of Investment 5 3
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investment Property - 0
Profit on Sale of Units of Mutual Funds (83) @1
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets - (7)
Dividend Received 0 -
Interest Income (1.769) (4,435)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1,722) 4,051
Changes in Working Capital:

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (1,408) 25
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (56) (1,220)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (56) (217)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 10,186 3,944
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (195) 2)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets 37 9
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (10,039) (2.184)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 116 2,463
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 2,330 (3.599)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Assets (Net) (186) 295
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 7,656 5,207
Cash Generated from Operations 6,663 8,776
Less: Taxes Paid - 72
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 6,663 8,704
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(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property (75) (17)
and Infangible Assets

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment 31 781
Property

Proceeds from Sale of units of Mutual Funds 16,723 14,091
Purchase of units of Mutual Funds (16,2606) (14,882)
Proceeds from Investments 42 32
Purchase of Debentures (340) (554)
(Investments in)/Proceeds from Fixed Deposit (65) 58
Dividend Received 0 -
Loans Given (8.291) 8,378
Interest Received 1,769 4,435
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) (6,472) 12,322
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Borrowings 1,54,269 1,33,282
Repayment of Borrowings (1,48,039) (1,47,841)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (64) (58)
Interest Paid (5,772) (6,720)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) 398 (21,337)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 589 311)
(A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 919 1,230
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,508 9219

%0 represents amount less than % 1,00,000

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in IND AS-7

"Statement of Cash Flows"

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartfered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXI9062

DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Mohan Marda Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal

ACS 22418
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Emami Realty Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(X in Lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital

1. Current reporting period

Balance at 1st April 2022 757
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Current Year -
Balance at 31st March 2023 757
2. Previous reporting period

Balance at 1st April 2021 757
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Previous Year -
Balance at 31st March 2022 757
b. Other Equity

Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other Total
Capital Revaluation Retained = Comprehensive
Reserve Reserve Earnings Income

Balance at 1st April 2022 2,592 - 10,299 22 12,913
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (4.385) - (4,385)
Other comprehensive - - - 3 3
income/(losses)

Balance at 31st March 2023 2,592 - 5,914 25 8,531
Balance at 1st April 2021 2,592 166 8,807 29 11,594
Add/(Less): Amount - (166) 166 - -
fransferred from Revaluation

Reserve

Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 1,326 - 1,326
Other comprehensive - - - (7) (7)
income/(losses)

Balance at 31st March 2022 2,592 - 10,299 22 12,913

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXI9062
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Mohan Marda

Director
DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal

Company Secretary

ACS 22418
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Notes to Financial Statements

1.1

1.2

1.3
1.3.1

1.3.2

Corporate Overview

Emami Realty Limited is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated on 4th January, 2008
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on the BSE Limited
(BSE)., The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
(CSE). The registered office of the Company is located at Acropalis, 13th Floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main
Road, Kasba, Kolkata — 700107.

The Company is carrying on the business of real estate development.

The standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023
were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 29th May, 2023.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 ("Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016. These financial
statements are prepared under the historical cost conversion on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values.

Significant Accounting Policies
Operating Cycle

The Operating Cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has evaluated and considered its operating cycle as 3
to 5 years and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

An asset is freated as current when it is:

- Expected to be redlised or to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected 10 be seftled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the setflement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Financial Statements are prepared
and presented in Indian Rupees and has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
stated.

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are translated to the Company’s
functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are franslated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date.

Foreignh exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of fransactions in foreign currencies
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.
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1.3.3

1.3.4

1.3.5

1.3.6

1.3.7

1.3.8

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated at
the exchange rates atf the dates of tfransactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are tfranslated using the exchange rates at the date of the fair valuation. The
gain or loss arising on tfranslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., franslation differences
on items whose fair value gain or 1oss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI
or profit or l0ss, respectively).

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingent liabilities) at the end of the reporting period and the reported income and expenses during
the year. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncerainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition on current cost basis less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment if any. Cost comprises purchase price and directly
affributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the infended use. Any frade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method over the estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and is in line with the requirement of Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the assets flow to
the enterprise and are amortised on Straight Line Method over their estimated useful life of five years.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, infangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Capital Work-in-Progress and Intangible Assets under Development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost includes
land, related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs and other
direct expenditure.

Investment Property & Depreciation
(i) Recognition & measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Investment properties are held initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly aftributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use.
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1.3.9

1.3.10

1.3.11

1.3.12

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the company. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of profit and
loss as incurred.

(i) Depreciation on investment property is provided using the written down method based on useful
lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds ifs recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value.

Construction-work-in progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction
costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental 1o the projects undertaken by the Company.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
it can be reliably measured. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The fransaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration
on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. The
Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of revenue transaction as below:

In terms of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be recognised at a point of time
(project completion method) upon satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for fransfer of goods or
services to customers.

Interest Income is recognised using the effective interest method and is included under the head
‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend Income including share of profit in LLP is recognised when the Company’s right to receive
dividend is established.

All other incomes are recognised on accrual basis.
Employee Benefits
a. Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund

The Company makes conftributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities 1o a
defined contribution refirement benefit plan for qualifying employees.

b. Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity
The Company’s liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method af the
end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Company
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1.3.13

1.3.14
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recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The
effect of any plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

c. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Company’s liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method af the
end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits, The Company
recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or
liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective
tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used o compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the
reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a fransaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (fax loss). Deferred income tax is defermined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period,
electing not to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the ITA, 1961 as infroduced
by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right 1o offset
and intends either 1o settle on a net basis, or to redlise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, electing not to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 as infroduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019.

Leases

The Company at the inception of a contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 introduces a single balance sheet
lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
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1.3.16

1.3.16

1.3.17

Lessor accounting remains similar to the accounting under the previous standard i.e. lessor confinues
to classify leases as finance or operating lease. The determination of whether an arrangement is, or
contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arangement.

As a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commmencement date.
The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost o dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated over the useful life of the asset. On the balance sheet
date, the right-of-use of asset is included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have
been included in the borrowings and other financial liabilities.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged 1o the profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases, where the Company is a lessor, is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease ferm unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflation.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating 1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attrioutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily fakes a substantial period of time to get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
fo equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculafing diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

1.3.18 Financial Instruments

q)

b)

c)

Recognition and Initial Measurement

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a pary to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities,
other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), are added to the fair value on
initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are
carried af fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), are charged to the statement of profit and loss.
However, frade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured
at fransaction price.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
Debt Instruments

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets in the nature of debt instruments
are classified as follows:

Amortised Cost - Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairments, if any. Interest income
calculated using effective interest rate (EIR) method and impairment |oss, if any are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - Financial assets that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both holding the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest and by selling the financial
assets, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Changes
in fair value are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI) and on de-recognition,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss. Inferest income calculated using EIR method and impairment loss, if any are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVIPL) - A financial asset which is not classified in any of the
above categories are subsequently measured at fair valued through profit or loss. Changes in fair
value and income on these assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for frading are classified as at FVIPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVIPL. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVIOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVIPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified as follows:

Amortised cost - Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost by
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i)

d)

e)

f)

9)

default. Interest expense calculated using EIR method is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Borrowings - After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and Other Payables - These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Company prior to the end of financial year. The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within the Company’s
operating cycle. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) - Financial liabilities are classified as FVIPL if it is held for
frading, or is designated as such on initial recognition. Changes in fair value and interest expense
on these liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Guarantee Contracts - Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs
because the specified borrower fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for fransaction costs that are directly atftributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contfractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows including
risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or expires.
Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets that are carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) are assessed for possible impairments basis expected credit losses taking into
account the past history of recovery, risk of default of the counterparty, existing market conditions
etc. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For Trade receivables, the Company provides for expected credit losses based on a simplified
approach as per Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments. Under this approach, expected credit losses
are computed basis the probability of defaults over the lifetime of the asset.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o redlise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is normally determined by references to the transaction
price or market price. If the fair value is not reliably determinable, the company determines the
fair value using valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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1.3.19 Segment Reporting

1.4

1.5

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the Board
of Directors/Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance based on an
analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Segment revenue and expenses
include amounts which can be directly attributable to the segment and allocable on reasonable
basis. Segment assets and liabilities are assets / liabilities which are directly attributable to the segment
or can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Income / expenses / assets / liabilities relating to the
enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as
unallocated income / expenses / assets / liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31,
2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023 as
below;

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements - The amendments require companies 1o disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not
expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes — The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on
fransactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope
of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal faxable and deductible
temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — The amendments will
help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “*monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates
if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted with the Standalone Financial
Statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.
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2. Property, Plant & Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets

% in Laknhs)

a) Property, Plant & Equipment (Current Year)

Net Block

As on
31.03.2022

As on
31.03.2023

Depreciation & Amortisation

Upto
31.03.2023

Deductions/
Adjustments

During the

Year

As on

Gross Block

Additions

As on
31.03.2023 : 01.04.2022

Deductions/
Adjustments

As on
01.04.2022

Particulars

Land
Plant & Machinery

11

14
52

100

96
35
15
51

114
94

107

Fumniture & Fittings

Vehicles

42

54

40
16
54

16
52

18
54

Office Equipments

Electrical Accessories
Computer Peripheral

12
109

11

65

56
77

76
186

68
186

47

139

62

Building - Right of Use

Assets
Total

146

133

415

84

331

548

71

477

%0 represents amount less than %1,00,000

b) Investment Property (Current Year)

Net Block

As on
31.03.2022

As on
31.03.2023

Depreciation & Amortisation

Upto
31.03.2023

Deductions/
Adjustments

During the

Year

As on

Gross Block

Additions

As on

31.03.2023 | 01.04.2022

Deductions/
Adjustments

As on
01.04.2022

Particulars

440 463

23 110

87

550

550

Flafs - Guest House
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15

35
15
51

16

47

40
16
54
68

22

62

Vehicles

14
50
50

16
54

Office Equipments

Electrical Accessories
Computer Peripheral

12
109

56

12

56
186

171

77

62

15

186

Building - Right o Use

Assets
Total

215

146

331

16

77

270

477

22

14

485

%0 represents amount less than %1,00,000

e) Investment Property (Previous Year)

Net Block

As on
31.03.2021

As on

Depreciation & Amortisation

Upto

31.03.2022 | 31.03.2022

Deductions/
Adjustments

During the

Year

As on
01.04.2021

Gross Block

Additions

As on
31.03.2022

Deductions/
Adjustments

As on
01.04.2021

Particulars

488
2,608

463

1,840

87

62 25

550
1,840

550
2,608

Flats - Guest House

768

Capital Work-in-Progress
(Refer Note No. 46)

Total

2,303 3,096

87

2,390 62 25

768

3,158

f) Intangible Assets (Previous Year)
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18

100
100

93

118
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115
115

Software
Total

22

93
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3. Investments (Non - Current) R in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
. Investments in Equity Instruments
a. In Associates (Carried at cost)
Unquoted fully paid up
Roseview Developers Private Limited 1 1
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Prajay Urban Private Limited 1 1
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Bengal Emami Housing Limited 6 6
60,000 Equity Shares of Z10/- each
Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited 69 69
6,90,000 Equity Shares of 10/- each
77 77
b. Other Investments Unquoted fully paid up (Carried at Fair
value through Other Comprehensive Income)
The North Kanara G.S.B. Co-Operative Bank Limited 1 1
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited 0 0
1,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Natural Synergies Limited 42 42
4,16,750 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Creative Cultivation Private Limited 0 0
4,400 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
43 43
Less: Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 42 42
1 1
ll. Investments in Debentures -
Unquoted fully paid up (Carried at amortised cost)
Vijaybhan Investments and Consultancy Private Limited* 9,376 9,036
9,376 (9,036) 6.75% Optionally Convertible
Non- Transferable Debentures of ¥1,00,000/- each
9,376 9,036
lll. Investments in Limited Liability Partnership (Refer Note No. 52)
Capital Contribution to:
Lohitka Properties LLP 0 0
Supervalue Nirman LLP 0 0
9,454 9,114
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value - -
thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 9,454 9,114

%0 represents amount less than %1,00,000

Annual Report 2022-23 | 83



Emanmi Realty Limited 156-181
s ] ‘ Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements Notes to Financial Statements

* 9,376 Debentures are convertible into equity shares at the option of the Debenture Holders and if not 7. Inventories (Carried at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value) [ in Lakhs)
converted are redeemable as follows:

As at As at
Nos of Debentures Date of Redemption Nos of Debentures Date of Redemption 31st March 2023  31st March 2022
6481 31st December, 2024 15 31st May, 2029 A. Work-in-Progress
876 30th March, 2027 17 31st July, 2029 Land 7,503 7,503
34 30th June, 2028 8 30th November, 2029 Work-in-Progress 72,347 60,513
17 31st December, 2028 513 31st March, 2030 79,850 68,016
840 30th March, 2029 575 30th April, 2030 B. Finished Goods
4. Other Financial Assets (Non-Current (% in Lakhs Finished froperties sl 6,153
. i i -Cu
( ) ) 4,357 6,153
As at As at C. Stock-in-Trade 5 5
31st March 2023  31st March 2022 5 5
securtty Deposs 47 a4 D. (i) Equity Shares - Unquoted fully paid up
Advances to Others 773 586 P
o ; . 5 In Subsidiaries
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months Sheha Ashiana Private Limited 5 5
£28 630 50,000 Equity Shares of Z10/- each
* Pledged with banks as security for interest payments New Age Realty Private Limited 3 3
5. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 30,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Def dt t arisi t of Delta PV Private Limited 2,538 2538
eferred tax asset arising on account of : 450,020 Equity Shares of 2 10/- each
Tax impact due to difference between tax depreciation and book 49 22 2546 2546
depreciation . _ ’ ;
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan through Profit & Loss 61 48 (iiy Debentures - Unquoted fully paid up
Unabsorbed business loss carried forward 3,230 1,830 Prajay Urboln Private Lmﬁegl 2,448 2,448
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan through Other - 2 24,480 Optionally Convertidle Debentures of ¥ 10,000/- each
Comprehensive Income 2,448 2,448
3,340 1,902 89,206 79,168

Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Tax impact of expenses charged off in financial statement but 13 27

8. Investments (Current)

liability under tax law deferred Paintings (Carried at cost) 318 365
13 27 Investment in Mutual Fund Quoted
3,327 1,875 (Carried at Fair value through Profit & Loss)
Kotak Money Market Fund Direct Plan Growth - 471
6. Other Non Current Assets (Nil) (13001.548 units @ ¥ 3620.7122 each)
Security Deposits 123 160 Kotak Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth (Nil) = 411
123 160 (9560.371 units @ ¥ 4303.0834 each)
Kotak Ovemight Fund Direct - Growth 508 -
(42,480.006 units @ % 1,195.7923 each)
826 1,247
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 508 882
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 318 365
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9. Trade Receivables  in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good * 1,262 1,378
1,262 1,378
* Ageing schedule Refer Note No. 47
10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks 1,351 818
Cheques in hand 156 -
Cash in hand 1 1
Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months * - 100
1,508 919
* Pledged with banks as security for interest payments
11. Bank Balances other than above
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 273 208
12 months *
273 208
* Pledged with banks as security for interest payments
12. Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to Related Parties- Considered good (Refer Note No. 42)* 12,754 11,785
Loans to Others- Considered good * 10,338 18,523
Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 8.509 -
and (Refer Note No. 58)*
31,601 30,308

* Repayable on demand

Loans in the nature of loans granted to the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person, that

are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment are mentioned below:

Notes to Financial Statements

156-181

‘ Financial Statements

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Type of borrower Amount of

loan and

Percentage to
the total loans

Amount of
loan and

advances in and advances advances in

Percentage to
the total loans
and advances

the nature in the nature the nature in the nature
of loan of loans of loan of loans
outstanding outstanding
Related Parties 12,754 40.36% 11,785 38.88%
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13. Other Financial Assets R in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Refundable Deposit towards Joint Development Agreement to 31,349 34,062
Related Parties (Refer Note No. 42)
Refundable Deposit towards Joint Development Agreement to 11,247 10,977
Others
Advances 1o Related Parties (Refer Note No. 42) 69 42
Other Receivables - Promoter (Refer Note No. 42) - 28
Other Receivables - Others 632 517
43,297 45,626
14. Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Income Tax and Refunds Receivable (Net of Provision) 952 766
952 766
15. Other Current Assets
Advances 1o Employees 8 13
Advances to Contractors/Suppliers
- Mobilization 965 -
- Others 205 165
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advance (19) (19)
Advances to Land Owners 988 848
Advances to Others 972 80
Current Account Balance with a LLP (Refer Note No. 52) 6,998 9,859
Security Deposits 163 -
Balances with Government Authorities 1,363 1,352
Prepaid Expenses 2 4
11,645 12,302
16. Equity Share Capital
Authorized Shares
13,52,50,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each 2,705 2,705
2,705 2,705
Issued, subscribed & fully paid-up shares
3,78,43,889 Equity Shares of X 2/- each * 757 757
757 757

* Of the above, 1,35,45,497 equity shares fully paid up have been issued in consideration other than cash
by way of allotment of Shares Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement in last 5 years
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a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Notes to Financial Statements
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Name of Promoter

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
No of shares (T in Lakhs) No of shares (% in Lakhs)

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the ~ 3,78,43,889 757  2,79,38,889 559

period

Add: Issued for consideration other than - - 99,05,000 198

cash during the period

Shares Outstanding at the end of the period  3,78,43,889 757 3,78,43,889 757

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥2/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Particulars No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
in the class in the class

Diwakar Finvest Private Limited (Formerly 1,08,48,318 28.67%  1,08,48,318 28.67%

Sneha Enclave Private Limited)

Surgj Finvest Private Limited 1,04,47,850 27.61% 1,04,47,850 27.61%

d. Shareholding of Promoters:

Name of Promoter

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

No of % % No of % %
shares holding Change shares holding Change
inthe  during the inthe  during the
class year class year

Vidula Agarwal 26,666  0.070% 0.000% 26,666 0.070%  -0.025%
Mohan Goenka 25,716  0.068% 0.000% 25,716 0.068%  -0.024%
Aditya Vardhan Agarwal 22,099  0.058% 0.000% 22,099 0.058%  -0.021%
Shobhana Agarwal 20,000 0.053% 0.000% 20,000 0.053%  -0.019%
Dhiraj Agarwal 14,269  0.038% 0.000% 14,269 0.038%  -0.013%
Harsha Vardhan Agarwal 8,685 0.023% 0.000% 8,685 0.023%  -0.008%
Usha Agarwal 3,942  0.010% 0.000% 3,942  0.010%  -0.004%
Madan Lal Agarwal 3,333  0.009% 0.000% 3,333  0.009%  -0.003%
Kusum Agarwal 2,266  0.006% 0.000% 2,266 0.006%  -0.002%
Abhishek Agarwal 1,933  0.005% 0.000% 1,933 0.005%  -0.002%
Laxmi Devi Bajoria 1,666  0.004% 0.000% 1,666 0.004%  -0.002%
Radheshyam Goenka 748  0.002% 0.000% 748 0.002%  -0.001%
Avishi Sureka 333 0.001% 0.000% 333  0.001% 0.000%
Mansi Agarwal 333 0.001% 0.000% 333 0.001% 0.000%
Jyoti Goenka 333 0.001% 0.000% 333  0.001% 0.000%
Shanti Devi Agarwal 237 0.001% 0.000% 237 0.001% 0.000%
Radheshyam Agarwal 166  0.000% 0.000% 166  0.000% 0.000%
Richa Agarwal 166  0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Rashmi Goenka 166  0.000% 0.000% 166  0.000% 0.000%
Saswat Goenka 166  0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Saroj Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Shreya Goenka 166  0.000% 0.000% 166  0.000% 0.000%
Nimisha Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Yogesh Goenka 133 0.000% 0.000% 133 0.000% 0.000%
Sachin Goenka 133 0.000% 0.000% 133 0.000% 0.000%
Puja Goenka 111 0.000% 0.000% 111 0.000% 0.000%
Vibhash Vardhan Agarwal 104  0.000% 0.000% 104  0.000% 0.000%
Jayant Goenka 103 0.000% 0.000% 103 0.000% 0.000%
Amitabh Goenka 171 0.000% 0.000% 171 0.000% 0.000%
2,40,14,150 63.456% 0.000% 2,40,14,150 63.456%  12.956%

17. Other Equity  in Lakhs)

As at As at

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 2,592 2,592
Closing Balance 2,592 2,592
Revaluation Reserve

Opening Balance 166
Less: Amount transferred to Retained Eamings (166)

No of % % No of % %
shares holding Change shares holding Change

inthe  during the inthe  during the

class year class year
Diwakar Finvest Private Limited 1,08,48,318 28.666% 0.000% 1,08,48,318 28.666% 5.771%
(Formerly Sneha Enclave Private Limited)
Surgj Finvest Private Limited 1,04,47,850 27.608% 0.000% 1,04,47,850 27.608% 2.996%
Midkot Investments Private Limited 36,143  0.096% 0.000% 36,143  0.096% 0.096%
Emami Paper Mills Ltd 833  0.002% 0.000% 833 0.002%  -0.001%
Emami Frank Ross Limited 333  0.001% 0.000% 333  0.001% 0.000%
Emami Capital Markets Limited 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%  -0.002%
Pan Emami Cosmed Ltd 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%  -0.001%
Tmt Viniyogan Limited - 0.000% 0.000% - 0.000% -0.126%
Priti A Sureka 9,33,880 2.468% 0.000% 9,33,880  2.468% 0.898%
Santosh Goenka 6,96,832 1.841% 0.000% 6,96,832 1.841% 1.829%
Rajkumar Goenka 3,97.349  1.050% 0.000% 3,97.349  1.050% 1.046%
Indu Goenka 297,483 0.786% 0.000% 297,483 0.786% 0.785%
Prashant Goenka 40,366 0.107% 0.000% 40,366 0.107%  -0.038%
Sushil Kumar Goenka 40,166 0.106% 0.000% 40,166 0.106%  -0.038%
Manish Goenka 40,122  0.106% 0.000% 40,122 0.106%  -0.038%
Ashish Goenka 40,000 0.106% 0.000% 40,000 0.106%  -0.037%
Rohin Raj Sureka 33,333  0.088% 0.000% 33,333 0.088%  -0.031%
Vidhishree Agarwal 26,666 0.070% 0.000% 26,666 0.070%  -0.025%

Closing Balance
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( in Lakhs)
As at As at 22. Borrowings (Current) (% in Lakhs)
31st March 2023  31st March 2022 As at As at
Retained Earnings 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 10,299 8.807 Secured
Add: Amount transferred from Revaluation Reserve - 166 Overdraft from Banks * - 192
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (4,385) 1,326 Current Maturities of Long-term Borrowings (Refer Note No. 43[A] & 43[B]) 5,306 10,551
5,914 10,299 5,306 10,743
Other Comprehensive Income Unsecured
Opening Balance 22 20 Loans from Related Party # 27,809 79,931
Add: Gain/(Loss) for the year 3 (7) Loans from Other Bodies Corporate ™ 36,859 35,367
25 22 Current Maturities of Long-term Borrowings (Refer Note No. 44[B] & 44[C]) 1,875 4,634
Total Reserves and Surplus 8,531 12,913 66,543 1,19,932
71,849 1,30,675

Nature and description of reserve

i. Capital Reserve - Capital Reserve was created on amalgamations.

ii. Revaluation Reserve - Revaluation Reserve was created on revaluation of land with structure held as

Property, Plant and Equipment.

18. Borrowings (Non-Current)

* T Nil kR 192) Lakhs secured by subservient charges on receivables of the project at “Emami City”, Kolkata.

# Repayable on demand
~ Terms of repayment within 4 o 12 months

23. Lease Liabilities (Current)

Secured Right of Use Liability - Lease Rent (Refer Note No. 54) 51 15
Term Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 43[A]) 6,034 3,233 51 15
6,034 3,233 24. Trade Payables
Unsecured
Optionally Convertiole Debenture (Refer Note No. 44[A] 20.000 Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smaill Enterprises* 32 1
° Y : - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises 362 450
Term Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 44[B]) 5,152 7,024 and Small Enterprises*
Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies (Refer Note 4,387 10,255 394 451
No. 44[C])
79,539 17,279 * Ageing schedule Refer Note No. 48
85,573 20,512 25. Other Financial Liabilities
19. Lease Liabilities (Non-Current) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 62 55
Right of Use Liability - Lease Rent (Refer Note No. 54) i 100 Advances from Related Parties (Refer Note No. 42) Uy 1
_ 100 Advances from Others 2,804 2,979
Deposits Received 7 7
20. Other Non-Current Liabilities Liabilities for Expenses 15 10
Against Development 3.710 3.710 Employee Benefits Payables 141 108
3,710 3,710 Retention Money 300 226
. 3,340 3,396
21. Provisions (Non-Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 38) 26. Other Current Liabilities
Gratuity 113 92 Advances from Customers 21,620 11,244
Leave Encashment 65 50 Fluctuating Capital Account with LLP 195 125
178 142 Duties & Taxes Payables 398 588
22,213 11,957
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27. Provisions (Current)

% in Lakhs)

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 38)

Gratuity 43 31
Leave Encashment 21 17
Ofthers 29 29
Provision for Project Expenses Payable - 1,463
93 1,540

28. Revenue from Operations

Notes to Financial Statements

156-181
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Year ended
31st March 2023

Year ended
31st March 2022

Operating Income

30. Purchases R in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Shares - 606
Land - 21
Plots 2,639 -
Trade Goods 78 113
2,717 740
31. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress
I. Opening Stock
Land 7,503 7,851
Work-in-Progress 60,513 51,270
Finished Units/Flats 6,153 13.473
Shares 2,546 1,940
Debentures 2,448 2,448
Stock-in- Trade 5 2
79,168 76,984
Il. Closing Stock
Land 7,503 7,503
Work-in-Progress 72,347 60,513
Finished Units/Flats 4,357 6,153
Shares 2,546 2,546
Debentures 2,448 2,448
Stock-in- Trade 5 5
89,206 79,168
Changes in Inventories (I -1) (10,038) (2,184)
32. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Gratuity & Allowances 1,689 1,411
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 62 46
Staff Welfare Expenses 61 25
1,812 1,482
33. Finance Costs
Interest Expenses 12,762 14,772
Other Borrowing Costs 218 381
Interest on Right of Use Liabilty 8 13
12,988 15,166
Less: Transferred to Construction Work-in-Progress 7.216 8,446
5,772 6,720

Sale of Flats/Plots 6,384 16,491
Sale of Trade Goods 91 114
6,475 16,605
Other Operating Income
Nomination Charges 115 346
Cancellation Charges 58 46
Legal Fees Received 3 13
Interest Received from Customer 91 88
267 493
6,742 17,098
29. Other Income
Interest Income from
Subsidiaries - 110
Associates 154 71
LLP - 1,086
Other Bodies Corporate 966 2,289
Debentures 634 575
Fixed Deposits 13 15
Income Tax Refund 0 60
Others 3 230
1,770 4,436
Profit on Mutual Fund Units 83 91
Profit on Sale of Investment Property - 0
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - 7
Dividend Received 0 -
Rent Received 19 19
Commission Received 24 42
Professional Fees Received 43 -
Reimbursement of Electricity Charges 52 -
Provision for Project Expenses Written Back 1,463 -
Miscellaneous Income 54 16
1,738 175
3,508 4,611

% 0 represents amount less than % 1,00,000
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37. Auditors’ Remuneration (% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Audit Fees 16 10
Tax Audit Fees 2 1
Limited Review 3 2
Other Matters 3 3
24 16

38. As per actuarial valuations as on 31st March, 2023 and recognized in the financial statement in

respect of Employee benefit schemes

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Gratuity

Leave Gratuity Leave

Encashment

Encashment

Non-funded

Non-funded Non-funded Non-funded

A. Expenses Recognised in the income
statement

Current Service Cost

28

22

25 14

Inferest Cost

Loss/(Gain) on settlement

Ao~

Benefit Liability/(Assets)

Net interest cost/(income) on the Net Defined

5. Re-measurement (or Actuarial)(gain)/loss
arising from:

- Change in demographic assumptions

- Change in financial assumptions

- Experience variance (i.e. Actual expense vs

assumptions)

- Others

6. Return on plan assets, excluding amount
recognised in net interest expenses

7. Re-measurement (or Actual)(gain)/loss arising
because of change in effect of asset ceiling

8. Total Expenses recognised in the Statement

of Profit & Loss

34

30

4] 17

Assets and Liability

Present value of Obligation

156

86

124 67

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)]

(156)

(86)

(124) (67)

Effects of Assets Ceiling, if any

O Moeid 2@

Net asset/(liability) recognized in balance
sheet

(156)

(86)

(124) (67)

34. Project Expenses R in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Materials Consumed 1,272 715
Payments to Contractors 3,132 1,438
Consultants Fees 332 161
Project Promotion & Expenses 1,684 915
Insurance 1 -
Repair & Maintenance 41 94
Rates & Taxes 600 195
Travelling & Conveyance 31 27
Other Operating Expenses 214 134
Finance Costs 7,216 8,446
14,523 12,125
35. Other Expenses
Electricity Charges 13 12
Rent B 7
Repairs & Maintenance 47 20
Rates & Taxes 2 23
Advertisement & Publicity 3 5
Custodial Fees 5 3
Listing Fees 6 5
Directors' Sitting Fees 4 4
Printing & Stationery 4 3
Royalty 10 10
Insurance 1 1
Travelling & Conveyance 32 29
Legal & Professional Fees 380 227
Project Promotion & Expenses 495 539
Share of Loss in LLP 70 74
Loss on Sale of Investment B 3
Miscellaneous Expenses 75 58
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer Note No. 37) 24 16
1,181 1,039
36. Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings per Share is calculated as follows:
Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (4,385) 1,325
Weighted average number of equity shares 3,78,43,889 3,78,43,889
Nominal value of Equity Share 2.00 2.00
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (11.59) 3.50

0

Change in Present Value of Obligation
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1. Present value of Obligation as at beginning of

period

124

67

102 57

2. Curmrent Service Cost

28

22

25 14

3. Interest Expenses or Cost
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% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

Gratuity Leave
Encashment

(X in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2022
Gratuity Leave
Encashment

Non-funded Non-funded

Non-funded Non-funded

Re-measurement (or Actuarial)(gain)/loss
arising from:

- Change in demographic assumptions

- Change in financial assumptions

- (2)

(1)

- Experience variance (i.e. Actual expense vs
assumptions)

- Others

Past Service Cost

Effect of change in foreign exchange rates

Benefits Paid

(19) (7)

Acquisition Adjustment

Effect of business combinations or disposals

V0 ©NOO A

Present value of Obligation as at the end of
period

124 67

o

Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain)/losses

- Change in demographic assumptions

- Change in financial assumptions

- Experience variance (i.e. Actual expense vs
assumptions)

- Others

Retumn of plan assets, excluding amount
recognised in net interest expenses

Re-measurement (or Actuarial)(gain)/loss
arising because of change in effect of asset
ceiling

Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive income

(3) -

Financial Assumptions

Discount Rate (%)

7.40% 7.40%

7.10% 7.10%

Salary Growth Rate (per annum)

6.00% 6.00%

6.00% 6.00%

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality Rate (% of IALM 06-08)

5.00% 5.00%

5.00% 5.00%

1% to 8%

1% 10 8%

1% to 8%

1% to 8%

2. Withdrawal Rate (per annum)

Particulars

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2023 March, 2022

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

156 124 86 67

Gratuity

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 165 147 133 116
(% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity) 6.43% -5.41% 7.04% -6.26%
Salary Growth Rate (-/+1%) 147 166 116 133
(% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity) -5.73% 6.71% -6.38% 7.11%
Aftrition Rate (-/4+50%) 156 156 124 123
(% change compared to base due fo sensitivity) 0.26% 0.04% 0.33% -0.36%

Leave Encashment

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 148 82 72 63
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 70.23% -5.57% 6.81% -6.07%
Salary Growth Rate (-/+1%) 82 93 63 72
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -5.93% 6.55% -6.21% 6.90%
Aftrition Rate (-/+50%) 87 87 67 68
(% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity) -0.53% 0.49% -0.46% 0.42%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as

some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period.

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Gratuity Leave Encashment
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Weighted average duration (based on discounted 4.91 5.50 5.01 4.92
cash flows)
Gratuity Leave Encashment

Sensitivity Analysis :-

Significant actuarial assumptions for determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant. The result of sensitivity analysis is given below:
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2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on
undiscounted basis)

1 Year 43 31 22 17
2 to 5 Years 14 29 6 30
6 1o 10 Years 89 67 58) 39
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39. Carrying value and Fair Value of Financial Instruments is as follows: (X in Lakhs)
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a) Financial assets measured at fair value at 31st March 2023 [ in Lakhs)

Particulars

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial Assets

Investment at FVTPL

In equity shares

In debentures

In Investments

508

508

Investment at FVOCI

In equity shares

Amortized Cost

In equity shares

In debentures

9.376

9,376

In Investments

318

318

Financial assets measured at fair value at 31st March 2022

Particulars

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial Assets

Investment at FVTPL

In equity shares

In debentures

In Investments

882

882

Investment at FVOCI

In equity shares

Amortized Cost

In equity shares

In debentures

9,036

9,036

In Investments

365

365

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

At Cost  FVOCI FVIPL Amortized Total At Cost  FVOCI FVIPL Amortized Total

Cost Cost

Financial Assets:
Non-Current
Investment in equity 77 1 - - 78 77 1 - - 78
instruments
Investment in 9,376 9,376 9,036 9,036
Debentures
Investment in LLPs 0 0 0 0
Ofther Financial Assets 825 825 630 630
Current -
Investments 508 318 826 882 365 1,247
Trade Receivables 1,262 1,262 1,378 1,378
Cash and Cash 1,507 1,507 919 919
Equivalents
Other Bank Balances 273 273 208 208
Loans 31,600 31,600 30,308 30,308
Other Financial Assets 43,298 43,298 45,626 45,626
Total 77 1 508 88,459 89,045 77 1 882 88,470 89,430
Financial Liabilities:
Non-Current
Borrowings 85,573 85,573 20,512 20,512
Lease Liabilities - - 100 100
Current
Borrowings 71,849 71,849 1,30,675 1,30,675
Lease Liabilities 51 51 15 15
Trade Payables 394 394 451 451
Other Financial 3,340 3,340 3,395 3,395
Liabilities
Total - - - 1,61,207 1,61,207 - - - 1,655,148 1,55,148

% 0 represents amount less than % 1,00,000

40. Fair Value Hierarchy

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value. The different levels have been
defined below:-

Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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b) Financial instruments at amortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial
statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that
the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or
settled.

¢) During the year there has been no transfer from one level to another

41. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, frade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal
financial assetfs include inventories, trade and other receivables, loans and cash & cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Management oversees
the management of these risks and ensures that the Company’s financial risks activities are governed
by appropriate policies and procedures and that finance risk are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

A. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counter party default on its
obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables and other financial
assets. Other financial assets like bank deposits, advances and security deposits are with banks, government
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bodies, utility providers, contractors and others and hence, the Company does not expect any credit risk
with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets.

With respect to trade receivables, the Company has constituted feams to review the receivables on periodic
basis and take necessary mitigations whenever required. The following table summarizes the change in the
loss allowance measured using ECL

R in Lakhs)

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Trade Receivables Security Deposits

As on April 1, 2021 - -

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss - -

As on March 31, 2022 - -

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss - -

As on March 31, 2023 = =
B. Liquidity Risk

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are borrowing, Bank overdrafts, loans from bodies corporate,
debentures and cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The
Company believes that these are sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly no liquidity risk is
perceived.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts are based on contractual undiscounted payments

Particulars Maturity period 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings within 1 year 71,849 1,30,675
Trade Payable within 1 year 394 451
Other Financial Liabilities within 1 year 3,340 3,396
Lease Liabilities within 1 year 51 15
Financial Liabilities - Non-Current

Borrowings Between 1-5 year 85,573 20,512
Lease Liabilities Between 1-5 year - 100

C. Market Risk
a. Interest Rate Risk

The Company has taken debt to finance its working capital, which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk.

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Variable rate borrowing 22,816 35,945
Fixed rate borowing 1,34,667 1,156,298
Total borrowings 1,657,483 1,561,243

Market risk is the risk from fluctuation in the fair value of future cash flows from financial instruments because
of change in market prices. Market risk comprises two type of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk and commodity/real estate risk.

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities/real estates. Its operating activities
require the ongoing development of real estate. The Company’s management has developed and enacted
a risk management strategy regarding commaodity/real estate price risk and its mitigation. The Company is
subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in inferest rate, with all
other variables held constant. The impact on entity’s profit before tax is due to change in the fair value of
borrowings.

(% in Lakhs)
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Interest Sensitivity*
Interest Rates increase by 100 basis points (228) (359)
Interest Rates decrease by 100 basis points 228 359

*Holding all other variables constant
b. Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVIPL or FVOCI. To
manage the price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assefs.

Sensitivity Analysis

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Price Sensitivity*

Price increase by 5%- FVOCI 0 0
Price decrease by 5%- FVOCI (0) (0)
Price increase by 5%- FVIPL 25.40 4410
Price decrease by 5%- FVIPL (25.40) (44.10)

*Holding all other variables constant
42. Related Party Transactions

1. List of Related Parties as required by IND AS-24, “Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:
A. Related Party
i. Entities having significant interest over the Company
1. Diwakar Finvest Private Limited
(Formerly Sneha Enclave Private Limited)
2. Surgj Finvest Private Limited
ii. Subsidiaries :
1. Sneha Ashiana Private Limited (100%)
2. Delta PV Private Limited (100% w.e.f. 17.06.2021)
3. New Age Realty Private Limited (60%)
iii. Associates :
1. Roseview Developers Private Limited (50%)
2. Prajay Urban Private Limited (50%)
3.  Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited (33.66%)
4. Bengal Emami Housing Limited (30%)
iv. Limited Liability Partnerships :
1. Lohitka Properties LLP (10%)
2. Supervalue Nirman LLP (0.0006%)

Company is an Associate

Company is an Associate
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B. Other Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
i. Key Management Personnel & Other Directors:
a) Key Management Personnel:
1. Mr. Rajesh Bansal Whole-time Director
2. Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Managing Director & CEO
3. M Rajendra Agarwal Chief Financial Officer
4. Mrs. Payel Agarwal Company Secretary
b) Other Directors:
1. Mr. Abhijit Datta Non-Executive Chairman (Independent)
2. Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director
3. Mr Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Independent Director
4. Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
5. Mr Debasish Bhaumik Independent Director
6. Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
ii. Entities where a Director has significant influence
1. Dev Infracity Private Limited
2. Rqj Infraproperties Private Limited
iii. Promoters
Diwakar Finvest Private Limited (Formerly Sneha Enclave Private Limited)
2. Surgj Finvest Private Limited
3. Midkot Investments Private Limited (Formerly Midkot Trades Private Limited)
4, Emami Paper Mills Limited
5. Emami Frankross Limited
6. Ashish Goenka
7. Emami Capital Markets Limited*
* Merged with Midkot Investments Private Limited w.e.f. 08.12.2021
iv. Director of Subsidiary, his relative, firms with whom transaction has taken place

Mr. Hari Khemchand

Director of Subsidiary

Ms. Divya Hari Khemchand

wife of Director of Subsidiary

Ms. Vedika Hari Khemchand

Daughter of Director of Subsidiary

Ms. Avanthika Hari Khemchand

Daughter of Director of Subsidiary

Lachmi Narain Electricals

Partnership firm of Director of Subsidiary

SRS ISR

Lachmi Narain Cables

Proprietorship firm of Director of Subsidiary
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1. Add Albatross Properties Private Limited 46. Everline Buildcon LLP

2. Amii Hospital Limited 47. Everline Builders LLP

3. Creative Cultivation Private Limited 48. Everline Conclave LLP

4.  Emami Agrotech Limited 49. Everline Constech LLP

5. Emami Estates Private Limited 50. Everline Construction LLP

6.  Emami Home Private Limited 51. Everline Enclave LLP

7. Emami Limited 52. Everline Estates LLP

8. Fastgrow Beverages Private Limited 53. Everline Highrise LLP

9.  Fastgrow Crops Private Limited 54. Everline Homes LLP

10. Fastgrow Nirman Private Limited 55. Everline Niketan LLP

11. Fastgrow Projects Private Limited 56. Everline Nirman LLP

12.  Jhansi Properties Private Limited 57. Everline Promoters LLP

13.  New Way Constructions Limited 58. Everline Residency LLP

14.  Emami Art Private Limited 59. Everline Towers LLP
(formerly Oriental Sales Agencies (I) Private Limited) 60. Everline Villa LLP

15. Paradise Agriculture Private Limited 61. Fast Home Amenities LLP

16. Prime Constructions Private Limited 62, Fast Home Atmosphere LLP

17.  Satyam Housing Nirman Private Limited 63. Fast Home Constech LLP

18. Sneha Skyhigh Private Limited 64. Fast Home Creative LLP

19. Superfast Castel LLP 65. Fast Home Designs LLP

20. Superfast Citylights LLP 66. Fast Home Developers LLP

21. Superfast Commercial LLP 67. Fast Home Dimensions LLP

22. Superfast Commodeal LLP 68. Fast Home Enclave LLP

23. Superfast Conclave LLP 69. Fast Home Galoxy LLP

24. Superfast Concrete LLP 70. Fast Home Highrise LLP

25. Superfast Connect LLP 71. Fast Home Iconic LLP

26. Superfast Constech LLP 72. Fast Home Niketan LLP

27. Superfast Creative LLP 73. Fast Home Paradise LLP

28. Superfast Dealtrade LLP 74. Fastgrow Amenities LLP

29. Superfast Deluxe LLP 75. Fastgrow Avas LLP

30. Superfast Designs LLP 76. Fastgrow Avenues LLP

31. Superfast Devcon LLP 77. Fastgrow Bricks LLP

32. Superfast Developers LLP 78. Fastgrow Buildcon LLP

33. Superfast Dimension LLP 79. Fastgrow Buildings LLP

34. Superfast Divine LLP 80. Fastgrow Citylights LLP

35. Superfast Dreamhome LLP 81. Fastgrow Concrete LLP

36. Superfast Dwelling LLP 82. Fastgrow Connect LLP

37. South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited 83. Fastgrow Constech LLP

38. Supervalue Buildcon Private Limited 84. Fastgrow Designs LLP

39. Supervalue Constructions Private Limited 85. Fastgrow Developers LLP

40. Superview Constructions Private Limited 86. Fastgrow Dream Home LLP

41.  Vriddhi Commercial Private Limited 87. Fastgrow Dwelling LLP

42. Sanjeevani Vyapaar LLP 88. Fastgrow Elite Property LLP

43. Albatross Biocrop LLP 89. Fastgrow Empire LLP

44, Everline Abasan LLP 90. Fastgrow Galaxy LLP

45. Everline Avas LLP 91. Fastgrow Greenview LLP
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92. Fastgrow Heritage LLP 140. Superfast Maijestic LLP

93. Fastgrow Home Constructions LLP 141. Superfast Mansion LLP

94. Fastgrow Iconic LLP 142, Superfast Modern Realty LLP
95. Fastgrow Landmark LLP 143. Superfast Moonlink LLP
96. Fastgrow Legacy LLP 144. Superfast Nest LLP

97. Faostgrow Lighthouse LLP 145. Superfast Niketan LLP

98. Fastgrow Living LLP 146. Superfast Nirman LLP

99. Fastgrow Lodging LLP 147. Superfast Nivas LLP

100. Fastgrow Luxe Living LLP 148. Superfast Northwood LLP
101. Fastgrow Majestic LLP 149. Superfast Paradise LLP
102. Fastgrow Modermn Realty LLP 150. Superfast Parkview LLP
103. Fastgrow Nest LLP 151. Superfast Planner LLP
104. Fastgrow Niketan LLP 152. Superfast Pro-Estate LLP
105. Fastgrow Northwood LLP 1563. Superfast Projects LLP
106. Fastgrow Residency LLP 154, Superfast Promoters LLP
107. Fastgrow Residential LLP 1565. Superfast Realcon LLP
108. Fastgrow Skytowers LLP 156. Superfast Realestate LLP
109. Superfast Eco-Builders LLP 157. Superfast Regency LLP
110. Superfast Ecospace LLP 158. Superfast Residency LLP
111. Superfast Elite Properties LLP 159. Superfast Resort LLP

112. Superfast Empire LLP 160. Superfast Roserise LLP
113. Superfast Enclave LLP 161. Superfast Rosewood LLP
114. Superfast Estate LLP 162. Superfast Shelter LLP

115. Superfast Everline LLP 163. Superfast Skyscrapers LLP
116. Superfast Everrise LLP 164. Superfast Skytowers LLP
117. Superfast Exim LLP 165. Superfast Terxim LLP

118. Superfast Galaxy LLP 166. Superfast Tie Up LLP

119. Superfast Goodshine LLP 167. Superfast Towers LLP

120. Superfast Granite LLP 168. Superfast Township LLP
121. Superfast Greenview LLP 169. Superfast Trustworthy LLP
122. Superfast Heavens LLP 170. Superfast Ultima LLP

123. Superfast Heights LLP 171. Superfast Unicomn LLP
124. Superfast Heritage LLP 172. Superfast Unique LLP

125. Superfast Highrise LLP 173. Superfast Uroan LLP

126. Superfast Home Construction LLP 174. Superfast Villa LLP

127. Superfast Horizon LLP 175. Superfast Vintage LLP
128. Superfast Housing LLP 176. Superfast Voyage Realty LLP
129. Superfast Iconic LLP 177. Supergrow Abasan LLP
130. Superfast Infocom LLP 178. Supergrow Amenities LLP
131. Superfast Infra LLP 179. Supergrow Apartment LLP
132. Superfast Infracon LLP 180. Supergrow Ashiyana LLP
133. Superfast Landmark LLP 181. Fastgrow Smart Homes LLP
134. Superfast Legacy LLP 182. Fastgrow Sweet Living LLP
135. Superfast Lifestyle LLP 183. Fastgrow Township LLP
136. Superfast Lighthouse LLP 184. Fastgrow Ultima LLP

137. Superfast Lodging LLP 185. Fastgrow Urban LLP

138. Superfast Luxe Living LLP 186. Fastgrow Voyage Realty LLP
139. Superfast Luxury LLP 187. Home Citylights LLP

188. Prime Amenities LLP 236. Superfast Abasan LLP

189. Prime Appartments LLP 237. Superfast Advisory LLP

190. Prime Atmosphere LLP 238. Superfast Amenities LLP
191. Prime Avas LLP 239. Superfast Anchor LLP

192. Prime Conclave LLP 240. Superfast Appartments LLP
193. Prime Constech LLP 241. Superfast Ashiyana LLP
194. Prime Construction LLP 242. Superfast Afmosphere LLP
195. Prime Destinations LLP 243, Superfast Attractive LLP
196. Prime Dimensions LLP 244, Superfast Avas LLP

197. Prime Eco-Builders LLP 245, Superfast Avenues LLP
198. Prime Ecospace LLP 246. Superfast Awasan LLP

199. Prime Fast Ashiyana LLP 247. Superfast Brick LLP

200. Prime Fast Designs LLP 248. Superfast Buildcon LLP
201. Prime Fast Enclave LLP 249. Superfast Buildings LLP
202. Prime Fast Galaxy LLP 250. Supergrow Avas LLP

203. Prime Fast Heritage LLP 251. Supergrow Avenues LLP
204. Prime Fast Highrise LLP 252. Supergrow Brick LLP

205. Prime Fast Homes LLP 253. Supergrow Buildcon LLP
206. Prime Fast Housing LLP 254, Supergrow Buildings LLP
207. Prime Fast Landmark LLP 255. Supergrow Citylights LLP
208. Prime Fast Niketan LLP 256. Supergrow Commodeal LLP
209. Prime Fast Paradise LLP 257. Supergrow Conclave LLP
210. Prime Fast Parkview LLP 258. Supergrow Concrete LLP
211. Prime Fast Residency LLP 259. Supergrow Connect LLP
212. Prime Fast Residential LLP 260. Supergrow Constech LLP
213. Prime Fast Villa LLP 261. Supergrow Creative LLP
214. Prime Horizon LLP 262. Supergrow Designs LLP
215. Prime Lakeview LLP 263. Supergrow Developers LLP
216. Prime Niketan LLP 264. Supergrow Dreamhome LLP
217. Prime Parkview LLP 265. Supergrow Dwelling LLP
218. Snowline Abasan LLP 266. Supergrow Elite Properties LLP
219. Snowline Appartments LLP 267. Supergrow Empire LLP
220. Snowline Brick LLP 268. Supergrow Enclave LLP
221. Snowline Buildcon LLP 269. Supergrow Estate LLP

222. Snowline Conclave LLP 270. Supergrow Galaxy LLP
223. Snowline Enclave LLP 271. Supergrow Heritage LLP
224. Snowline Estates LLP 272. Supergrow Highrise LLP
225. Snowline Highrise LLP 273. Supergrow Home Construction LLP
226. Snowline Homes LLP 274. Supergrow Horizon LLP
227. Snowline Housing LLP 275. Supergrow Housing LLP
228. Snowline Niketan LLP 276. Supergrow Iconic LLP

229. Snowline Nivas LLP 277. Supergrow Infocom LLP
230. Snowline Promoters LLP 278. Supergrow Landmark LLP
231. Snowline Properties LLP 279. Supergrow Legacy LLP
232 Snowline Realtors LLP 280. Supergrow Lifestyle LLP
233. Snowline Residency LLP 281. Supergrow Lighthouse LLP
234. Snowline Towers LLP 282. Supergrow Lodging LLP
235. Snowline Villa LLP 283. Supergrow Luxe Living LLP

104 | Annual Report 2022-23

Annual Report 2022-23 |

105



| Financial Statements

156-181

Al

Emami Realty Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

000°0L 000'0L ueyo} 8ejuniong) ajiodio)
Lcl a0l LTl 0l - SPO0S) BP0] JO BSLYIING
000'0L 000'0L seInjusgaq 9|aieAuod Ajououdo
14 14 - 14 14 seeq Buis
SjsuUsq 8aA0|dWS UIIB)-HOUS
e 08¢ Gl 9¢ LT¢ e SUOHDIBUNWSY
vl 0L - 7L 0L dT1U1'$807 JO ®I0yS
08 g9 g 00¢ GL G9 pIod UOISSILULOD
¢l ¢l ¢l ¢l - - Ayokoy
e €¢ 8¢ g 9 8l POAIBISY UOSSILUWOD
144 44 44 44 - - PanBIY JUdy
0 0 0 0 ey
1§ [ - = PaNB08Y $884 [OUOISSBJ0Nd
181 60¢ Ll 6 LT 89 8 G9¢ L Ge sjuswssINgUISy
471 Auodwio)
viL'y 198 - vIL'Y 198 D UliM 80UO[0g JUNODDY jUsinND
¢ ¢ - - ponBoay Jisodaq punjey
957’1 1GE'e 0L 06y 981"l 198'C Jsodeq Anoss Jo puniey
Gr9's 8¢9 £86'7 8¢9 - 299 U9 Jisodaq Ajinoag
LGC L LGC a 0¢ - UBAID) SSOUDARY JO UOHOSIIOSY
0¢ 0¢ UBAIS) S8OUDADY
PoNBOSY
v18'C 056'C - v18'C 786'C $9OUDADY JO jUsWADdaY
v88'c 786'C - 786'C 786'C PBABISY SSOUDADY
08l'l £6¢ G9L 0L - 08 (%44 aee PaNBISY salslu|
L1671 el0r 0€0'LL L0T'1 eve 008 o'l 9 UsA9 UDOT JO UOHOSIIoSY
6€9'G 0L6'y L0€'G Lv8'T Gee 096'C L el USN UDO]
el 088'G LLy'S 7y 169G 9¢8'G - - PIDd ISl
LA R A A R A T A 7R 9L6'ly 1 99F'1EL ploday suooT
G0E'09 G806 | €9€'€C 90Tl ov6'9¢ i 8r9'eL - ueyo] suoo1
2202-60-1¢ | £202-€0-L§ | 2202-€0-LE | €202-€0-1E i 2202-60-LE | €202-€0-l¢ | 220Z€0LE | €207-€0-L€ | 2202-60-LE | €202-€0-LE | 220Z€0-LE | £20Z-€0-¢ | Z202-CO-LE | €202-€0-L¢ | 220TE0-1E i £202-60-L€ | T202-€0-LE | £202-€0-LE
aousnjul
jupoyiubis aousnyul
oDy siajowoid ULy ‘aAypaI Jupoyubis soy siojoallq 1Yo
s,Auodwo?) ay} sIy ‘Aoipisgng 10§9311q YoIym PUD [aUU0SISg sdiysiouping
[ojo1 ujelaym sasudiajuz Jo Jojoanq siajowold 19A0 Salug juswaBoupy As) i Ayl papwin $SOJPI00ssY soup|pIsgng SUOIODSURI] JO SINJON
(suyo1 Ul 2) :solpd pablal yim IndsA ayj Buunp suoyonpsupl] 1A
SJUSWIBLDLS [PIDUDUI{ O} SOJON
O
2
IS
=0
o2
.| |Z|E
o o a — R
o | = e H__ o o)
a |23 |IJ|(a - oo |(a|<L3 > =
351212(51212131212(2 8|83 | €| 2
g1S|ole|z|o|El2|S|8|9l2alg|=|E
HEEEEEEEHE R ERE
222 |B|o|&|2|T|2|2|s|s|e|&|5|8|0o
[OINORNOENOR RO NORNOE RO RONRON RO RO RO RONNON Ne) m
SIS|S|S|E|E|Sls|c|s|c|sls|slslgl
2|121212(212|2/3(32(3|3|3/3(3/3|5/|a
(ON NORNORNONNONNONRORNONNON NONNON NORNONNON ORI Ne]
R P = = I I = I I = I I I I TR e
—la|log|V|9|N o[ |O|—|dN|od|F|W|0O (N
o|lo|lo|lo|g|o|lolg|lo|=|—|—|=|=|=|—=|—
DO OO D D[ D OO OO M| |
[a
=
.W, o
o |3 = =1 %o
IR A P
Olclyglclzl=218% 2|22 0 .m Ola
Blo|=|0|o|al2|lT|2|C Slc|d|2lE|o|=2
Li0|lw|lo|Elo|E€|0|c|E|lR2]|2IFILS|E|D
O|0|8|2|E|2|0|5|5|0|8|8|2|=|B|=|2
SIZzIZ|IZ|IZ|Z|E|a|lg|e|e|&|H|R|I5|=
2121212121 2|12123/2|2|12123/123/23|123|13|3
olololojororolojolololololololele
OO O DD D DD D D D D D DD DD
OO Q| O|D|O|O|D|O|O|D|(D|D|DO|D|D| D
alalalalalalalalalalalalalalalala
o I pes I iges I e IS ges 15 Iges I (e I Ipes B (ges I Bges I Igen 1 Igen I (e IS Ipun B (gen I Bges I e |
DA NN DD DD DD DD DL DD,V
J|w|o[N|o|ov|O|l—|d|n|TFT|w|[O|~N|o|o|O
|X|Dd|w|o|o|SF||[|r || ||| [D
AN N N[N N N[N N N[N N N[N N[N|XN|m

107

Annual Report 2022-23 |

106 | Annual Report 2022-23



156-181
‘ Financial Statements

3l

Emami Realty Limited

gee'e r€0‘9 IojoL
€9L'S 90€'S (zz 'ON SION Jajay]) SBUIMOLIOg UUISI-IOUS Jopun pasojosip (gaQ Wia] Buo JO SaINID lusinD) ;$sa]
96¢'8 ove‘LlL
'soluodulod Bulumo pup)
Byl pup salupd paipjal 8y} JO asunIPNS) 81pI0dI0D
oyl AQ paInoss S| Upo| 8y} 18yun4 ‘Ibuusy) ‘I-esoyd
pADWIOfB] ILWIBLWIT B DIOYIOY ‘AlD IuUoWIT, Losloid ay)
- UJOl) SO|IgDAIBDB) pUD AIOJUSAUI 8INiN) pup jussaid yupg paleunyd
eL6'L %G8'6 220z4snBny Ul pioday)  uo  uouposylodAy Jo Aom Ag obipydo aAIsnox3 PIOPUDIS: A
salupdWOoD PUIUMO pupb| 8y} buipnoul saind
720z ‘Aonige4 woly  paipjal Jo ssiunionb 81o1odiod 8yl Ag painoss S|
SPIOT 6222 1O SlUsWoISUl AlYlUOW | UDO| 8yl 1I9yling Usapid I0LN ‘ISUDYL ‘@INION IudouU]
pnbs g ul s|goAndal s UDOT Wi |, 108foid 18Yl0 WL S|gDAISD8] PUD AIOJUSAUl SUL
‘SPIOT 007’22 | JOA0 UOIDIBYIOdAY SO ||lom SO “, ADg ssauisng [uinulg,
- olpp U0 SO luswesIiNgSi] UDOT : 108[0ld JO SWIDU Byl 1spun ‘DIYoY o Auodwo)d
67¢'C %0S'6 | ‘SPIOT 00SS2 LUNOWID UOIDUDS UDOT : 8yl AQ paumo Apadoid a|goAoculWl UO ©B8I0YD SId - payw yung D101 Al
‘Auod pajpjal 8yl JO 8aunIoNS apIodioD) Byl
AQ paInoss sI UDOo| 8u} ‘1IByUNS 'saulll 00'C 1O 18A0D
'220Z 1900100 WOl SSIgDAISD8I/AIOUSAUL LUNUUIUILL UM, SI0I0QUUIOD
- SPIDT 012 JO SuswoisSuUl Alyluow : ‘Aioolsy Iuuowg |, 108[01d U} UIOI) SS|QDAIBDSI PUD
898 %GZ'6 onba Q¢ ul a|gpAndal s UDOT WIS] | AIOJUSAUl SINjN] pup Juasalid uo aBIoyd SAISNIOXT | payud uog (D101 Il
'SUOT 0G2°L 2 4O
JuswJ|ioIsUl 7 JXeuU PUD ST GZ L' 2
JO JUSWI|IDISUL {7 IXaU "SUNOT 000’ L 2 O ‘sayuse Bulumo pup| puo saiod
JUBSWIoISULl ¢ XU 'Yona ST 0G/2 | palblal 8yl JO aiupions) aipiodio) syl AQ painoas
JO SI SJUBWIIDISUI Z 1S114 SIYL JO INO €207 | S UDO| 8ut 1ayund 'aininy g lussald yioq 1osfoid sy}
Joquiedsg  woly  BuidouswuloD | JO SIBSSD PaX|) S|JOaA0W ¥ SIOSSD JUSIND 81U puUD
sjuswojsul - Ajjeponb  painonils i sa1on 4'g¢ Buunspawpo pup| abaibbo Jo aIoys
71 U {goAbdal SsI UpO]  Udigl  aypuoiodold pup Ybs 20| £G4 JO DBID UOILONISUOD
'SUIOT 000’E 2 | 1040} JO BuisuduloD ,pIoYIoY ‘DUISOY Iuuowg , Josloid
- BJDP UO SO JusWwasINgsI UDOT SY0T: 8yl Jo selwadold s|goaAoWIUlIl SIlUS 8yl IBA0
L18'C %0G'6 000'Gl2 JunowD uolouUPS UDOT: SBOOUON SjaoyNbI JO Aom AQ ©BIDYD SAISNIOXT:  PeWI JuUDg SIXY | I
‘'saluod
paipjal Ag eajunionb a1o10dIoD Yim pajdnod saioys
Alinba Jo abpseid AQ paindss sI upo| Byl ‘leyund
120 ‘udy  Wwol)  SpuSWJoisuUl i faInioN  Iwpwig R tAoWole] jwipudl sioslold eyl
e8y'9 Ajeponb jonba g ul s|igoAndal JO $S|gpAIBOBl PUD AlOJUSAUl ainin) puo jussaid
ore’e %GE'OL S SYOT Q00°0l2 JO UDOT wisl; U0 uouoosyodAy Jo Aom Ag eBIoyo jueinesgns pejwlTuog T8 I
CC0C USID ISLE = €20C USIDIN #sLE aj0y
jo sy jsal9yu| swa} juswAnday Ajinoeg Jo ainjpN Nung

(swio Ul 2)

syuUPg Wol supo] wisl (v)
:Japun sp aIp (Juaund uou) sBuimolioq painoas Jo joadsal Ul papiroid sajlINoas JO aINibu pup juswApdal Jo suwidy Jo sjipyeg €
sjuswialbiS |PIDUDUI{ O] S©JON

'ssOUISNq

JO 8SIN0D AIDUIPIO BYL Ul SUOIIO0SUD] Ol SISjUS Alpulinol AUDAUIOD 8yl WUOUM Uiim SSIL0d pajojal UM 810 seounjog BUIpUDISING PUD SUOHonsUDIL Aund pajpjal [oleoul s,Auodwo) ay) ¢
SUOINIISUJ [DIOUDUIS %3 $YUDE LUOI) SUDOT JSUIDBD Usio) seejunions ajdiniAl JO 8NoA (N4 S8PN|oU; 88junions) ajpiodio) g

‘pepiroId Ajlgypindas Jou 8ousy PUD SISOJ [IDISAC U0 PaUILLIBISP AlIDHDNIO0 IO syjeusd JusWAOIdUS-SOd ' |
000’00’ L 2 UDYJ S$8] JUNOWD sjuasaidal O 2

109

Annual Report 2022-23 |

8 | Annual Report 2022-23

744 TAl - lyg'ee 8¢l usAIb sejupIons) ajpiodio)
098’6 : 000'¢ GlLLTl eve'ze  :000'¢ 080l - © USYD} 83juDIONS) 80I00I0)
4 8¢ 6 0¢ Gl - - 6l €C Eleleler]
766’y 766’7 - - 8vy'c 8’ 9s'T 98T SolOJUBAU|
9L 9L 0 0 0 0 9L 9L - SJUBLISSAU|
8¢ - 8¢ - $8|00NBO8Y IBUI0
€ € € € penedsy jisodeq Ajndes
90've i 6vElE 1 [89'9C  G€8'9T 095 096'C 68y 796'L yisodaq Anoss
(eouoiog psI0) 411
Gel g6l Gel g6l 0 Yiim Junodoy joydo) Buionioni4
411 sAuodwio)
6986 866'9 o 668'6 8669 0 UImM 80UD|0g JUN0DJY Juslnd
Ll LL Ll [l USD] SSOUDARY
o 69 LG - 4% 8l - UBAIS) SSOUDADY
000'0Z 0000Z seInjusgaq e|aieAuo) Ajouoydo
806 oLl 14 (449 706 (94 - - 8|qoAnd iselel|
Te0'6L €999 i G68'l 7Ge'L el'LL i 60e6l USYD] SUDO]
oYy 8Ly'y LES'Y 8Ly'y - - 69 010Ny Isaialy|
8LE'L GLT'8 €06y (9408% 052 - §ee'e 0eT'e UBAI9 U001
= - £202 ‘YOID|N J$1€ UO SO 39UD|Dg

2202-60-1¢ | £202-€0-L€ | 2202-€0-LE | €202-€0-1€ i 2202-60-LE | €202-€0-l€ | 2202°€0-LE | £207-€0-L€ | 2202-E0-LE | €202-€0-LE | 220Z€0-LE | £20Z-€0-€ | Z202-CO-LE | €202-€0-L¢ | 220T0-1E i £202-60-L€ | T202-€0-le | £202-€0-LE

aousnjul
Jupoyiubis aousnyul
aApy s1ojowoid suully ‘aAypjaI Jupoyubis soy s10}oa11q 1Yl0
s, Aundwo?) ay} sy ‘Aioipisgng 10§9911Q YoIym PUD [9UU0SIg sdiysioupng
[ojo1 urelaym sasudiajuz jo Jojoang siajowold 1910 salul juswaboup|y As) i Ayjigorl papwi SOJPI00SSY soupIpIsqng SUOIJODSUDI] JO SINJON
(supo Ut 2) SJUSWISIDIS [DIOUDUI{ O} SOJON 2



‘ Financial Statements

Emami Realty Limited

65col L8S'Y e}
991y - (2z "ON ©ION JoJoy) SBUIMOLIOg UUIBI-LOYS Jopun pasojosip 1gad Udia] BUoT JO SaLNIDA Judiing :$sa7
Ller'vi L8V
dT1 Wol anp SMoj) Uspd pun
$O|gOAIBD3! |0 UO UolnoaylodAy Jo Aom Ag abBioyo nssodiod
pup Agod pajpjal b Jo 8sjupIons apiodio) Ag paindss pjo
JBUl S| UDO| 8y} I8yUN4 "JUNOJDY BAISSaY 9IASS ISalaly|
uo abioyd puo d11 sewedold OHIYOT AQ PBUMO IDQUUNA PalWI S10AId
o912 - %00°'G 1 220z 4snbny U pinday | ‘puniniyl 1o pup] Joslold jo ebobuow Ag efioyd nssoduod SOOINIBS [PHADD XIID ¢ Il
dT1 Wol anp Smoj) Uspd pun
$O|gOAIBD8 |0 UO UolnosylodAy Jo Aom Ag eBioyo nssodiod
pup Auod pajojal b JO ssjupIoNs 81pI0dioD AQ pPaInNdss DI
JBUl S| UDO| 8y} ‘I8ydn4 "JUNODDY BAISSaY 9SS ISalalu|
uo abioyd puo d11 sewedold OHIYOT AQ PBUMO IDQUUNA| oUW
£€86'L - %0601 £20ZUQIDIN Ul piodey - ‘puniniy 10 puoT Joslold Jo ebnfuowl Ag efinyo nssoduod SUlid PIOUIUDIA JOIOY Il
"Yluowd
9 Alans Jo pus ayy 1o uoldo
INd/Ivo uim (12026020
'9']) JUBWIBSINGSIP JO 81op
WIOJ} SYIUOW 09 JO pud ay} Aupd pajojal o oUW
8/6'6 [8€'Y %00'6 10 a|gpAndal s uoo| Wig) | Ag eapunIond a1010dIod yim pajdnod saioys Aunba Jo abpald BDAIld ©oUDUI{ PUU| I
¢20C YOION IsLE €202 UOIDI ISL € aj0y
o sy jsaapy| swia} JuswAnday Anoag Jo ainjoN suoinyisu| [PISUDUIY
(suo7 Ul 2) sajupdwo) [pIoubul{ Bupjupg UON WOl supo wial (D)
SjUSWIaDIS [PIOUDUI{ O} SSJON
veo'L eSS IojoL
691 G/8'l (22 'ON SION 18j8y]) SBUIMOLIOQ WUIBI-HOUS Japun Pasolosip 1aag ulia] BuoT JO SaIINIDIA JuainD :$587
X L20'L
‘€z0z, Aonuop
WIoJ} SjuswJ|pisul
Ayeupnb jonbs 91
ul s|goAndal si sy Auod  pajojel
cov'L L20'L %0201 00G/2 JO Uo7 Wil | © Ag e8pupIoNd 8jIodiod yim pejdnod seioys Ainbe Jo ebpeld pajwnuog g0a
¢20C USIDN IsLE €20¢C YOIDI IsLE ajpy
jo sy jsalou| swid} JuswAnday Ajun2ag Jo ainjbN SUoIN}IsU| [PIDUDUIY
UG wol supo wid] (g)
£20Z'S0'80 UO sainjuagad S|qIeAUOD-UON %G/ OlUI PBUBSAUOD Usaq aADY sainjuagaq a|QIHaAUOD AIouoldO «
- 000°0L IojoL
- - (zzZ "ON SI0N Jo1ey]) SBUIMOLIOQ SULIBI-LOYS Jopun pasojosip 1ga Ulia] BUOT JO SaILINIDIA JusiND) :$sa7
- 000°0L
*UO0® -/78 2 SNJOA 820}
JO SaINUSgS8( S|AILBAUOD
£€0T'20'¢L oidn Ajpuoydo paindss-un
- 000°0Z o187 sI08A Q| JO aInus| palnodasun i uodno) 0187 #G8'G9'eG'8 i I
€20¢ USIDI 8L € €20¢C YOIDI IsLE ajoy
jo sy jsalou| swid} JuswApnday Ajun2ag jo ainjoN uonduosaq
alnjuagaq a|quiaauo) Ajpuoydo (v)
:Jopun sp aIp (Juaund uou) sBuimolloq palnodasun Jo joadsal ul papliAoid saljliN0as JO ainibu pup juswApdal Jo swigj Jo sjipied v
- - IojoL
00'68€'S - (zZ "ON S1ON Jojey) SBUIMOLIOQ SULIBI-LOYS Japun pasolosIp 1aa Ulis] BUOT JO SallNIDIA JusiinD :$sa7
00'68¢€'S -
salupdulod Buiumo pup| ey Buipnioul seiund payoel Jo saiunionb
210100100 8y} AQ PaINSSs Sl UDO| 8U} 18yUn4 'JOSI8UL S8|dOAIBISI PUD
AIOJUBAUI BY} JOAO UOIDI8UL0dAY SO [|oM SO *,8INLON ludould, 1o8lold payuw
220z i 1O |uIoU 8yl Ispun ‘ysepbid IoUN IojIoyy 1o seind paiojel INo) uolnIodio) aounul4
00'68¢°'S - %Or'EL | Jequiadeq ul piodsy | pup Aupduwio) ayl Ag paumo Auadoid sjgoaoulull Uo aB10yD ISl Juswidojeneq BUISNOH | 'l
€202C YOION isLE €20¢C YSIDN IsLE ooy
o sy Jsa1vpu| swd} JuswAnday AJIn2ag Jo aInjoN suolnyisu| [oIoubUl4
(syyoq Ul ) salupdwio) [pIouUDbUl{ Bupjupg UON WOl sUubo1 wiajl (g)

SJUSWIBLDIS [PIDUDUI{ O} SSJON

111

Annual Report 2022-23 |

110 | Annual Report 2022-23



Emami Realty Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

45. The Company is 10% partner in Lohitka Properties LLE Mumbai which is developing a real estate project,
presently under construction. The financial statement of the above entity for the Financial Year 2022-23 have
not yet been finalized and audited and thus not made available to the Company for incorporation in its own
financial statement. Accordingly, no effect of the profitability, if any, relating to the above entity has been
considered in the accounts.

46. Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule X in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than 3
year years years years
Projects in progress
As at March 31, 2023 - - - 1,809 1,809
As at March 31, 2022 - - - 1,840 1,840

As on the date of the balance sheet, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is
overdue or has exceeded the cost, based on approved plan.

47. Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than
6 months - 1 years years years 3 years
Undisputed Considered good
As at March 31, 2023 44 53 325 209 631 1,262
As at March 31, 2022 318 13 96 951 - 1,378

48. Trade Payable ageing schedule

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 1-2years 2 - 3 years More than 3
year years

Trade Payable - MSME

As at March 31, 2023 32 0 - - 32
As at March 31, 2022 1 - - - 1
Trade Payable - Others

As at March 31, 2023 190 9 157 7 362
As af March 31, 2022 279 164 7 - 450

20 represents amount less than ¥ 1,00,000

49. Financial ratios

Ratio / Measure Methodology 31st March 31st March %
2023 2022 Variance

Current ratio * Current assets over current liabilities 1.84 1.16 58.75%

Debt equity ratio * Debt over total shareholders' equity 16.96 11.07 -53.26%

Debt service coverage ratio # EBIT over current debt (0.00) 0.06 -100.74%

Return on equity % PAT over total average equity -38.20% 10.19% -474.83%

Inventory turnover ratio # Revenue from operations over 0.05 0.15 -63.98%
average inventory

Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations over 5.11 6.55 -22.06%
average trade receivables

Trade payables tumnover ratio # Adjusted expenses over average 20.10 4.45 351.88%

frade payables
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Ratio / Measure Methodology 31st March 31st March %
2023 2022 Variance
Net capital turnover ratio # Revenue from operations over 0.13 0.64 -80.24%
average working capital
Net profit % # Net profit over revenue -42.77% 6.11% -800.38%
Return on capital employed % #  PBIT over average capital employed -0.09% 22.18% -100.43%
Return on investment # Interest income, net gain on sale of 4.49% 9.60% -53.25%

investments and net fair value gain
over weighted average investments

Notes:

EBIT - Earnings before interest and taxes.

PBIT - Profit before interest and taxes including other income.
PAT - Profit affer taxes.

Debt includes current and non-current lease liabilities.

Adjusted expenses refers to sub-contractor charges and other expenses net of non-cash expenses and
donations

Capital employed refers 1o total shareholders' equity and debt,

Investments includes non-current investment, current investment and margin-money deposit.
Explanation for variances exceeding 25%:

* Because of decrease in short-term borrowings

# Because of lower income

50. Capital Management

The Company's objective when managing capital (defined as net debt and equity) is fo safeguard the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide returmns to the shareholders and benefit
for other stakeholders, while protecting and strengthening the Balance Sheet through the appropriate balance
of debt and equity funding. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light
of changes to economic conditions and strategic objectives of the Company.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is fotal debt divided by total equity as below:

R in Laknhs)

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Borrowings (Non-Current and Current) 1,657,421 1,561,187
Other Financial Liabilities (Interest accrued but not due) 62 55
Net Debt (A) 1,57,483 1,651,242
Equity Share Capital 757 757
Other Equity 8,630 12,913
Equity (B) 9,287 13,670
Gearing Ratio (C=A/B) 16.96 11.06
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51. (i) Information regarding Investment Property R in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Fair Value of opening balance of Investment property 2,303 3,095
Fair Value of closing balance of Investment property 2,249 2,303

The fair value of Investment property has been classified as Level 3 fair value in the fair value hierarchy due
to the use of unobservable inputs. There has been no change in valuation techniques used since prior years.

(ii) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for Investment Properties

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Rental Income 19 19
Less: Direct operating expenses that generate rental income 2 2
Profit/(Loss) from investment property before depreciation 17 17
Less: Depreciation 23 24
Profit/(Loss) from investment property after depreciation 6) (7)

52. Investment in Limited Liability Partnerships

Particulars Profit/(Loss) Sharing Ratio Investment in Capital

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2023 March, 2022

i. Lohitka Properties LLP

Emami Realty Limited 10.00% 10.00% 0 0
Aditya Vardhan Agarwal 10.00% 10.00% 0 0
Ashish Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Harsha Vardhan Agarwal 10.00% 10.00% 0 0
Manish Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Mohan Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Prashant Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Sachin Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Sheth Infracity Private Limited 2.50% 2.50% 0 0
Ashwin N. Sheth 30.00% 35.00% 1 1
Chintan N. Sheth 8.75% 6.25% 0 0
Maulik A. Sheth 8.75% 6.25% 0 0
100% 100% 4 4

ii. Supervalue Nirman LLP
Creative Cultivation Private Limited 99.999% 99.999% 1,752 1,752
Emami Realty Limited ) ) ) 0.001% 0.001% 0 0
100.000% 100.000% 1,752 1,752

% 0 represents amount less than ¥ 1,00,000
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53. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

A. Contingent Liabilities R in Laknhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Guarantee and counter guarantee given
i. Bank Guarantee 8 8
i. Arising on account of Corporate Guarantee and mortgage - 3.917

of rights, title and interest efc. entitlements accruing to the
Company under a Joint Development Agreement, for and on
behalf of a related party

iii. Corporate Guarantee given along with mortgage of land on 1,282 1,199
behalf of related parties
iv. Income Tax demand for the AY 2021-22 as per Assessment 11,143 -

Order u/s 143(3) dated 31.12.2022*

* The Company has been advised that the demand is likely to be deleted and accordingly no liability will
arise.

B. Commitments

i. The Company enters info construction contracts for Civil, External Development, MEP work etc. with its
vendors. The total amount payable under such contracts will be based on actual measurements and
negofiated rates, which are determinable as and when the work under the said contracts are completed.

ii. The Company has entered into development agreements with owners of land for development of projects.
Under the agreements the Company is required to pay certain payments/ deposits to the owners of the land
and share in revenue from such developments in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated under
the agreements.

54. Movement in lease liabilities:

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Opening Balance 115 173

Additions

Interest accrued during the year * 8 13

Deletions -

Payment of lease liabilities 72 71

Closing Balance 51 115
Current lease liabilities 51 15
Non- current lease liabilities - 100

* The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities is 8.71% p.a.

55. Income Tax

A. Tax expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss:

2022-23 2021-22
Current tax - 19
Deferred income tax expense/(credit) (1,452) 279
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 54
Total income tax expense/(credit) (1,452) 352
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B. A reconciliation of the income tax amount between the enacted income tax rate and the effective
income tax of the Company is as follows :

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Profit before tax (5.837) 1,679
Enacted income tax rate in India adopted by the Company 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax as per above rate - 423
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:
Tax impact of utilisation of brought forward capital losses (1,415) (70)
Tax impact of exempted income (1)
Tax impact due to timing difference (40) (33)
Rate difference - (7)
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 54
Ofthers 3 (14)
Income tax as per profit and loss statement (1,452) 352

56. The Company has entered into Joint Development Agreements for development of Projects at various
locations.

57. Against the JDA Assignment Agreement entered by New Age Realty Private Limited, subsidiary of the
Company with Presidium Construction (Coimbatore) Pvt. Ltd. and Karthikeya Ancillaries Pvt. Ltd. (the Landlord)
for assignment of JDA entered info between the Landlord and Presidium Construction Pvt. Ltd. for development
of an immovable property situated at Avinashi Road, Coimbatore and further o this, against Area Assignment
Agreement entered between the Company and the said Landlord, the said Landlord has served Termination
Nofice and legal proceedings led to an appointment of Justice P K Balasubramanyan, Retired Judge of
Supreme Court of India, as a sole arbitrator pursuant to the Order of Hon'ble Madras High Court, who has
passed an award on Tst June 2017. While inter-alia confirming the possession of the subject land 1o the said
subsidiary, he has not allowed interest on monies paid to the Landliord from the beginning. The Company
and its said subsidiary have preferred an application u/s 34 of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996 for
setting aside the award before the District Court, Coimbatore.
The Parties have reached on 1o a Settlement agreement dated 23.12.2022 and a compromise petition
dated 15.02.2023 was filed before the District Court, Coimbatore. The District Court based on the settlement
agreement and a compromise petition has passed the final order on 23.02.2023 which has been accepted
by all the Parties and as per which advances are recoverable,
58. ¥8,509 lakhs of loan to Fort Projects Private Limited for which, the Company has filed an application before
NCLT, Kolkata Bench on 15.09.2022 for recovery of the loan amount and is optimistic for the recoverability of
the same.
59. The company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, during the current year and in the previous
year,
60. Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which as per Ind AS 108 on "Segment
Reporting" is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company is operating only in India
and there is no other significant geographical segment.
61. (0) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder.
(b) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.
(c) The Company has not fraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year.

(d) There were no tfransactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
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and disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(e) The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(f)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall
() directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
62. There were no dues outstanding for more than 45 days to any Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises
suppliers. The above information regarding Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises has been determined to

the extent such communication has been received from the respective parties by the Company. This has
been relied upon by the Auditors.

% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
i) the Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end 32 1
of each accounting year
i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section NIL NIL

16 along with amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the each accounting year

i) the amount of inferest due and payable for the period of NIL NIL
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under MSMED Act 2006

iv) the amount of inferest accrued and remaining unpaid at the NIL NIL
end of each accounting year: and
v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable in NIL NIL

the succeeding year until such dafe when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

63. Corporate Social Responsibility

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - -

) Amount spent during the year - 3
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purpose other than (i) above - 3

64. Previous year’s figures have been rearranged or regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E Hari Mohan Marda Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Director Managing Director & CEO

Radhakrishan Tondon DIN: 00855466 DIN: 08756907

Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata Rajendra Agarwal Payel Agarwal

Date: 29/05/2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXI9062 ACS 22418
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED (the
“Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”) and its
associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, and the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and
associates as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates
as at 31st March, 2023, of its consolidated loss, and total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors referred to in the "Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

1) Accuracy of Recognition, measurement, | Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included
presentation and disclosures of revenues and |the following:

other related balances in view of Ind AS 115| ¢ Evaluating the design and implementation and
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. tested operating effectiveness of key internal

The Group’s most significant revenue streams controls over revenue recognition.
involve sale of flats and plofs. * Evaluating the accounting policies adopted by the

. . Group for revenue recognition o check those are in
Revenue is recognized post fransfer of confrol of | jine with the applicable accounting standards and

residential and commercial units 1o customers for| - tneir consistent application fo the significant sales
the amount/ consideration which the Group expects|  ~gontracts.

fo receive in exchange for those units. The trigger for
revenue recognition is normally completion of the
project or receipt of approvals on completion from
relevant authorities or intimation to the customer
of completion, post which the contract becomes

e Scrufinizihg the revenue journal entries raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which met
certain risk-based criteria, with relevant underlying
documentation.
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non-cancellable. The Group records revenue, over| e  Testing timeliness of revenue recognition by
fime till the actual possession 1o the customers, oron comparing individual sample sales transactions to
actual possession to the customers, as determined underlying contracts.

by the terms of contract with customers. « Conducting site visits during the year for selected
The risk for revenue being recognized presents a projects to understand the scope, nature and
key audit matter due to the financial significance progress of the projects.

and geographical spread of the Group’s projects | « Considering the adequacy of the disclosures in
across different regions in India. the consolidated financial statements in respect
Revenue recognition involves significant estimates of the judgments taken in recognizing revenue
related to measurement of costs to complete for for residential and commercial property units in
the projects. Revenue from projects is recorded accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
based on the Group's assessment of the work AS) 115.

completed, costs incurred and accrued and the
estimate of the balance costs to complete.

2) Related Party Transactions In view of the significance of the matter we applied the

The Group has enfered into several fransactions following audit procedures in this area, among others
with related parties during the year 2022-23. to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

We identified related pary tfransactions as a|l. We carried out an assessment of the key controls
key audit matter because of risks with respect to to identify and disclose related party relationships
completeness of disclosures made in the financial and transactions in accordance with the relevant
statements including recoverability  thereof; accounting standard.

compliance with statutory regulations goveming |2, we caried out an assessment of compliance with
related party relationships such as the Companies | the fisting regulations and the regulations under the
Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations and the judgement Act, including checking of approvals/ scrutiny as
involved in assessing whether transactions with specified in Sections 177 and 188 of the Act with
related parties are undertaken at arms’ length. respect to the related party transactions. In cases
where the matter was subject to interpretation, we
exercised judgement to rely on opinions provided
by legal practitioners.

3. We considered the adequacy and appropriateness
of the disclosures in the financial statements,
including recoverability thereof, relating to the
related party fransactions.

4. For transactions with related parties, we inspected
relevant ledgers, agreements and other information
that may indicate the existence of related party
relationships  or transactions. We also tested
completeness of related parties with reference
to the various registers maintained by the Group
statutorily.

5. We have tested on a sample basis, Group’s
assessment of related party transactions for arm’s
length pricing.

Emphasis Matters

a) The financial accounts of M/s Prajay Urban Private Limited and M/s Swan Housing & Infra Private Limited
(associates of the company) and M/s Lohitka Properties LLE, Mumbai in which the company is 10% partner,
are not yet finalized as mentioned in Note 45 of the consolidated financial statements and thus not made
available to the Parent for incorporation in its accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Accordingly, no effect of the profitability, if any, relating to the above entities has been considered in the
accounts. Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Management Discussion
and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the
other information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of
other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to
contfinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, Misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of intemnal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of the consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw aftention in our auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concemn.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
fransactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates 1o express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govermnance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements include the audited financial statements of three subsidiaries whose
financial statements / financial information reflect Group’s share of total assets of ¥ 5,002 lacs as at 31st
March 2023, share of total revenue of ¥ 2,879 lacs and share of total net profit after tax of ¥ 273 lacs and
net cash flow of ¥ 1 lacs for the year ended 31st March 2023 which have been audited by other auditors.
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The consolidated Financial Results includes the Group’s share of net profit after tax of 3242 lakhs and total
comprehensive profit of 3243 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2023 in respect of one associate and
should also include the Group’s share of net loss after tax of ¥40 lakhs and total comprehensive loss of 340
lakhs but the same have not been considered in the consolidated financial results as the book value of
investment is Nil, in respect of one associate, whose financial results have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion and conclusion on the statement in so far as it is related to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of subsidiaries, associates is based solely on the reports of the other auditors
and the procedures performed by us as stated under Auditor’s Responsibilities section above.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/financial information certified by the
Management.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure “A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and associates as were audited
by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on 31st March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in ferms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in “Annexure B” which is based
on the auditors’ reports of the Parent, subsidiary companies and associate companies. Our report
expresses an unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of those companies.

(9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and fo the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the Other
Matters' paragraph:
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i)

i)

Vi)

The consolidated financial statfements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates -Refer note 53 of the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There is no such sum which needs to be fransferred 1o the Investor Education and  Protection
Fund by the Group and its associates.

a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and ifs subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us, fo the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and c¢) Based on such audit procedures
performed, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come tfo our aftention that causes us to believe that the management representations under
sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement

Cc) Based on such audit procedures performed, as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Holding company or subsidiary companies covered under the Act have not declared or paid
any dividend during the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting sofftware which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable
to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

(h) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Holding Company
has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the act.

Further, Subsidiary Companies are private companies hence, reporting under Section 197(16) is not
applicable with respect to them.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon

Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29" May, 2023 Membership No.: 060534
UDIN:23060534BGWXXJ7487
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief and based on the consideration of report of the respective auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, we state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accounfants
Firm Registration No.: 329088k

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29" May, 2023 Membership No.: 060534
UDIN:23060534BGWXXJ7487
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) .

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year
ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EMAMI
REALTY LIMITED (hereinafter referred 1o as the “Parent”) and such companies incorporated in India under the
Act which are its subsidiary companies, its associate companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent, its
subsidiary companies, its associate companies, have, in all material respects, an adequate intermnal financial
control over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of such internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “*Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining intermnal financial controls over financial reporting based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence 1o the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intermnal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of intfernal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
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of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such controls were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2023, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29" May, 2023 Membership No.: 060534
UDIN:23060534BGWXXJ7487
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023

R in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 133 146
Investment Property 2 2,249 2,303
Intangible Assets 2 8 18
Goodwill on Consolidation 2,517 2,517
Financial Assets
Investments 3 9,713 9,124
Other Financial Assets 4 889 683
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 3,355 1,997
Other Non Current Assets 6 123 160
Total Non-Current Assets 18,987 16,948
Current Assets
Inventories 7 90,781 83,174
Financial Assets
Investments 8 826 1,247
Trade Receivables 9 1,262 1,378
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 1,509 921
Bank Balances other than above 11 273 211
Loans 12 29,369 28,529
Other Financial Assets 13 41,733 41,201
Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 969 770
Other Current Assets 15 11,668 12,329
Total Current Assets 1,78,390 1,69,760
TOTAL ASSETS 1,97,377 1,86,708
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 16 757 757
Other Equity 17 7,961 11,989
Total Equity attributable to owners of the Company 8,718 12,746
Non Confrolling Interest - -
Total Equity 8,718 12,746
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18 86,679 21,822
Lease Liabilities 19 - 100
Other Non-Current Liabilities 20 3,710 3,710
Provisions 21 178 142
Total Non-Current Liabilities 90,567 25,774
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 22 71,998 1,30,822
Lease Liabilities 23 51 15
Trade Payables 24
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 32 1
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 362 450
Small Enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 25 3.342 3,400
Other Current Liabilities 26 22,214 11,960
Provisions 27 93 1,540
Total Current Liabilities 98,092 1,48,188
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,97,377 1,86,708
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 1to 65

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXJ7487
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Hari Mohan Marda

Director

DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
ACS 22418

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
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R in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 28 9,615 19,652
Other Income 29 3,514 4,517
Total Income (I) 13,129 24,169
EXPENSES
Purchases 30 2,717 157
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and 31 (7.607) 715
Work-in-Progress
Employee Benefits Expense 32 1,812 1,482
Finance Costs 33 5,845 6,794
Project Expenses 34 14,528 12,129
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 2 121 108
Other Expenses 35 1,184 1,050
Total Expenses (Il) 18,600 22,435
Profit/(Loss) before share of profit in Associates and tax (I-11) (5,471) 1,734
Tax Expenses 55
Current Tax - 20
Deferred Tax (1,359) 160
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 54
(4,112) 1,500
Share of Profit of Associates (Net of tax) 249 4
Profit/(Loss) for the year (3,863) 1,504
Other Comprehensive Income
[terms that will not be sulbsequently reclassified to statement of
Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit Plan 4 9)
Changes in fair valuation of equity instruments > -
Income Tax on above (1) 2
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 3 (7)
Total Comprehensive Gain/(Loss) for the year (3,860) 1,497
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of Parent (3,863) 1,504
Non Controlling Interest - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of Parent & (7)
Non Controlling Interest - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of Parent (3.860) 1,497
Non Controlling Interest - -
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of  2/- each
Basic & Diluted 36 (10.21) 3.97
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 110 65

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXJ7487

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Mohan Marda
Director
DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
ACS 22418

Annual Report 2022-23 | 129



Emami Realty Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

R in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March, 2023

Year ended
31 March, 2022

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax (5.471) 1,734
Add: Adjusted for

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 121 108
Finance Costs 5,845 6,794
Share of Loss in LLP 70 74
Loss on Sale of Investment 5 3
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investment Property - 0
Profit on Mutual Funds (83) @1
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets - (7)
Dividend Received 0 -
Interest Income (1,128) (3.691)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (641) 4,924
Adjusted for:

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities -
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (1,408) 25
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (56) (1,220)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (58) 104
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 10,185 3,941
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (206) (6)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets 37 10
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (7,608) 716
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 116 2,463
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (530) (4,619)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Assets (Net) (199) 305
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 7,660 5,207
Cash Generated from Operations 7,292 11,850
Less: Taxes Paid - 74
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 7,292 11,776
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, (75) (17)
Intangible Assets

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment 31 781
Property

Sale of units of Mutual Funds 16,723 14,091
Purchase of units of Mutual Funds (16,2606) (14,882)
Proceeds from Investments 42 32
Purchase of Debentures (340) (554)
(Investments in)/Proceeds from Fixed Deposit (62) 58
Dividend Received 0 -
Purchase of Goodwill - (603)
Purchase of Minority Interest - (3)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Loans Given (7.838) 6,670
Interest Received 1,128 3.691
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) (6,657) 9,264
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 5,862 (14,498)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (64) (58)
Inferest Paid (5,845) (6,794)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) 47) (21,350)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 588 (310)
(A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 921 1,231
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,509 921

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in IND AS-7 "Statement of
Cash Flows"

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 1 to 65
% 0 represent amount Less than ¥ 1.00,000

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E Hari Mohan Marda Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Director Managing Director & CEO
Radhakrishan Tondon DIN: 00855466 DIN: 08756907
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata Rajendra Agarwal Payel Agarwal
Date: 29/05/2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXJ7487 ACS 22418
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital

1. Current reporting period

Balance at 1st April 2022 757
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Current Year -
Balance at 31st March 2023 757
2. Previous reporting period

Balance at 1st April 2021 757
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the Previous Year -
Balance at 31st March 2022 757
b. Other Equity

Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income Total
Capital | Revaluation Equity Retained oy P
Reserve |  Reserve Component Earnings . Equity Other items
instruments of Other
of Compound .
. ; through Other . Comprehensive
Financial c hensi |
Instrument onlmpre ensive ncome
(0CD) ncome

Balance at 1st April 2022 2,592 954 8,422 22 11,990
Less: Redemption of OCD (170) (170)
Less: Transferred to Retained Eamings (24) 24

for Gain on redemption of OCD

Profit/(Loss) for the year (3.862) (3.862)
Other comprehensive income / (losses) - 3 3
Balance at 31st March 2023 2,592 760 4,584 25 7,961
Balance at 1st April 2021 2,592 166 954 6,752 29 10,493
Add: Amount tfransferred from General (166) 166

Reserve

Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,503 1,503
Other comprehensive income / (losses) - (7) (7)
Balance at 31st March 2022 2,592 954 8,421 22 11,989

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29/05/2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXJ7487
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Director

DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta

Managing Directfor & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.1

1.2

1.3

Corporate Overview

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement comprise financial statements of Emami Realty Limited
(Formerly Emami Infrastructure Limited) (“the Company” or “the Parent”) and its subsidiaries and
associates (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2023. The Parent is a public
company domiciled in India and its shares are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE), The National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE). The registered
office of the Parent is located at Acropolis, 13th Floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba, Kolkata —
700107.

The Group is carrying on the business of real estate development.

The consolidated Ind AS Financial Staterments were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the Board of Directors on 29th May, 2023.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 ("Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016. These financial
statements are prepared under the historical cost conversion on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values.

Basis of Consolidation

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

b) Exposure, or rights, fo variable retums from its involvement with the investee, and
c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retumns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. Consolidated
financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like tfransactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting
policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the Parent, i.e., year ended on 31st March, 2023.

Consolidation procedure:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements af the
acquisition date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
Parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to fransactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from infragroup
fransactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in
full). Infragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.4
1.4.1

1.4.2

1.4.3

134

financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from infragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the Parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Significant Accounting Policies
Operating Cycle

The Operating Cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has evaluated and considered its operating cycle as 3 to 5
years and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be redlised or fo be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of frading

- Expected to be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for af
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be setfled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of frading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right fo defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-curent,
Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations

The functional currency of the Group is Indian rupees. The Financial Statements of the Group are
prepared and presented in Indian Rupees and has bbeen rounded off 1o the nearest Lakhs, unless
otherwise stated.

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Group are tfranslated to the Group’s functional
currency atf the exchange rates prevailing on the date of fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies af the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign currencies
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated af
the exchange rates at the dates of fransactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the fair valuation. The
gain or loss arising on franslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is freated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences
on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI
or profit or l0ss, respectively).

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requiires the Group to make estimates
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) at the end of the reporting period and the reported income and expenses during the year.
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Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition, on current cost basis less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the infended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

An item of propenty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method over the estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and are in line with the requirement of Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intfangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the assets flow to
the enterprise and are amortised on Straight Line Method over their estimated useful life of five years.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, infangible assets are carried atf cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Capital Work-in-Progress and Intangible Assets under Development

Capital work-in-progress and infangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost includes
land, related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs and other
direct expenditure.

Investment Property & Depreciation
() Recognition & measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Investment properties are held initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly affributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the infended use.

Subseqguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of profit and 10ss
as incurred.

(i) Depreciation on investment property is provided using the written down method based on useful
lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) net selling price
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
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does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market fransactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value.

Construction-work-in progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction
costs, adllocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Group.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and it
can be reliably measured. Revenue towards safisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The fransaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration
on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Group as part of the contract. The
Group applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of revenue transaction as below:

In terms of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be recognised at a point of time
(project completion method) upon satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transfer of goods or
services to customers.

Interest Income is recognised using the effective interest method and is included under the head
‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend Income including share of profit in LLP is recognised when the Group’s right to receive
dividend is established.

All other incomes are recognised on accrual basis.
Employee Benefits
a. Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund

The Parent makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees.

b. Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity

The Parent’s liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method atf the end of
the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Parent recognizes
the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and
losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The effect
of any plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

c. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Parent’s liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of
the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Parent recognizes
the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains
and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in
Statement of Profit & Loss.
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Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective
tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, on femporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements af the
reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a fransaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period,
electing not to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the ITA, 1961 as infroduced
by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is setftled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right 1o offset
and intfends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, electing not to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 as infroduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019.

Leases

The Company at the inception of a contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 introduces a single balance sheet
lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Lessor accounting remains similar to the accounting under the previous standard i.e. lessor continues
to classify leases as finance or operating lease. The determination of whether an arrangement is, or
contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arangement.

As Q lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
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cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently depreciated over the useful life of the asset. On the balance sheet date,
the right-of-use of asset is included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been
included in the borrowings and other financial liabilities.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

AS a lessor

Lease income from operating leases, where the Group is a lessor, is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation 1o compensate for the expected inflation.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and 1oss.

If the effect of the fime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required 1o seftle the obligation. The Group does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily fakes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 1o the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aftributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the numlber of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

Financial Instruments
d) Recognition and Initial Measurement

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
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value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities,
other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), are added to the fair value on
initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are
carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), are charged to the statement of profit and loss.
However, frade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured
at fransaction price.

b) Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
i) Debt Instruments

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets in the nature of debt instruments
are classified as follows:

Amortised Cost - Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairments, if any. Interest income
calculated using effective interest rate (EIR) method and impairment 10ss, if any are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - Financial assets that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both holding the asset in order to collect
confractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest and by selling the financial
assets, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Changes
in fair value are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI) and on derecognition,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss. Interest income calculated using EIR method and impairment loss, if any are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTIPL) - A financial asset which is not classified in any of the
above categories are subsequently measured at fair valued through profit or loss. Changes in fair
value and income on these assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ii) Equity Instfruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for frading are classified as at FVIPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to
classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVIPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides 1o classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
fransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVIPL category are measured aft fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified as follows:

Amortised cost - Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost by
default. Interest expense calculated using EIR method is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

i) Borrowings - After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

ii) Trade and Other Payables - These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
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to the Group prior to the end of financial year. The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within the Group'’s
operating cycle. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) - Financial liabilities are classified as FVIPL if it is held for
frading, or is designated as such on initial recognition. Changes in fair value and interest expense
on these liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and 1oss.

Financial Guarantee Contracts - Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment 1o be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because
the specified borrower fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

d) Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows including risks
and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or expires.
e) Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets that are carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVIOCI) are assessed for possible impairments basis expected credit losses taking into
account the past history of recovery, risk of default of the counterparty, existing market conditions
efc. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For Trade receivables, the Group provides for expected credit losses based on a simplified
approach as per Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments. Under this approach, expected credit losses
are computed basis the probability of defaults over the lifetime of the asset.

f) Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

g) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is normally determined by references to the fransaction
price or market price. If the fair value is not reliably determinable, the Group determines the
fair value using valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

Segment Reporting

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the Board of
Directors / Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Group’s performance based on an analysis
of various performance indicators by business segment. Segment revenue and expenses include
amounts which can be directly attributable to the segment and allocable on reasonable basis.
Segment assets and liabilities are assets / liabilities which are directly affributable to the segment
or can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Income / expenses / assets / liabilities relating fo the
enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as
unallocated income / expenses / assets / liabilities.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31,
2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023 as
below;

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - The amendments require companies to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Group does not
expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes — The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on
fransactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope
of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. The Group is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements,

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — The amendments will
help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Enfities develop accounting estimates
if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. The Group does not expect this amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed
at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted with the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are
only disclosed.
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(% in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

lll. Investments in Limited Liability Partnership (Refer Note No. 52)

Capital Contribution to:

Lohitka Properties LLP 0 0
Supervalue Nirman LLP 0 0

9,713 9,124
Aggregate amount of quoted investments = -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 9,713 9,124

% 0 represents amount less than ¥ 1,00,000

* 9,376 Debentures are convertible into equity shares at the option of the Debenture Holders, and if not
converted are redeemable as follows:

Nos of Debentures

Date of Redemption

Nos of Debentures

Date of Redemption

3. Investments (Non - Current) R in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
I. Investments in Equity Instruments
a. In Associates (Carried at cost)
Unquoted fully paid up
Roseview Developers Private Limited 1 1
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) (M (1)
Prajay Urban Private Limited 1 1
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) (1) (1)
Bengal Emami Housing Limited 6 6
60,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) 249 4
255 10
Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited 69 69
6,90,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) 12 8
81 77
336 87
b. Other Investments Unquoted fully paid up (Carried at Fair
value through Other Comprehensive Income)
The North Kanara G.S.B. Co-Operative Bank Limited 1 1
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited 0 0
1,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Natural Synergies Limited 42 42
4,16,750 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Creative Cultivation Private Limited
4,400 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 0
43 43
Less: Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 42 42
1 1
Il. Investments in Debentures -
Unquoted fully paid up (Carried at amortised cost)
Vijaybhan Investments and Consultancy Private Limited* 9,376 9,036
9,376 (9,036) 6.75% Optionally Convertible Non-Transferable
Debentures of ¥1,00,000/- each
9,376 9,036
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6,481 31st December, 2024 15 31st May, 2029
876 30th March, 2027 17 31st July, 2029
34 30th June, 2028 8 30th November, 2029
17 31st December, 2028 513 31st March, 2030
840 30th March, 2029 575 30th April, 2030
4. Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)
As at As at
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Security Deposits 50 47
Advances to Others 823 636
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months * 16 -
889 683
* Pledged with banks as security for interest payments
5. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Tax impact due 1o difference between tax depreciation and book 49 22
depreciation
Remeasurements of the defined benefit Plan through Profit & Loss 61 48
Unabsorbed business loss carried forward 3,257 1,951
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan through Other - 2
Comprehensive Income
3,367 2,023
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Tax impact of expenses charged off in financial statement but 12 26
liability under tax law deferred
12 26
3,355 1,997
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10. Cash and Cash Equivalents R in Laknhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Balances with Banks 1,352 820
Cheques in hand 156 -
Cash in hand 1 1
Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months* - 100
1,509 921
* Pledged with banks as security for interest payments
11. Bank Balances other than above
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 273 211
12 months*
273 211
* Pledged with banks as security for interest payments
12. Loans
(Considered good, Unsecured)
Loans to Related Parties- Considered good (Unsecured) (Refer 10,522 10,006
Note No. 42)*
Loans to Others- Considered good (Unsecured)* 10,338 18,523
Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 8,509 -
and (Refer Note No. 56)*
29,369 28,529

* Repayable on demand

Loans in the nature of loans granted to the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person, that
are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment are mentioned below:

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Amount of Percentage to
loan and the total loans
advances in  and advances

Type of borrower

Amount of Percentage to
loan and the total loans
advances in  and advances

6. Other Non Current Assets (X in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Security Deposits 123 160
123 160
7. Inventories (Carried at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)
A. Work-in-Progress
Land 7,558 7,562
Work-in-Progress 75,102 63,198
82,660 70,760
B. Finished Goods
Finished Properties 5,668 9,961
5,668 9,961
C. Stock-in-Trade 5 5
5 5
D. Debentures - Unquoted fully paid up
Prajay Urban Private Limited 2,448 2,448
24,480 Optionally Convertible Debentures of ¥ 10,000/- each
2,448 2,448
90,781 83,174
8. Investments (Current)
Paintings (Carried af amortised cost) 318 365
Investment in Mutual Fund Quoted (Carried at fair value through
Profit & Loss Account)
Kotak Money Market Fund Direct Plan Growth (Nil) (13001.548 units - 471
@ % 3620.7122 each)
Kotak Liguid Fund Direct Plan Growth (Nil) (9560.371 units - 411
@ ¥ 4303.0834 each)
Kotak Overmnight Fund Direct - Growth (42,299.721 units 508
@3 1,195.7923 each)
826 1,247
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 508 882
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 318 365
9. Trade Receivables (Current)
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good * 1,262 1,378
1,262 1,378

* Ageing schedule Refer Note No. 47
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the nature in the nature the nature in the nature
of loan of loans of loan of loans
outstanding outstanding
Related Parties 10,522 35.83% 10,006 35.07%
13. Other Financial Assets
As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Refundable Deposit towards Joint Development Agreement to 29,385 29,637
Related Parties (Refer Note No. 42)
Refundable Deposit towards Joint Development Agreement to 11,647 10,977
Others
Advances 1o Related Parties (Refer Note No. 42) 69 42
Other Receivables - Promoter (Refer Note No. 42) - 28
Other Receivables - Others 632 517
41,733 41,201
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14. Current Tax Assets (Net) (% in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Advance Income Tax and Refunds Receivable (Net of Provision) 969 770
969 770
15. Other Current Assets
Advances to Employees 8 13
Advances to Contractors/Suppliers
- Mobilization 965 -
- Others 205 165
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advance (19) (19)
Advances to Land Owners 988 848
Advances to Others 972 80
Current Account Balance with a LLP (Refer Note No. 52) 6,998 9,859
Security Deposits 163 -
Balances with Government Authorities 1,386 1,379
Prepaid Expenses 2 4
11,668 12,329
16. Equity Share Capital
Authorized Shares
13,52,50,000 Equity Shares of % 2/- each 2,705 2,705
2,705 2,705
Issued, subscribed & fully paid-up shares
3,78,43,889 Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each * 757 757
757 757

*  Of the above, 1,35,45,497 equity shares fully paid up have been issued in consideration other than cash

by way of allotment of Shares Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation in last 5 years
a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

No of shares (% in Lakhs) No of shares (% in Lakhs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the ~ 3,78,43,889 757  2,79,38,889 559
period
Add: Issued for consideration other than - - 99,05,000 198
cash during the period
Shares Outstanding at the end of the period  3,78,43,889 757 3,78,43,889 757

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 2/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Name of Shareholders No of shares % holding No of shares % holding

in the class in the class
Diwakar Finvest Private Limited (Formerly Sneha 1,08,48,318 28.666% 1,08,48,318 28.666%
Enclave Private Limited)
Surqgj Finvest Private Limited 1,04,47,850 27.608% 1,04,47,850 27.608%

d. Shareholding of Promoters:

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Name of Promoter No of % holding % Change No of % holding % Change
shares in the class  during the shares in the class  during the
year year
Diwakar Finvest Private Limited (Formerly 1,08,48,318 28.666% 0.000% 1,08,48,318 28.666% 5.771%
Sneha Enclave Private Limited)
Suraj Finvest Private Limited 1,04,47,850 27.608% 0.000% 1,04,47,850 27.608% 2.996%
Midkot Investments Private Limited 36,143 0.096% 0.000% 36,143 0.096% 0.096%
Emami Paper Mills Ltd 833 0.002% 0.000% 833 0.002% -0.001%
Emami Frank Ross Limited 333 0.001% 0.000% 333 0.001% 0.000%
Emami Capital Markets Limited - 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% -0.002%
Pan Emami Cosmed Ltd - 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% -0.001%
Tmt Viniyogan Limited - 0.000% 0.000% - 0.000% -0.126%
Priti A Sureka 9,33,880 2.468% 0.000% 9,33,880 2.468% 0.898%
Santosh Goenka 6,96,832 1.841% 0.000% 6,96,832 1.841% 1.829%
Rajkumar Goenka 3,97.349 1.050% 0.000% 3,97.349 1.050% 1.046%
Indu Goenka 2,97.483 0.786% 0.000% 2,97.483 0.786% 0.785%
Prashant Goenka 40,366 0.107% 0.000% 40,366 0.107% -0.038%
Sushil Kumar Goenka 40,166 0.106% 0.000% 40,166 0.106% -0.038%
Manish Goenka 40,122 0.106% 0.000% 40,122 0.106% -0.038%
Ashish Goenka 40,000 0.106% 0.000% 40,000 0.106% -0.037%
Rohin Raj Sureka BEISSE 0.088% 0.000% 33,333 0.088% -0.031%
Vidhishree Agarwal 26,666 0.070% 0.000% 26,666 0.070% -0.025%
Vidula Agarwal 26,666 0.070% 0.000% 26,666 0.070% -0.025%
Mohan Goenka 25,716 0.068% 0.000% 25,716 0.068% -0.024%
Aditya Vardhan Agarwal 22,099 0.058% 0.000% 22,099 0.058% -0.021%
Shobhana Agarwal 20,000 0.053% 0.000% 20,000 0.053% -0.019%
Dhiraj Agarwal 14,269 0.038% 0.000% 14,269 0.038% -0.013%
Harsha Vardhan Agarwal 8,685 0.023% 0.000% 8,685 0.023% -0.008%
Usha Agarwal 3,942 0.010% 0.000% 3,942 0.010% -0.004%
Madan Lal Agarwal SISES) 0.009% 0.000% 3,333 0.009% -0.003%
Kusum Agarwal 2,266 0.006% 0.000% 2,266 0.006% -0.002%
Abhishek Agarwal 1,933 0.005% 0.000% 1,933 0.005% -0.002%
Laxmi Devi Bajoria 1,666 0.004% 0.000% 1,666 0.004% -0.002%
Radheshyam Goenka 748 0.002% 0.000% 748 0.002% -0.001%
Avishi Sureka 333 0.001% 0.000% 333 0.001% 0.000%
Mansi Agarwal 333 0.001% 0.000% 333 0.001% 0.000%
Jyoti Goenka 333 0.001% 0.000% 333 0.001% 0.000%
Shanti Devi Agarwal 237 0.001% 0.000% 237 0.001% 0.000%
Radheshyam Agarwal 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
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As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Name of Promoter No of % holding % Change No of % holding % Change
shares in the class  during the shares in the class  during the
year year

Richa Agarwal 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Rashmi Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Saswat Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Saroj Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Shreya Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Nimisha Goenka 166 0.000% 0.000% 166 0.000% 0.000%
Yogesh Goenka 133 0.000% 0.000% 133 0.000% 0.000%
Sachin Goenka 133 0.000% 0.000% 133 0.000% 0.000%
Puja Goenka 111 0.000% 0.000% 1 0.000% 0.000%
Vibhash Vardhan Agarwal 104 0.000% 0.000% 104 0.000% 0.000%
Jayant Goenka 103 0.000% 0.000% 103 0.000% 0.000%
Amitabh Goenka 171 0.000% 0.000% 171 0.000% 0.000%
2,40,14,150 63.456% 0.000% 2,40,14,150 63.456% 12.956%

17. Other Equity R in Lakhs)

As at As at

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Capital Reserve

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nature and description of reserve

i. Capital Reserve - Capital Reserve was created on amalgamations.

156-181

‘ Financial Statements

i. Revaluation Reserve - Revaluation Reserve was created on revaluation of land with structure held as

Property, Plant and Equipment.

Opening Balance 2,592 2,592

Closing Balance 2,592 2,592

Revaluation Reserve

Opening Balance - 166

Less: Amount fransferred to Retained Earmings - (166)

Closing Balance - -

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument (OCD)

Opening Balance 954 953

Less: Redemption of OCD (170)

Less: Transferred to Retained Earnings for Gain on redemption of (24)

OCD

Closing Balance 760 953

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 8,422 6,753

Add: Amount transferred from Revaluation Reserve - 166

Add: Transferred to Retained Eaming for Gain on redemption of 24

Compound Financial Instrument (OCD)

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (3.862) 1,503
4,584 8,422

Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance 22 29

Add: Gain/(Loss) for the year 3 (7)

25 22
Total Reserves and Surplus 7,961 11,989
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18. Borrowings (Non-Current)  in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Secured
Term Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 43[A]) 6,034 3,233
6,034 3,233
Unsecured
Optionally Convertible Debenture (Refer Note No. 44[A]) 70,000 -
Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Debentures (Refer Note 1,106 1,310
No. 44[B])
Term Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 44[C]) 5,152 7,024
Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies (Refer Note 4,387 10,255
No. 44[D])
80,645 18,589
86,679 21,822
19. Lease Liabilities (Non-Current)
Right of Use Liability - Lease Rent 100
- 100
20. Other Non-Current Liabilities
Against Development 3.710 3.710
3,710 3,710
21. Provisions (Non-Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 38)
Gratuity 113 92
Leave Encashment 65 50
178 142
22. Borrowings (Current)
Secured
Overdraft from Banks* = 192
Current Maturities of Long-term Borrowings (Refer Note No. 43[A] & 43(B]) 5,306 10,551
5,306 10,743
Unsecured
Loans from Related Party # 27,837 80,078
Loans from Other Bodies Corporate ™ 36,980 35,367
Current Maturities of Long-term Borrowings (Refer Note No. 44[C]& 44[D]) 1,875 4,634
66,692 1,20,079
71,998 1,30,822

* (i) Nil (X 192) Lakhs secured by subservient charges on receivables of the project at “Emami City”, Kolkata.

# Repayable on demand
~ Terms of repayment within 4 to 12 months
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23. Lease Liabilities (Current) (% in Lakhs) 28. Revenue from Operations [ in Lakhs)
As at As at Year ended Year ended
31st March 2023  31st March 2022 31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Right of Use Liability - Lease Rent 51 15 Operating Income
51 15 Sale of Flats/Plots 9,252 19,045
Sale of Land 5 -
24. Trade Payables Sale of Trade Goods 91 114
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enferprises * 32 1 9,348 19,159
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enferprises and 362 450 Other Operating Income
Small Enterprises™ Nomination Charges 115 346
394 451 Cancellation Charges 58 46
* Ageing schedule Refer Note No. 48 Legal Fees Received 3 13
) T Interest Received from Customer 91 88
25. Other Financial Liabilities 267 493
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 62 55 9,615 19,652
Advances from Related Parties (Refer Note No. 42) 11 11 29. Other Income
Advances from Others 2,804 2,979
; : Interest Income from
Deposits Received 7 7 A - 5 7
Liabilities for Expenses 17 14 LSSOCIO es o8
Employee Benefits Payables 141 108 Other Bodias & " 972' 2’302
Retention Money 300 226 5 o ‘ro 1es -orporate W : E
3.342 3,400 ebentures 63 575
Fixed Deposits 13 15
26. Other Current Liabilities Income Tax Refund 0 60
Advances from Customers 21,620 11,245 Others S 230
: . ; : : 1,776 4,341
Fluctuating Capital Account with LLP 195 125
Duties & Taxes Payables 399 590 : :
22,214 11.960 Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund Units 83 91
Profit on Sale of Investment Property - 0
27. Provisions (Current) Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - 7
— - Dividend Received 0 -
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 38) : :
: Professional Fees Receipt 43 -
Gratuity 43 31 :
Rent Received 19 19
Leave Encashment 21 17 o -
Commission Received 24 42
Others 29 29 - e
- : Reimbursement of Electricity Charges 52 -
Provision for Project Expenses Payable - 1,463 o : :
93 1540 Provision for Project Expenses Written Back 1463 -
- Miscellaneous Income 54 17
1,738 176
3,514 4,517
¥ 0 represents amount less than T 1,00,000
30. Purchases
Land - 44
Plots 2,639 -
Trade Goods 78 113
2,717 157
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31. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress

% in Lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2023

Year ended
31st March 2022

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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I. Opening Stock

35. Other Expenses R in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Electricity Charges 13 12
Rent 5 7
Repairs & Maintenance 47 29
Rates & Taxes 2 24
Advertisement & Publicity 3 5
Custodial Fees 5 3
Listing Fees 6 6
Directors' Sitting Fees 4 4
Printing & Stationery 4 3
Royalty 10 10
Insurance 1 1
Project Promotion & Expenses 495 539
Travelling & Conveyance 32 29
Legal & Professional Fees 380 233
Share of Loss in LLP 70 74
Loss on Sale of Investment 5 3
Miscellaneous Expenses 75 49
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer Note No. 37) 27 19
1,184 1,050
36. Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings per Share is calculated as follows:
Profit/(loss) after tax aftributable to Equity Shareholders (3.863) 1,504
Weighted average number of equity shares 3,78,43,889 3,78,43,889
Nominal value of Equity Share 2.00 2.00
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (10.21) 3.97
37. Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fees 17 10
Tax Audit Fees 2
Limited Review 4 2
Other Matters 5 6
28 19

Land 7,562 12,329
Work-in-Progress 63,198 55,637
Finished Properties 9,961 13,473
Debentures 2,448 2,448
Stock-in- Trade B 2
83,174 83,889
Il. Closing Stock
Land 7.558 7,562
Work-in-Progress 75,102 63,198
Finished Properties 5,668 9,961
Debentures 2,448 2,448
Stock-in- Trade 5 5
90,781 83,174
Changes in Inventories (I -11) (7,607) 715
32. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Gratuity & Allowances 1,689 1,411
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 62 46
Staff Welfare Expenses 61 25
1,812 1,482
33. Finance Costs
Interest Expenses 12,831 14,846
Premium on OCD 4 -
Other Borrowing Costs 218 381
Interest on Lease Liabilty 8 13
13,061 15,240
Less: Transferred to Construction Work-in-Progress 7.216 8,446
5,845 6,794
34. Project Expenses
Materials Consumed 1,272 715
Payments to Contractors 3,132 1,438
Consultants Fees 332 161
Project Promotion & Expenses 1,684 915
Insurance 1 -
Repair & Maintenance 41 94
Rates & Taxes 601 195
Travelling & Conveyance 31 27
Other Operating Expenses 218 138
Finance Costs 7,216 8,446
14,528 12,129
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38. As per actuarial valuations as on 31st March, 2023 and recognized in the financial statement in
respect of Employee benefit schemes

 in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Non-funded

Non-funded

Non-funded

Non-funded

Expenses Recognised in the income
statement

Current Service Cost

28

22

25

Interest Cost

Loss/(Gain) on seftlement

i~

Net interest cost/(income) on the Net Defined
Benefit Liability/(Assets)

Re-measurement (or Actuarial)(gain)/loss
arising from:

- Change in demographic assumptions

- Change in financial assumptions

(1

- Experience variance (i.e. Actual expense vs
assumptions)

- Others

Return on plan assets, excluding amount
recognised in net interest expenses

Re-measurement (or Actual)(gain)/loss arising
because of change in effect of asset ceiling

Total Expenses recognised in the Statement
of Profit & Loss

34

30

41

17

Assets and Liability

Present value of Obligation

156

86

124

67

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)]

(156)

(86)

(124)

(67)

Effects of Assets Ceiling, if any

I EaR RS

Net asset/(liability) recognized in balance
sheet

(156)

(86)

(124)

(67)

0

Change in Present Value of Obligation

Present value of Obligation as at beginning of
period

124

67

102

57

Current Service Cost

28

22

25

Interest Expenses or Cost

Re-measurement (or Actuarial)(gain)/loss
arising from:

- Change in demographic assumptions

- Change in financial assumptions

- Experience variance (i.e. Actual expense vs
assumptions)

- Others

4,

Past Service Cost
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 in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Non-funded

Non-funded

Non-funded

Non-funded

Effect of change in foreign exchange rates

Benefits Paid

(2)

(1)

(19)

(/)

Acquisition Adjustment

Effect of business combinations or disposals

V o N O o

Present value of Obligation as at the end of
period

156

86

124

67

o

Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain)/losses

- Change in demographic assumptions

- Change in financial assumptions

- Experience variance (i.e. Actual expense vs
assumptions)

- Others

Return of plan assets, excluding amount
recognised in net interest expenses

Re-measurement (or Actuarial)(gain)/loss
arising because of change in effect of asset
ceiling

4.

Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive income

(4)

Financial Assumptions

Discount Rate (%)

7.40%

7.40%

7.10%

7.10%

Salary Growth Rate (per annum)

6.00%

6.00%

6.00%

6.00%

Demographic Assumptions

E
1.
2.
E
1

Mortality Rate (% of IALM 06-08)

5.00%

5.00%

5.00%

5.00%

2.

Withdrawal Rate (per annum)

1% 10 8%

1% 10 8%

1% 1o 8%

1% 1o 8%

Sensitivity Analysis :-

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant. The result of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

As at 31st

As at 31st

As at 31st

As at 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2023 March, 2022

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

156

124

87

67
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R in Lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 165 147 133 116
(% change compared to base due fo sensitivity) 6.43% -5.41% 7.04% -6.26%
Salary Growth Rate (-/+1%) 147 166 116 133
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -5.73% 6.71% -6.38% 7.11%
Attrition Rate (-/+50%) 156 156 124 123
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.26% 0.04% 0.33% -0.36%

Leave Encashment

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 148 82 72 63
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 70.23% -5.57% 6.81% -6.07%
Salary Growth Rate (-/+1%) 82 93 63 72
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -5.93% 6.55% -6.21% 6.90%
Attrition Rate (-/+50%) 87 87 67 68
(% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity) -0.53% 0.49% -0.46% 0.42%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as

some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period.

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Gratuity Leave Encashment
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Weighted average duration (based on discounted 491 5.50 5.01 4.92
cash flows)
Gratuity Leave Encashment
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on
undiscounted basis)
1 Year 43 31 22 17
2 to 5 Years 14 29 6 30
6 to 10 Years 89 67 58 39
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39. Carrying value and Fair Value of Financial Instruments is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
At Cost  FVOCI FVIPL  Amortized Total At Cost  FVOCI FVIPL  Amortized Total
Cost Cost
Financial Assets:
Non-Current
Investment in equty 336 1 - - 337 87 1 - 88
instruments
Investment in 9,376 9,376 9,036 9,036
Debentures
Investment in LLPs 0 0 0 0
Other Financial Assets 889 889 683 683
Current
Investments 508 318 826 882 365 1,247
Trade Receivables 1,262 1,262 1,378 1,378
Cash and Cash 1,509 1,509 921 921
Equivalents
Other Bank 273 273 211 211
Balances
Loans 29,369 29,369 28,529 28,529
Other Financial 41,733 41,733 41,201 41,201
Assets
Total 336 1 508 84,729 85,574 87 1 882 82,324 83,294
Financial Liabilities:
Non-Current
Borrowings 86,679 86,679 21,822 21,822
Lease Liabilities - - 100 100
Current
Borrowings 71,998 71,998 1,30,822 1,30,822
Lease Liabilities 51 51 15 15
Trade Payables 394 394 451 451
Other Financial 3,342 3.342 3,400 3.400
Liabilities
Total - - 1,62,464 1,62,464 - - 1,56,610 1,56,610

T 0 represents amount less than T 1,00,000

40. Fair Value Hierarchy

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value. The different levels have been

defined below:-

Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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a) Financial assets measured at fair value at 31st March 2023 % in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Investment at FVTPL
In equity shares - -
In debentures - .

In Investments 508 508
Investment at FVOCI
In equity shares 1 1

Amortized Cost
In equity shares - -
In debentures 9,376 9,376
In Investments 318 318

Financial assets measured at fair value at 31st March 2022

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Investment at FVTPL
In equity shares - -
In debentures - -

In Investments 882 882
Investment at FVOCI
In equity shares 1 1

Amortized Cost
In equity shares - -
In debentures 9,036 9,036
In Investments 365 365

b) Financial instruments at amortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial
statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Group does not anticipate that
the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or
settled.

c) During the year there has been no transfer from one level to another

41. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, frade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group's principal financial assets include
inventories, trade and other receivables, loans and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s Management oversees the
management of these risks and ensures that the Group’s financial risks activities are govermned by appropriate
policies and procedures and that finance risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with
the Group’s policies and risk objectives.
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The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

A. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counter party default on
its obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables and other financial
assets.

Ofther financial assets like bank deposits, advances and security deposits are with banks, government bodies,
utility providers, contractors and others and hence, the Group does not expect any credit risk with respect to
frade receivables and other financial assets.

With respect to trade receivables, the Group has constituted tfeams to review the receivables on periodic
basis and take necessary mitigations whenever required. The following table summarizes the change in the
loss allowance measured using ECL.

The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowance measured using ECL
(X in Lakhs)
Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Trade Receivables Security Deposits
As on 1st April, 2021 - -
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss - -
As on 31st March, 2022 - -
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss - -

As on 31st March, 2023 = =
B. Liquidity Risk

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity are borrowing, Bank overdrafts, loans from bodies corporate,
debentures and cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Group
believes that these are sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilites at the reporting date. The
amounts are based on contractual undiscounted payments

Particulars Maturity period 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings within 1 year 71,998 1,30,822
Trade Payable within 1 year 394 451
Other Financial Liabilities within 1 year 3,342 3,400
Lease Liabilities within 1 year 51 15
Financial Liabilities - Non-Current

Borrowings Between 1-5 year 86,678 21,822
Lease Liabilities Between 1-5 year - 100

C. Market Risk
a. Interest Rate Risk

The Group has taken debt to finance its working capital, which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to interest rate risk.

Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 22,816 35,945
Fixed rate borrowing 1,35,922 1,16,754
Total borrowings 1,58,738 1,52,699
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Market risk is the risk from fluctuation in the fair value of future cash flows from financial instruments because
of change in market prices. Market risk comprises two type of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk and commodity/real estate risk.

The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities/real estates. Its operating activities require
the ongoing development of real estate. The Group’s management has developed and enacted a risk
management strategy regarding commodity/real estate price risk and its mitigation. The Group is subject to
the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all
other variables held constant. The impact on Group’s profit before tax is due 1o change in the fair value of
borrowings.

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Interest Sensitivity*
Interest Rates increase by 100 basis points (228) (359)
Interest Rates decrease by 100 basis points 228 359

*Holding all other variables constant
b. Price Risk

The Group’s exposure fo price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVIPL or FVOCI. To manage
the price risk arising from investments, the Group diversifies its porifolio of assets.

Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Price Sensitivity*
Price increase by 5%- FVOCI 0 0
Price decrease by 5%- FVOCI (0) (0)
Price increase by 5%- FVTPL 25.40 44,10
Price decrease by 5%- FVIPL (25.40) (44.10)

*Holding all other variables constant

42. Related Party Transactions

1. List of Related Parties as required by IND AS-24, “Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:
A. Related Party
i. Entities having significant interest over the Company
1. Diwakar Finvest Private Limited Company is an Associate
(Formerly Sneha Enclave Private Limited)

2. Surgj Finvest Private Limited Company is an Associate

ii. Associates :

1. Roseview Developers Private Limited (50%)
2. Prajay Urban Private Limited (50%)
3. Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited (33.66%)
4, Bengal Emami Housing Limited (30%)

iii. Limited Liability Partnerships :
1. Lohitka Properties LLP (10%)
2. Supervalue Nirman LLP (0.0006%)
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B. Other Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
i. Key Management Personnel & Other Directors:
a) Key Management Personnel:
1. Mr. Rajesh Bansal Whole-time Director
2. Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Managing Director & CEO
3. Mr Rajendra Agarwal Chief Financial Officer
4. Mrs. Payel Agarwal Company Secretary
b) Other Directors:
1. Mr. Abhijit Datta Non-Executive Chairman (Independent)
2. Mr Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director
3.  Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Independent Director
4. Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
5. Mr. Debasish Bhaumik Independent Director
6. Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
ii. Entities where a Director has significant influence
1. Dev Infracity Private Limited
2. Rqgj Infraproperties Private Limited
iii. Promoters
1. Diwakar Finvest Private Limited (Formerly Sneha Enclave Private Limited)
2. Surgj Finvest Private Limited
3. Midkot Investments Private Limited (Formerly Midkot Trades Private Limited)
4. Emami Paper Mills Limited
5. Emami Frankross Limited
6. Ashish Goenka
7. Emami Capital Markets Limited*
* Merged with Midkot Trades Private Limited w.e.f. 08.12.2021
iv. Director of Subsidiary, his relative, firms/Other Promoter of Subsidiary with whom transaction has

taken place

1.

Mr. Hari Khemchand

Director of Subsidiary

Ms. Divya Hari Khemchand

wife of Director of Subsidiary

Ms. Vedika Hari Khemchand

Daughter of Director of Subsidiary

Ms. Avanthika Hari Khemchand

Daughter of Director of Subsidiary

Lachmi Narain Electricals

Partnership firm of Director of Subsidiary

Lachmi Narain Cables

Proprietorship firm of Director of Subsidiary

NOo Ok ®Dd

Presidium Constructions
(Coimbatore) Private Limited

Other Promoter of Subsidiary
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1. Add Albatross Properties Private Limited 46. Everline Buildcon LLP

2. Amri Hospital Limited 47. Everline Builders LLP

3. Creative Cultivation Private Limited 48. Everline Conclave LLP

4. Emami Agrotech Limited 49. Everline Constech LLP

5. Emami Estates Private Limited 50. Everline Construction LLP

6. Emami Home Private Limited 51. Everline Enclave LLP

7. Emami Limited 52. Everline Estates LLP

8. Fastgrow Beverages Private Limited 53. Everline Highrise LLP

9.  Fastgrow Crops Private Limited 54. Everline Homes LLP

10. Fastgrow Nirman Private Limited 55. Everline Niketan LLP

11.  Fastgrow Projects Private Limited 56. Everline Nirman LLP

12.  Jhansi Properties Private Limited 57. Everline Promoters LLP

13. New Way Constructions Limited 58. Everline Residency LLP

14.  Emami Art Private Ltd. 59. Everline Towers LLP
(formerly Oriental Sales Agencies (1) Private Limited) 60. Everline Villa LLP

15.  Paradise Agriculture Private Limited 61. Fast Home Amenities LLP

16. Prime Constructions Private Limited 62. Fast Home Atmosphere LLP

17.  Satyam Housing Nirman Private Limited 63. Fast Home Constech LLP

18. Sneha Skyhigh Private Limited 64. Fast Home Creative LLP

19. Superfast Caostel LLP 65. Fast Home Designs LLP

20. Superfast Citylights LLP 66. Fast Home Developers LLP

21. Superfast Commercial LLP 67. Fast Home Dimensions LLP

22. Superfast Commodeal LLP 68. Fast Home Enclave LLP

23. Superfast Conclave LLP 69. Fast Home Galaxy LLP

24, Superfast Concrete LLP 70. Fast Home Highrise LLP

25, Superfast Connect LLP 71. Fast Home Iconic LLP

26. Superfast Constech LLP 72. Fast Home Niketan LLP

27. Superfast Creative LLP 73. Fast Home Paradise LLP

28. Superfast Dealfrade LLP 74. Fastgrow Amenities LLP

29. Superfast Deluxe LLP 75. Fastgrow Avas LLP

30. Superfast Designs LLP 76. Fastgrow Avenues LLP

31. Superfast Devcon LLP 77. Fastgrow Bricks LLP

32. Superfast Developers LLP 78. Fastgrow Buildcon LLP

33. Superfast Dimension LLP 79. Fastgrow Buildings LLP

34. Superfast Divine LLP 80. Fastgrow Citylights LLP

35. Superfast Dreamhome LLP 81. Fastgrow Concrete LLP

36. Superfast Dwelling LLP 82. Fastgrow Connect LLP

37. South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited 83. Fastgrow Constech LLP

38. Supervalue Buildcon Private Limited 84. Fastgrow Designs LLP

39. Supervalue Constructions Private Limited 85. Fastgrow Developers LLP

40. Superview Constructions Private Limited 86. Fastgrow Dream Home LLP

41.  Viiddhi Commercial Private Limited 87. Fastgrow Dwelling LLP

42. Sanjeevani Vapaar LLP 88. Fastgrow Elite Property LLP

43, Albatross Biocrop LLP 89. Fastgrow Empire LLP

44. Everline Abasan LLP 90. Fastgrow Galaxy LLP

45. Everline Avas LLP 91. Fostgrow Greenview LLP
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92. Fastgrow Heritage LLP 140. Superfast Majestic LLP

93. Fastgrow Home Constructions LLP 141. Superfast Mansion LLP
94. Fastgrow Iconic LLP 142. Superfast Modern Realty LLP
95. Fastgrow Landmark LLP 143. Superfast Moonlink LLP
96. Fastgrow Legacy LLP 144. Superfast Nest LLP

97. Fastgrow Lighthouse LLP 145. Superfast Niketan LLP

98. Fastgrow Living LLP 146. Superfast Nirman LLP

99. Fastgrow Lodging LLP 147. Superfast Nivas LLP

100. Fostgrow Luxe Living LLP 148. Superfast Northwood LLP
101. Faostgrow Majestic LLP 149. Superfast Paradise LLP
102. Fastgrow Modern Realty LLP 1560. Superfast Parkview LLP
103. Fostgrow Nest LLP 151. Superfast Planner LLP
104. Fastgrow Niketan LLP 152. Superfast Pro-Estate LLP
105. Fastgrow Northwood LLP 153. Superfast Projects LLP
106. Fastgrow Residency LLP 154. Superfast Promoters LLP
107. Fastgrow Residential LLP 155. Superfast Realcon LLP
108. Fastgrow Skytowers LLP 166. Superfast Realestate LLP
109. Superfast Eco-Builders LLP 157. Superfast Regency LLP
110. Superfast Ecospace LLP 158. Superfast Residency LLP
111. Superfast Elite Properties LLP 159. Superfast Resort LLP

112. Superfast Empire LLP 160. Superfast Roserise LLP
113. Superfast Enclave LLP 161. Superfast Rosewood LLP
114. Superfast Estate LLP 162. Superfast Shelter LLP

115. Superfast Everline LLP 163. Superfast Skyscrapers LLP
116. Superfast Everrise LLP 164. Superfast Skytowers LLP
117. Superfast ExXim LLP 165. Superfast Terxim LLP

118. Superfast Galaxy LLP 166. Superfast Tie Up LLP

119. Superfast Goodshine LLP 167. Superfast Towers LLP

120. Superfast Granite LLP 168. Superfast Township LLP
121. Superfast Greenview LLP 169. Superfast Trustworthy LLP
122. Superfast Heavens LLP 170. Superfast Ultima LLP

123. Superfast Heights LLP 171. Superfast Unicorn LLP
124. Superfast Heritage LLP 172. Superfast Unique LLP

125. Superfast Highrise LLP 173. Superfast Urban LLP

126. Superfast Home Construction LLP 174. Superfast Villa LLP

127. Superfast Horizon LLP 175. Superfast Vintage LLP
128. Superfast Housing LLP 176. Superfast Voyage Realty LLP
129. Superfast Iconic LLP 177. Supergrow Abasan LLP
130. Superfast Infocom LLP 178. Supergrow Amenities LLP
131. Superfast Infra LLP 179. Supergrow Apartment LLP
132. Superfast Infracon LLP 180. Supergrow Ashiyana LLP
133. Superfast Landmark LLP 181. Fastgrow Smart Homes LLP
134. Superfast Legacy LLP 182. Fastgrow Sweet Living LLP
135. Superfast Lifestyle LLP 183. Fastgrow Township LLP
136. Superfast Lighthouse LLP 184. Fastgrow Ultima LLP

137. Superfast Lodging LLP 185. Fastgrow Urban LLP

138. Superfast Luxe Living LLP 186. Fastgrow Voyage Realty LLP
139. Superfast Luxury LLP 187. Home Citylights LLP
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284. Supergrow Majestic LLP 301. Viewline Abasan LLP

285. Supergrow Modern Realty LLP 302. Viewline Ashiyana LLP

286. Supergrow Nest LLP 303. Viewline Buildcon LLP

287. Supergrow Niketan LLP 304. Viewline Builders LLP

288. Supergrow Nirman LLP 305. Viewline Constech LLP

289. Supergrow Nivas LLP 306. Viewline Estates LLP

290. Supergrow Northwood LLP 307. Viewline Heights LLP

291. Supergrow Paradise LLP 308. Viewline Highrise LLP

292. Supergrow Planner LLP 309. Viewline Housing LLP

293. Supergrow Promoters LLP 310. Viewline Niketan LLP

294. Supergrow Residency LLP 311. Viewline Projects LLP

295. Supergrow Resort LLP 312. Viewline Promoters LLP

296. Supergrow Shelter LLP 313. Viewline Properties LLP

297. Supergrow Skytowers LLP 314. Viewline Residency LLP

298. Supergrow Township LLP 315. Viewline Villa LLP

299. Supergrow Ultima LLP 316. Eveningstar Vinimay Private Limited
300. Supergrow Villa LLP 317. Polpit Vincom Private Limited

188. Prime Amenities LLP 236. Superfast Abasan LLP

189. Prime Appartments LLP 237. Superfast Advisory LLP

190. Prime Atmosphere LLP 238. Superfast Amenities LLP
191. Prime Avas LLP 239. Superfast Anchor LLP

192. Prime Conclave LLP 240. Superfast Appartments LLP
193. Prime Constech LLP 241, Superfast Ashiyana LLP
194. Prime Construction LLP 242, Superfast Atmosphere LLP
195. Prime Destinations LLP 243. Superfast Attractive LLP
196. Prime Dimensions LLP 244. Superfast Avas LLP

197. Prime Eco-Builders LLP 245. Superfast Avenues LLP
198. Prime Ecospace LLP 246. Superfast Awasan LLP

199. Prime Fast Ashiyana LLP 247, Superfast Brick LLP

200. Prime Fast Designs LLP 248. Superfast Buildcon LLP
201. Prime Fast Enclave LLP 249. Superfast Buildings LLP
202. Prime Fast Galaxy LLP 250. Supergrow Avas LLP

203. Prime Fast Heritage LLP 251. Supergrow Avenues LLP
204. Prime Fast Highrise LLP 252. Supergrow Brick LLP

205. Prime Fast Homes LLP 253. Supergrow Buildcon LLP
206. Prime Fast Housing LLP 254, Supergrow Buildings LLP
207. Prime Fast Landmark LLP 255. Supergrow Citylights LLP
208. Prime Fast Niketan LLP 256. Supergrow Commodeal LLP
209. Prime Fast Paradise LLP 257. Supergrow Conclave LLP
210. Prime Fast Parkview LLP 258. Supergrow Concrete LLP
211. Prime Fast Residency LLP 259. Supergrow Connect LLP
212. Prime Fast Residential LLP 260. Supergrow Constech LLP
213. Prime Fast Villa LLP 261. Supergrow Creative LLP
214. Prime Horizon LLP 262. Supergrow Designs LLP
215. Prime Lakeview LLP 263. Supergrow Developers LLP
216. Prime Niketan LLP 264. Supergrow Dreamhome LLP
217. Prime Parkview LLP 265. Supergrow Dwelling LLP
218. Snowline Abasan LLP 266. Supergrow Elite Properties LLP
219. Snowline Appartments LLP 267. Supergrow Empire LLP
220. Snowline Brick LLP 268. Supergrow Enclave LLP
221. Snowline Buildcon LLP 269. Supergrow Estate LLP

222. Snowline Conclave LLP 270. Supergrow Galaxy LLP
223. Snowline Enclave LLP 271. Supergrow Heritage LLP
224, Snowline Estates LLP 272. Supergrow Highrise LLP
225. Snowline Highrise LLP 273. Supergrow Home Construction LLP
226. Snowline Homes LLP 274. Supergrow Horizon LLP
227. Snowline Housing LLP 275. Supergrow Housing LLP
228. Snowline Niketan LLP 276. Supergrow Iconic LLP

229. Snowline Nivas LLP 277. Supergrow Infocom LLP
230. Snowline Promoters LLP 278. Supergrow Landmark LLP
231. Snowline Properties LLP 279. Supergrow Legacy LLP
232 Snowline Realtors LLP 280. Supergrow Lifestyle LLP
233. Snowline Residency LLP 281. Supergrow Lighthouse LLP
234. Snowline Towers LLP 282. Supergrow Lodging LLP
235. Snowline Villa LLP 283. Supergrow Luxe Living LLP
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=] ‘ Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2 o 2lsls © 2 3 <lg|s 45. The Financial Accounts of Prajay Urban Private Limited and Swan Housing & Infra Private Limited associates
S § NS NS § o o 3 3= pa of the Company not being ready have not been considered for consolidation for the year ended 31 March
— — . N .
= a o - - 2023 and the impact thereof has been judged as non-material.
e o o
fle (o] O
= = 46. Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule (% in Lakhs)
. “ . © Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
2 S N 2 ,\ ; . S Lessthan 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
2|8 S|z S & 3 1 year
§ N~ ~|—| § 2‘ ‘:" :} - - y
£ £ Projects in progress
25 g As at March 31, 2023 - - - 1,809 1,809
k2 2 As at March 31, 2022 - - - 1,840 1,840
el o
As on the date of the balance sheet, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is
= - <0 o o overdue or has exceeded the cost, based on approved plan.
17 N @»n X 9 > °
HE 585 2 2 g
£% | % | = 10 47. Trade Receivables ageing schedule
% g@ E g 2 g % Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
20N E" 5 %)
2 o> 2 gggoe |& N Lessthan 6 6 months-1 1-2years 2-3years Morethan 3
o g ~ g 8 35 g f‘; % | S months years years
-— [ -— o = < -
g |Meg g Q) g 25¢ é g T Undisputed Considered good
€ SN} € 0o O~ [o)
3 c é = c g 3 S o) % = As at March 31, 2023 44 53 325 209 631 1,262
= c
g |83z g |225553|3 S As at March 31, 2022 318 13 9 951 - 1,378
£0F5 Eod20=0|0a g
= - 2 o} ONDw| O [0) B
22T ~£0000|x e 48. Trade Payable ageing schedule
2 ) 5 5828 |88£8%, &
a S g 29 £ g 8 = g3 S c;;j S Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
0] =z 14 (O] > Do 2 e =
2 £ o} ?_ 539 i‘% I8xz8 £ Lessthan 1year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
. = o 5c832 |5p8zg3 2 Trade Payable - MSME
[ Eol c oH O = o = =
o 5 § Ss£gs |[gso8fez & As at March 31, 2023 32 0 - - 32
-‘6 |2 = +— 0O = *‘2 O O 1%}
5 o o 030085 |238893% o As at March 31, 2022 1 - - - 1
P R S g.E0% |585288 S
e g S o g % 2239 |5698¢E8 e Trade Payable - Others
N . = (0] o O
g § % ‘é " § S 8%’;5% gggggg ‘E’ As at March 31, 2023 189 9 157 7 362
c R = Q s =
5 |3 s |25 |g 98855050 23208 O As at March 31, 2022 279 164 7 - 450
£ g5 3 |glz |3 228353873528
o] 2 3 et o |2 o GE 23 c|lc82838= e
= 2 |° 2 €12 |8 £6¢0¢05|255°28 ¢ 49. Financial ratios
@ 5 g |5 5 ~258:2c|c8%238 B
= o} S Xe] oo} £o.953 - -
O 2= § % 2 £ %g &8 %8 323072 § Ratio / Measure Methodology 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 % Variance
z D — 5 = O >0 = € (] D .
8 s S o 55 i 9; SRDo3I9% 3 3 o Current ratio* Current assets over 1.82 1.15 58.75%
o) = 2 | g 20 °8509%|628c,8 2 current liabilities
c 5 8 2 = 6o 2523328232288 2
iT % § i Q0 8oty § g 8| g 3 ec58 § Debt equity ratio * Debt over total 18.21 11.98 -52.01%
o) 35 c 2 32 -% S 9052/ £€<858 § c shareholders' equity
o a® & = a o 2>ETAc|23ELDE ) : -
2 > = = Debt service coverage  EBIT over current debt 0.00 0.06 -92.96%
O @8 5 0 5 ratio #
O C | e = Cle 2 = :
% 8|6 ° 215 o e n‘% ° Return on equity % # PAT over total average -35.99% 12.53% -387.23%
5 8 5 o £ P e equi
2 §lE s 3 |5|F |2 g : : oo .
o) & | £ Qo o E | £ 9 5 = o Inventory turnover rafio#  Revenue from operations 0.08 (0.14) -158.82%
O 2|3 £ 5 2 |3 5 e 3 g over average inventory
O | € ~ S c O = = . .
o 9|2 § 3 § 2 £ 3 =73 S 5 3 Trade receivables Revenue from operations 7.28 7.53 -3.30%
w £ |3 23 | |2% S% S i tumover ratio over average trade
L 5 e 22 % £ ¥ S OS5 g receivables
o = _ p _ . =
Zz O - =) B - =

J—T
~

2
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‘ Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Ratio / Measure Methodology 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 % Variance 51. (i) Information regarding Investment Property (% in Lakhs)

Trade payables fumover  Adjusted expenses over 20.12 4.46 351.00% Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

ratio # average frade payables Fair Value of opening balance of Investment property 2,303 3,095

i 1 1 O,

:e’r capltal tumover ratio g%?ggggggﬁgﬁfgons 0.19 0.80 -76.36% Fair Value of closing balance of Investment property 2,249 2,303
capital The fair value of Investment propenry has been classified as Level 3 fair value in the fair value hierachy due

Net profit % # Net profit over revenue -09.42% 6.22% 572.87% to the use of unobservable inputs. There has been no change in valuation techniques used since prior years.

zemrlg oerwdccf;;p;Tol ZB” ?(\)/eégveroge capital 0.54% 22.37% “97.57% (i) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for Investment Properties

mploy o mploy

Retumn on investment#  Inferest income, net gain 4.72% 10.53% -55.18% Rental Income 19 19
on sale of investments Less: Direct operating expenses that generate rental income 2 2
gcsr r\;veeti fcr]‘:;evglgse?gme Profit/(Loss) from investment property before depreciation 17 17
inves’rmegn’rs 9 Less: Depreciation 23 24

Profit/(Loss) from investment property after depreciation 6) (7)

Notes:

, , 52. Investment in Limited Liability Partnerships
EBIT - Eamings before interest and taxes.

PBIT - Profit before interest and taxes including other income.

EBITDA - Eamnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation.

PAT - Profit after taxes.

Debt includes current and non-current lease liabilities.

Adjusted expenses refers to sub-contractor charges and other expenses net of non-cash expenses and

Name of LLP Profit/(Loss) Sharing Ratio Investment in Capital

31st 31st 31st 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2023 March, 2022

i. Lohitka Properties LLP

donations Emami Realty Limited 10.00% 10.00% 0 0
Capital employed refers o total shareholders’ equity and debt. Aditya Vardhan Agarwal 10.00% 10.00% 0 0
Investments includes non-current investment, current investment and margin-money deposit. Ashish Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Explanation for variances exceeding 25%: Harsha Vardhan Agarwal 10.00% 10.00% 0 0
;B;i%“j;ﬂ;fﬁjj;??:;ﬂ;?"”‘*e”“ borrowings Manish Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
Mohan Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
50. Capital Management Prashant Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
The Group's objective when managing capital (defined as net debt and equity) is to safeguard the Group's Sachin Goenka 4.00% 4.00% 0 0
ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide returmns to the shareholders and benefit for other Sheth Infracity Private Limited 2.50% 2.50% 0 0
stakeholders, while profecting and strengthening the Balance Sheet through the appropriate balance of debt Ashwin N. Sheth 30.00% 35.00% 1 ]
and equity .fundlng.. The Group monqges !’rs cqplTOI structure and makes adjustments to i, in light of changes Chintan N. Sheth 8.75% 6.25% 0 0
to economic conditions and strategic objectives of the Group. :
Maulik A. Sheth 8.75% 6.25% 0 0
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity as below: 100.00% 100.00% 4 4
(% in Lakhs) ii. Supervalue Nirman LLP

Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022 Creative Cultivation Private Limited 99.999% 99.999% 1,752 1,752
Borrowings (Non-Current and current including current maturities 1,58,676 1,52,643 Ermami Realty Limited 0.001% 0.001% 0 0
of non-current borrowings) 100.000% 100.000% 1,752 1,752
Other Financial Liabilities (Interest accrued but not due) 62 55

Net Debt (A) 1,568,738 1,562,698

Equity Share Capital 757 757

Other Equity 7,960 11,989

Equity (B) 8,717 12,746

Gearing Ratio (C=A/B) 18.21 11.98
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% 0 represents amount less than % 1,00,000

53. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

A. Contingent Liabilities (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022
Guarantee and counter guarantee given
i. Bank Guarantee 8 8
ii. Arising on account of Corporate Guarantee and mortgage of - 3.917

rights, fitle and interest etc. entitlements accruing fo the Company
under a Joint Development Agreement, for and on behalf of a

related party

iii. Corporate Guarantee given along with mortgage of land on 1,282 1,199
behalf of related parties

iv. Income Tax demand for the AY 2021-22 as per Assessment 11,143 -

Order ufs 143(3) dated 31.12,2022*

* The Company has been advised that the demand is likely to be deleted and accordingly no liability will arise.

B. Commitments

i. The Company enters info construction contracts for Civil, External Development, MEP work efc. with its
vendors. The total amount payable under such contracts will be based on actual measurements and
negotiated rates, which are determinable as and when the work under the said contracts are completed.

ii. The Company has entered into development agreements with owners of land for development of projects.
Under the agreements the Company is required to pay certain payments/ deposits to the owners of the
land and share in revenue from such developments in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated
under the agreements.

54. Movement in lease liabilities:

Opening Balance 115 173

Additions -

Interest accrued during the year * 8 13

Deletions -

Payment of lease liabilities 72 71

Closing Balance 51 115
Current lease liabilities 51 15
Non- current lease liabilities - 100

* The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities is 8.71% p.a.

55. Income Tax
A. Tax expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss:

2022-23 2021-22
Current tax - 20
Deferred income tax expense/(credit) (1,358) 162
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 54
Total income tax expense/(credit) (1,358) 236
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B. Areconciliation of theincome taxamountbetweenthe enactedincometaxrate andthe effectiveincome
tax of the Group is as follows :

(% in Lakhs)
2022-23 2021-22

Profit before tax (5.471) 1,733
Enacted income tax rate in India adopted by the Group 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax as per above rate - 436
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:
Tax impact of utilisation of brought forward losses (1,322) (199)
Tax impact of exempted income (1)
Tax impact due to timing difference (40) (33)
Rate difference - (7)
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 54
Others 3 (14)
Income tax as per profit and loss statement (1,358) 236

56. The Group has entered into Joint Development Agreements for development of Projects at various
locations.

57. Against the JDA Assignment Agreement entered by New Age Realty Pvt Ltd, subsidiary of the Company
with Presidium Construction (Coimbatore) Pvt. Ltd. and Karthikeya Ancillaries Pvt. Ltd. (the Landlord) for
assignment of JDA entered into between the Landlord and Presidium Construction Pvt. Ltd. for development
of an immovable property situated at Avinashi Road, Coimbatore and further o this, against Area Assignment
Agreement entered between the Company and the said Landlord, the said Landlord has served Termination
Notice and legal proceedings led to an appointment of Justice P K Balasubramanyan, Retired Judge of
Supreme Court of India, as a sole arbitrator pursuant to the order of Hon'ble Madras High Court, who has
passed an award on 1st June 2017. While interalia confirming the possession of the subject land to the said
subsidiary, he has not allowed interest on monies paid to the Landlord from the beginning. The Company
and its said subsidiary have preferred an application u/s 34 of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996 for
setting aside the award before the District Court, Coimbatore.

The Parties have reached on to a Settlement agreement dated 23.12.2022 and a compromise petition
dated 15.02.2023 was filed before the District Court, Coimbatore. The District Court based on the settlement
agreement and a compromise petition has passed the final order on 23.02.2023 which has been accepted
by all the Parties and as per which advances are recoverable,

58. 8,509 lakhs of loan to Fort Projects Limited for which, the company has filed an application before NCLT,
Kolkata Branch on 15.09.2022 for recovery of the loan amount and is optimistic for the recoverability of the
same.

59. The Group does not have any fransaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, during the current year and in the previous year.

60. Segment Reporting

The Group is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which as per Ind AS 108 on “Segment
Reporting” is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Group is operating only in India and
there is no other significant geographical segment.

61. (a) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder.

(b) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond
the statutory period.

(c) The Group has not tfraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(d) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
and disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(e) The Group has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Infermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

Annual Report 2022-23 | 177



Emami Realty Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

() directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

() The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shalll

() directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

62. Additional information pursuant to Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the Entity

Net Assets,

i.e., total

assets minus total

Share in profit or loss

Share in other
comprehensive income

Share in total
comprehensive

.................... liabilities  .........©eh Income(TCh
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount  As % of Amount
consolidated ®in consolidated ® in consolidated ®in TCI ®in
net assets Lakhs) profit or loss Lakhs) OCl Lakhs) Lakhs)

Emami Realty Limited 106.52% 9,286 113.51% (4,385) 100.00% 3 113.52% (4,382)

Subsidiaries (Indian):

Sneha Ashiana Private -0.94% (82) 7.22% 279 0.00% 7.23% 279
Jmited e
Deira Py Private Limited 923% 805 003% o M._..000% 003% ..0L

New Age Realty Private -13.49% (1,176) 0.13% 5) 0.00% 0.13% 5)
e e
_Non-Controling Inferest 0:00% 0.00% o 0900% ) 0.00% oo
_Associates (Indian) : e

Roseview Developers 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Private Limited e

Prajay Urban Private 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
mited e

Bengal Emami Housing 2.86% 249 6.34% 245 0.00% 6.35% 245
Lmited e

Swanhousing & Infra 0.14% 12 0.10% 4 0.00% 0.10% 4
JPrivate Limited O,

Infer-company Elimination -4.31% (376) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

& Consolidation
Adustment

Total 100% 8,718 100% (3,863) 100% 3 100% (3,860)
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63. There were no dues outstanding for more than 45 days to any Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises
suppliers. The above information regarding Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises has been determined to
the extent such communication has been received from the respective parties by the Group. This has been

relied upon by the Auditors.

R in Laknhs)

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

i) the Principal amount remaining unpaid o supplier as af the end 32 1

of each accounting year

ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 NIL NIL

along with amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond

the appointed day during the each accounting year

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay NIL NIL

in making payment (which have been paid but beyond appointed

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

MSMED Act 2006

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the NIL NIL

end of each accounting year: and

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable in NIL NIL

the succeeding year until such date when the interest dues as

above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

64. Corporate Social Responsibility

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Parent during the year - -

b) Amount spent during the year - 3
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purpose other than (i) above - 3

65. Previous year's figures have been rearranged or regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E

Director
Radhakrishan Tondon DIN: 00855466
Partner
M. No. 060534

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29/05/2023
UDIN: 23060534BGWXXJ7487

Hari Mohan Marda

Rajendra Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary
ACS 22418
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Emami Realty Limited

Form AOC -1

Annexure - A

(Pursuant to first proviso fo sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATES
Part “A”’: Subsidiaries

% in Lakhs, except percentage of shareholding)

Sl. No. 1 2 3
Name of Subsidiary Sneha Ashiana : Delta PV Private | New Age Realty
Private Limited Limited Private Limited
Date since when the subsidiary was acquired 20.07.2007 02.09.2008 05.06.2007
Reporting Date 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023
Reporting Currency INR INR INR
Share capital 5 45 5
Reserves & surplus (87) 760 (1,1871)
Total Assets 1,410 2,416 1,176
Total Liabilities 1,492 1,611 2,352
Investments - - -
Tumover 2,873 - -
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 372 (M) (5)
Tax Expense 94 - -
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 278 m (5)
Proposed Dividend - -
% of Shareholding 100 100 60

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commmence operations — NONE

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NONE;

Place: Kolkata
Date: August 07, 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Mohan Marda

Director
DIN: 00855466

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Part “B”
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 129 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 RELATED TO ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

156-181

‘ Financial Statements

% in Lakhs, except no. of shares and % of shareholding)

Name of Associates Roseview Prajay Urban | Bengal Emami | Swanhousing
Developers Private Limited Housing & Infra Private
Private Limited Limited Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Date
2. Date on which the Associate 25.01.2007 31.03.2008 27.06.2011 04.02.2016
was associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associates held by
the Company on the year end
- No. 5,000 5,000 60,000 6,90,000
- Amount of Investment 0.50 0.50 6.00 69.00
- Extent of Holding (%) 50 50 30 33.66

4, Description of how there is
significant influence

Based on the percentage of

holding over these investees

5. Reason why the associate/joint
venture is not consolidated

N.A.

*

N.A.

*

6. Networth aftributable to
Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

249

12

7. Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in
consolidation

245

i. Not considered in
Consolidation

* The Financial Accounts of Prajay Urban Private Limited and Swanhousing & Infra Pvt. Ltd., associates of the
Company, not being ready have not been considered for consolidation for the year ended 315 March, 2023

Notes:

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations- NONE

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NONE

Rajendra Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Payel Agarwal
Company Secretary

ACS 22418

Place: Kolkata
Date: August 07, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Mohan Marda

Director
DIN: 00855466

Rajendra Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08756907

Payel Agarwal

Company Secretary

ACS 22418
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